Canton School Committee

Canton, MA

December 1, 2016

7:00 Open Session

Canton High School
Distance Learning Lab

The Canton Fublic Scheals stiives to develop students whe are competent and creative

thinkers , cuiious and confident learnens, and campassisnate citizens.

The back-up support documents for each agenda item are arranged in the

order listed below.

A. Call to Order

B. Routine Matters

1. Approve Minutes dated November 17, 2016

2. Approve Bill Schedule dated December 8, 2016

C. Student Member Report: Student member, Nino Ruggeri, will report on

the school events and activities happening around the district.

D. Public Comments/Questions

E. Superintendent’s Report: Dr. Fischer-Mueller will provide an update on

a variety of matters going on throughout the district.

F. Old Business;

1. FY18 Capital Budget: Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller will review the

proposed FY18 Capital Budget recommendations and request a

vote from the School Committee.

G. New Business

1. Advanced Placement Report: Canton High School Principal,
Derek Folan, will provide a report on participation and

performance.

2. Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan: Debra Bromfield,

Director of Student Services, will update the School Committee on

the changes for FY17.




3. Policy 1% Read: Kristin Mirliani and Debra Bromfield will present
the 1° read for The Ages for School Enroliment and Attendance
Policy and the Canton Bullying Prevention and Intervention Policy.

4. Policy 2™ Read: Kristin Mirliani and Debra Bromfield will present
the 2" Read of the Searches and Interrogations Policy and
request a vote from the School Committee.

5. Stipends: Barry Nectow will present the proposed Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) to the Teachers Union, Unit A, Stipends
Contract. Mr. Nectow will then request a vote on the addendum.

6. DESE District and School Report Cards: Superintendent, Jennifer
Fischer-Mueller, and Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and
Instruction, Jennifer Henderson, will present the District and
School Report Cards.

H. Business Manager's Report: Mr. Nectow will provide an update on
business items.

l. Sub-Committee Reports :
1. TEC- Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller/John Bonnanzio
2. CPC — Reuki Schutt

BRC- Michael Loughran

Wellness- Meg Gannon

Finance — Reuki Schutt/Meg Gannon

Building Use — John Bonnanzio

Policy — Kristin Mirliani

NS kW

J. Future Business — Next Meeting Thursday, December 15, 2016
K. Other Business

L. Adjournment




Town of Canton
Canton School Committee Minutes of the Meeting of November 17, 2016
Canton High School Distance Learning Lab

The back-up support documents for each agenda item are arranged in the order listed below.

A. Open Session called to order by at 7:10 PM.

Present are:

John Bonnanzio
Michael Loughran
Reuki Schutt
Kristin Mirliani
Meg Gannon

Also Present:

Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller, Superintendent of Schools
Brett McCloud, Recording Secretary

Barry Nectow, Business Manager

Community Members

Press

B. Routine Matters

1.

Motion to approve Minutes dated November 3, 2016. It was voted 4-0-1.

4 yeas 0 nay 1 abstain

2. Motion to approve Workshop Minutes dated November 3, 2016. It was voted 4-0-1.

4 yeas 0 nay 1 abstain

3. Motion to approve Bill Schedule dated November 24, 2016. It was voted 5-0.

5 yeas 0 nay

C. Student Member Report: Student member, Rachel Vatelia, reported on the school events around

the district. Rachel's report included:

1.

ECC. Rodman Reads, the family reading project has started. Each family was given the
book Dancing Feet by Lindsey Craig along with supportive activities families can engage
in at home. This project, funded by a CAPE grant, was developed in conjunction with
Family Literacy month and is focused on the importance of reading aloud to your child and
building vocabulary. The students will celebrate at the end of the month with a family event
featuring children’s musician Rick Goldin.

Luce: Poppies, the national symbol of remembrance, were displayed by every student
and all staff at the Luce School last Thursday afternoon. As a group of distinguished
Canton Veterans made their way to the gym, they passed proud students enthusiastically
waving American flags and clapping. These veterans joined the entire student body in the
gym to remember that Veteran's day is not merely a day off from school but rather a
solemn holiday in our country. Also, the Literacy Night was held this past Tuesday
evening with over 80 in attendance.




3. Hansen: The students are celebrating Family Literacy Month by creating a fall collage with
all the books that students and staff have read with their families. The collage will be
added to every day and has shown great commitment from the Hansen students and
families. In addition, on Tuesday, the Hansen hosted the EarthView program for grades 3-
5. Alarge inflatable globe was brought into the gym and the students and teachers were
able to enter the globe to receive lessons on world geography.

4. JFK: Staff, students and families attended the Boston Celtics game on Wednesday night.
It was a great community outing for all, and the Celtics had a win. JFK has also started a
new recognition program: the weekly PAWSOME Award. Each teacher nominates a
student in their class who is a model for school wide expectations. Nominees are
reviewed and one student from each grade is chosen and recognized by the school. Staff
can also receive PAWSOME awards.

5. GMS: Galvin Middle School with the Canton Police Department held an internet Safety
and Social Media program. Parents were able to get information from the police and
technology experts from the Canton School Dept. on how to safeguard their children on
Social Media. There will be another program offered in the spring. In addition, the
Wellness Department sponsored the 13+ Annual Turkey Trot. Students and staff donated
food and money to the Canton Food Pantry. The Canton Fire Dept. picked it up and
delivered it to the Food Pantry. This year 46 boxes and $300.00 were donated.

6. CHS: The Mock Trial team attended the Harvard Bar Association seminar last week. CHS
was part of the advanced division and participated in 9 seminars with Harvard Seminar
seniors. Canton High School also won its trial against a team from Long Island. The CHS
National Honor Society Chapter inducted 71 new members on Monday night. Various
speakers emphasized the pillars of scholarship, service, character and leadership. Social
Studies teacher Mr. Eromin stole the show with a humorous speech on humility. In
addition, Cheerleading advanced to the state championships and the volleyball team won
its 10th straight Hockomock title and made it to the Sectional Final.

D. Public Comments/Questions:
Katherine Holberg - Asked questions concerning the budget and the chrome books. She
wanted to know why some schools are asking for more than other schools. Dr. Fisher-
Mueller responded that the schools are requesting the amount they need for testing and
some of the schools already have more than others.

E. Superintendent Report: Dr. Fischer-Mueller provided an update on a variety of matters including:

1. Superintendent’s Activities:

a. Entry Plan: Dr. Fisher-Mueller reported that 401 entry plan surveys have been submitted.
the survery will close on November 23rd. Two parent forums remain, including Galvin
Middle School parents on November 21st at 7PM in the GMS library and parents of young
children on November 22, at the Canton Public Library from 6PM-7PM.

b. Canton Communications Forum: On November 15th, Chairman Bonnanzio, Mr. Nectow
and Dr. Fisher-Mueller attended the annual Communications Forum sponsored by the
Board of Selectmen. Mr. Bonnanzio provided an overview of the present and past studies
of the school facilities.

¢. School Facilities Master Plan: Monday, November 14th the administration met with Dore
and Whittier Architects. The purpose of the meeting was to schedule multiple activities
associated with this comprehensive study, including bimonthly meetings of the Working
Group, interviews with Principals and three Visioning Days. The visioning days will include
approximately 50 people from various stakeholder groups: School Committee Members,




students, parents, teachers, administrators, town employees, elected officials, and
members of the community. We also set dates to visit other schools in Massachusetts
that Dore and Whittier recommended as school facilities for the 21st Century. Regarding
the Working Group, in collaboration with the Town Administrator, Charlie Aspinwall, we
have confirmed participation of the new Town Planner, Laura Smead. The Superintendent
asked the School Committee to confirm representatives as members of the Working
Group. Reuki Schutt and Michael Loughran volunteered to be the representatives for
these meetings of the Working Group.

Indicators of Excellence:
. Elementary Math and Communication: The second information session for parents and
guardians of students in grades 1-5, was held on Monday, November 14th. Parents and
guardians have commented they appreciate these sessions because it helps them to
understand the mathematical concepts and instructional strategies used, so they can
better assist their children at home. Dr. Fischer-Mueller thanked Ms. Henderson and Math
Specialist, Maryanna Biederman, Susan Brass, and Kerri Falzone, for leading these
workshops, and understanding the value of engaging parents as true partners to support
student learning.

. Communicating Student Learning: The English Language Arts section of the elementary
report card will look slightly different to parents in December. Skills that are necessary for
improving literacy will be outlined and progress toward the standards will be noted.
Additional information about standards based report card can be found in the principal's
newsletters.

Canton Parents Advisory Council for Student Services (CPACSS) - CPACSS met on
Wednesday, November 9th from 7-9 pm in the CHS Library. Debra Bromfield, Director of
Student Services, presented an overview of the district’s services for student requiring
support during the school day.

. We are Canton Exhibit: This exhibit opened November 16 and will be open until Saturday,
November 18. Kate Kelly and her junior professors created the exhibit that is inspired by
the photojournalist Brandon Stanton who created Humans of New York. The goal is to
celebrate the diverse stories that exist in the community and capture a glimpse of
individuals lives based on the question asked of them.

Elementary Math — There was no school on Election Day, November 8", The day was
used for full-district educator professional development. Katy Shamitz, founder of Skills for
Living and The Chapman Farm School, was the featured speaker. She provided an
overview of social and emotional learning pre-K through grade 12, which was well
received. Katy will be returning in February to provide educators with more classroom
strategies supporting social learning.

Project Based Learning — Ms. Telannia Nofar of the Buck Institute, completed three days
of training on Project Based Learning with 30 faculty members. She will be returning to
Canton on March 16 and 17 to work with the same group of educators and visit
classrooms to support teachers as they integrate new strategies for designing engaging
and relevant projects.

. National Honor Society — On Monday, November 14, the superintendent participated in the
National Honor Society Induction Night. Mr. Michael Eromin, CHS Social Studies teacher,
was the Honorary speaker. Dr. Fischer-Mueller congratulated all the new inductees.

. Upcoming Events —
We Are Canton




Thursday, November 17 from 4-8 pm

Friday, November 18 from 3-5 pm

Saturday, November 19 from 9 am -12 pm
Superintendent Entry Plan Forums

Monday, November 21 from 7-8 GMS Library for Parents of GMS Students

November 19 from 6-7, Canton Public Library for Parents of Young Children
Early Release

Wednesday. November 23 — All students

Wednesday, November 30 — GMS Students for Parent Teacher Conferences
No School

Thursday, Novemebr 24 and 25 — Thanksgiving Recess

G. Old Business:

1.

FY18 Budget Guidelines Draft - Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller provided a second draft of the
FY18 Budget Guidelines. The revised second draft was reviewed by the Schoaol
Committee. Reuki Schutt motioned to approve the proposed FY 18 Budget Guidelines.
The motion was seconded by Kristin Mirliani. It was voted 5-0.

5 yeas 0 nay

It was also noted that the upcoming Budget Guidelines proposals for 2019 should be
submitted by the School Committee.

Green Communities Program - Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller presented a follow up
information regarding Laura Smead'’s presentation on Green Communities designation
and grant process. Barry Nectow reviewed the Memo Brian Lynch, Facilities Director,
provided for the School Committee. Mr. Lynch fully supported the Green Communities
program and felt the transition would go smoothly. Dr. Fischer-Mueller then asked the
School to vote regarding their support of the Green Communities designation and letter of
support. Reuki Schutt motioned to support the Green Communities designation and grant
process and to provide town with a letter of support for the program. The motion was
seconded by Michael Loughran. It was voted 5-0.

5 yeas 0 nay

H. New Business

1.

FY18 Capital Budget: Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller presented the proposed FY 18 Capital
Budget recommendations to the School Committee. Barry Nectow explained the
recommended items on the Cash Capital Budget and the Long Term Debt Capital. Mr.
Nectow explained why some Cash Budget items are recommended as priorities over other
items. The School Committee will review the items and ask department leaders and
principals to be present at the next meeting to further explain the proposed items. The
School Committee will be asked to vote on the FY18 Capital Budget no later than the
School Committee meeting of December 15th.

I. Business Manager's Report: Barry Nectow, business manager, reported on a number of business
related items. Mr. Nectow reported on the turf field replacement project. The old turf has been
removed, the ground is leveled and half of the new turf is placed. Mr. Nectow also reported that
the building study that has started and the High School gymnasium floor refinishing project has
began as well.

J. Sub-Committee Reports

1.

TEC- Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller/John Bonnanzio - Nothing to report




CPC - Reuki Schutt - Nothing to report

BRC- Michael Loughran - Next meeting 11/22

Wellness- Meg Gannon - Nothing to report.

Finance — Reuki Schutt/Meg Gannon — No other business.

Building Use — John Bonnanzio - Two new policies will be presented at the next meeting.
Policy ~ Kristin Mirliani — Nothing to report

NG RWN

K. Euture Business ~ Next Meeting Thursday, December 1, 2016

L. Other Business — No other business.

M. Adjournment — Kristin Mirliani motioned to adjourn at 8:52 PM. It was seconded by Michael
Loughran. |t was voted 5-0.

5 yeas 0 nay




Canton High School
Advanced Placement Analysis

Philosophy

We believe in providing all students with a rigorous learning experience in all classes. Advanced Placement (AP)
courses, in particular, serve as a tremendous opportunity for growth and excellence. We expect students to
carefully consider the high expectations in AP courses, and then fully accept responsibility for -- and ownership of
-- their learning through the summer, the school year and the Advanced Placement Exam in May.

We value equity, academic excellence, and rigor, and AP courses provide this opportunity for CHS students.
Advanced Placement courses are open to all students; there are no prerequisites. Additionally, we see the
Advanced Placement courses as a comprehensive experience that allows students to challenge themselves and
exceed their own expectations. We require CHS students to take the AP exam so there is a rigorous and
culminating assessment.

Advanced Placement Offerings *Added in 2013-14 **Added in 2014-15
Arts ***Exam taken by 1 student independently
e Studio Art: 2-D Design*
e Student Art: Drawing®
e Music Theory*
English Language Arts
e English Language/Composition
o English Literature/Composition
World Languages
e French Language
e Spanish Language
e Chinese Language***
History
e Economics: Micro**
e Government and Politics: US***
History:US
e Psychology*
e European History
Math and Computer Science
e Calculus AB
e Calculus BC
e Computer Science***
¢ Statistics™
Science and Technology
e Bioclogy
Chemistry
Physics C: E&M
Physics C: Mech
Physics 1**




AP Expectations, Participation and Scores

School | Prerequisites | AP Exam APs | Enroliment | Total % of | Total AP students with %
Year required (Gr.1112) | students | Grade | Exams | 3+ Sco
takingat | 11/12 re 3
least one
AP course abo
ve
2012 | Yes No 1 |447 | 142 31% | 278 |93 65.5
2013 Yes No 1 442 140 32% | 268 111 79.3
2014 No No 15 429 172 40% | 375 131 76.2
2015 | No Yes 17 | 451 221 49% | 456 144 65.2
2017 No Yes 17 486 264 57% 1553 N/A N/A

Executive Summary

CHS is extremely proud of its AP program. We feel the AP Program exemplifies our values of
academic excellence and rigor, inclusive community and continuous improvement. We now
offer comprehensive AP offerings that provide access for the arts, humanities, sciences and math. All of the
courses provide great opportunities for excellence and strong preparation for college and careers.

Participation

We have experienced tremendous growth in AP participation. We currently have 264 students taking at least one
AP exam -- 57 percent of our Grade 11/12 students. Last year, 56 percent of the senior class took at least AP
exam. We will administer 553 exams in May 2017.

Performance

in 2016, 167 students achieved a 3 or higher on the AP exams as opposed to 93 in 2012. Additionally, in 2016,
our percentage of students scoring 3 or higher increased 70.8 percent. We are above the state and global
averages. However, we did not meet our school improvement goal of 80 percent at 3 or higher and we are below
the state average on some exams. All require attention and analysis so there is growth and improvement.

Strategy to Improve Performance
1. Teacher training: CHS will ensure teachers enroll in the AP institutes once every three years
Annual review of Instructional Planning Reports, provided by College Board
AP student surveys and analysis
AP performance trends and analysis
AP job alikes and communication with AP teachers at other schools
AP Mock Exams and Analysis
AP Saturday Study Sessions/Student-Directed Study Groups

Noosen




2016 AP Exams -- School-by-School Comparison

School No. of AP Total AP Exams Percentage 3+
Students

Canton High School 236 467 70.8
Milton High School* 281 589 75.6
Foxboro High School 217 455 71.0
Sharon High School 318 674 94.1
Stoughton High School | 121 233 62.2
Milford High School 315 492 55.7
North Attleboro High 234 368 87.8
School

Burlington* 213 406 79.3
Franklin High School 421 783 73.8
Ipswich* 126 232 80.2
Melrose* 268 583 70.0
Pembroke* 199 401 63.6
Wakefield* 172 326 73.9
Walpole® 178 387 88.9
Mansfield* 228 401 89.0
Freetown-Lakeville* 170 279 74.6
Dedham 191 349 58.5
Norwood 106 189 73.5

*DART school -- A comparable high school as determined by DESE.




pIieogabalion mw

1
“precy 383[07 31 Jo Hjrewspen pareisidal ate ofof wode sY) pue ‘weIFol] WANISIE] PaoliEApy JUSLISIE]] PIOUBADY IV ‘Pivag IEa[[0) PIeoy edere) AL 9102 O

“Ajue eiep [ooy3s Jyqnd sapnjau pue (paseq-10oa) 193180 [00yas USHY HSY1 INCYANGIY) SIOISS Aq UBNEY SWIEXD SPEN YINM UOREN A7 oF Jodey gy yy se qans ‘spodas paeog 93370 1910 W] Saagp Hoda sy ug evep ayg

“a213ap 5 Jo@yIRg B URS
Pue adagoo ul 1ss1ad 0} ANQE 5, 1uLpis e Jo soppaid Suons e st Enped o ISUBHY 10 § JO BI0IS B PUE 21035 WIEXT Jy UL 18y} FUNOT YoM AHTIQEIUN03sY [BUOHEINDY 40 1900197 [SUOHE]N SU} WO S2A0d {pms @ yons Jo ajdumxs
SU() "SIPEIAP B SSOIIR JUMSISUCY PIAT] AR sHUIPUY 283U, “UonenpeIT 534102 PR $5303n08 859](00 Jo aanapaad spury yareasal jey) jurod 21005 o suasadas P 33T[FR 10 § JO H100S Ulexa UR SE PIUTAP ST UIRKY JY UR UG SSEI0NS,

@ 108 19 600 a0 +§ $3I0IS Ylla SIIAIPNIS 4V [BIOL JO % leqor) spesmipessely ] (5p5032) 10010s YaN uojue) [ |
ZI0°E8E'T ¥92'515°1 SET'ZRY'T 008758 150'062'T +E SAI00F UM SIUAPNIS 4
¥ROTELY PRO'SLS'D YSP'6ETF 0TF'SS6'S BLO'PILE SWiexy JO Iaquinp 9102 c10z ¥10Z 10z 2102
FAUR T2 T4 ¥OT'L68'2 920'755'2 $29'522'Z £KE'901'Z SjuBpnIg Jy [eol
. flativ o)
@ 604 TEL 9'eL 6EL +§ 1003 M SJULpTLS 4v R10LJ0 % |
PISER 4244 bradi 621'98 8E6'SE +E S0 M SUBPTNS Jy wm
LLGFIT 265601 9LI'T0l 12906 FI598 SUIEX] JO JOqUINLN] W_a
151'29 968'65 SL6'5S ¥oi'as £09°8F Spuspmg Jv [B10] E
IR Sosipessel . 5
@ 259 T £6L 559 +§ $8400g Y s)uapnys 4y [e1oLje % m...
191 PpL 11 1 8 +§ 591035 UM SUBPIIS JY m,
19¥ 5% 5ig 892 8Lz SUIEX JO Jaqump
952 122 EN ort Z¥l Sjusprig 4y |ejel
(575022) [00UPS I U0dE)
8102 £102 jatird 8102 Z102
+§ 53100 M SJUSPIIS IV [2101.J0 %
(c¥5032) [ooyog YA uoe)

9103 ‘12 AoN uny uodsy ‘9102 ‘£z Sny parepdn ered a

‘91028 ULILT DUE DIOIS

Kq surexa [e10 ‘surexa [e10) 2eak £q eyep Arewnns sgpads-joafyns sopaoad podes a1 ‘safed yranbasqns uQ JSYFN] 10 £ JO $II0IF JIOUL IO BUO LIM SIUIPNIS gy Jo aFeyusoed PUE I3QUINY 34} )0 pue SJuapn3s snbiun (2107 ‘SWwexs [ej0}
Te1240 51 sopaoid jey sqqe) e 0} Jxou ‘Y3 10 § JO $9I038 Yiln SPRPMS g Jo a3epusodad atp vy aduryd Teak-Toao-1ead o sapensny ydess e afed sy oy UG s[AR] [eqIS pue 21E3S ‘[00YDS A1[1 1 BFRp jo sIeak aay smoys Jodal i,

suondg peofumog ;7 3mig

(l\.

(9102) Arewwing 9100 [0OYIS 1R X-IAL] av

)




"parog aFa([e)) oy} JO sHIEWRpE) pasasiBal au2 0F0] 10D By} pue ‘weifold JUAEIR]] PASURAPY ‘FISUISIE]] PRUBAPY 4V ‘Plecg sdege) ueog ofayo) sUL 910z @

pxreogabaiion r@
896°¢ 08z 3:%4 96T LE'E e e LT A ¥oe (439 a4 a1'e 682 ¥eZ P ARG ULBPY
QS5°60E SIEY0E 90Lv62 8TP'E82 980'29Z 2008 196'8 0Le'e 4Zr's 8E8°L 43 44 82 8¢ 143 BTy [BOY
S2L'56 982'86 SLLGR 192'c8 1£2'08 SL1'E 262'2 S96'T ¢I6'Y 62L'1 It 0z 9 Lk Ll 1
911'0¢ 14578 0961 £E8'IE B0E'LE 6L €08 228 b8 899 s 8 S L L [
EPLES a8b'9g 9L0'Z8 10T 6% 11L9p FeS'T Pog't SEP'T L9F'T SOE'E 01 L 8 g I $
I69ES 69L'15 ¥36'8F 1S il Z9L°T GEL'T 18P ZhLT 805'T ¥ L ¥ 9 9 ¥
2.8'94 11¥'08 115°22 £84'49 0£9'29 169'2 A 1997 53] 4 8952 T Z ] € € g
8102 102 Fr0Z sT0E 2102 70z 5102 g U 102 2102 anee <102 FT0Z 10z F401 Ay ey}
S8 1674 16'2 887 L2 or'e 483 ars ¥re Ire 0Ze 88 60'C or's 6% QIS ERpY
LS6'8ET RE6'VEE 4t At Z06°50¢ 6¥6'161 Sir's 861'8 PEEL 185°2 peo’s 1F [44 £ 14 oF Sexy (oL
£oT'RE aceT 04281 6¥T°GT £51'09 2% LbF 068 coe 9ELT T T 1 ¥1 1
129'88 %19 ¥e0'8s G90'65 968'27 i CLB'T 66L°1 LiiTA 856 L 18 P 2 8 4
52Z'08 ¥L'08 2186 S98'EL £18'42 BLLE 08’ 0SL°E P¥L'e 10T 02 <l 74 9z I €
091708 S0L'6F 686'L SE0'F FA ] 808 8982 880°Z 680°2 905’1 6 L 1T I1 € ¥
88L°ST 15EF1 6911 B8T'T1 L8 cl8 09L 168 8.9 9061 14 4 4 4 9 g
:1014 102 ¥102 £102 2 9102 102 PIOZ 8102 10z 9102 102 vIoz £102 10z Sojorg
t6'2 aL'g 82 6872 987 S6'e 88z 0zZ'e i34 q0'e 6&¢ AI0AG APy
12374 £05'E2 £58'€T 118’z 8LL'E8 144 1484 ozp L8 8¥e L StreNy] (o]
£L8°2 881'g 6P0'S 129'F L98'F ot 1 i 4 29 6F 1 T
SPIL RELY 2EEF £98'Y epe'y (148 56 4 89 69 g Z
LET'L 268D GZE'9 SFe'D gel'c LET FOI LeT 81T 68 € £
£8L's 9LL'p LILY £88'y gor'Ss 8 46 $6 1L <6 ¥
LIB'Z BBE 018'2 669'Z 8282 ¥S oF 8L €9 14 5
9102 5102 PHOZ ET0Z 2102 9102 5102 I 8102 2102 9102 S0z yioz SIoe 2102 Aoyt yy
90 SHMMpESTEI] (575022) [00q2s ] voywe)
(5¥5022) oS YHTH uonme)
9102 ‘12 AoN umy modoy ‘910z ‘ez Sny parepd) vieq a
A S 9100 [00UDS T -9AL]
I (9102) Arewiuing 92109 [00YIS I3 X -9AI &N
N 7T N
\ .\.x AL e



€
‘peeog 2H3)[0]) Ay} JO sytewspet pala)siEal are o20] UI0dE Sy pue ‘weiBo1] JUBWAIR]] PAOUBAPY ‘FUSIRIEL]] PIJUBAPY 'gV ‘pieog adafo) preog 299100 YL 9102 ©

pieogehalion @
692 89z 8972 867 6L'E g S0'E e 68°€ 9% 83 652 882 Si'e el A0S TP
H0'P5T SLEEST [+ iXi41 BLUOFT ERLZET 6L0°S TFL¥ L8y 965'F L1 d L+ [ <2 0z 9g STEN pRog
8LE'EE LIE'EE 9F6'IE £07'98 98288 98L 864 99 0L 99L I € I 6 [r4 T
L80'8E £E0'88 68L'8E T¥2'02 L8681 ' 0i6 960'T £86 ¥eg ¥ g 9 Z 9 F4
|l ¥30'sk £25'88 BIE'9¢ PIL92 T08'T FA 0¥Z't 998 GE8 ] g 6 ¥ S £
C66'22 £0L%2 §ET'SE 180'0¢ ¥L9'52 ¥20'1 2001 590'1 200°1 LI0'T 4 1 g 1 T ¥
£0g'91 BLTVE L¥0's1 £E6'0Y SEL'TE 9LL (4 ¥2 284 288'T £90°'T I 2 Z 4 T 1
$102 5102 PIOZ £102 FALITA 910z <102 1oz 102 FALi7] gine S102 40 $102 2102 Ansmratyy
26'¢ YO'F E0F I £V e LE'F LET Y 5 C6E EL'F 4% LFE 520 4 SIS UEIP]
82£'621 90F'GET 0827311 Z66'701 EPO'rE £95's 68 9LI'e Sr6'2 928'2 61 113 a2 S % ST 0],
988'21 ¥61°11 121'01 V9L £FRL |42 I¥1 6LE 9z1 €21 2 4 I
80L's £58'y 0¥0°L 0pe's Z60'S STi sl BS1 T11 GI1 2 T 2
88¢'0T Be2'6l obb'pI S2LIT BLT'G B8E FA 4N e a8e 68T 2 L ¥ 4 €
112'92 18¥'6GE 9¢8'81 2602 $96'GT 69 60% FA4 a9z8 £0F 2 ¥ g ¥ I ¥
SL0'PY 2¥6'99 £68'19 06L'8S G9F'95 SEI'z vlz'e SPOE 976l 100'2 11 IT o1 ¥ k| g
1014 5102 41474 £102 2102 910% 5102 ¥102 4117 FALi -4 9102 5702 ¥ioz g0z eI HOBqNS FY 1O SR
0ge 2LE 18°¢ SLE 8¢ 60'% Loy 9y S0k 6TF 12¢ 0zZ'% 8Ty €L7% CZy 0§ Ueapy
SEE'SET 11671 §R2'E1L 865701 GPIT6 995' L68'E 9.iT'E Sh5'Z 9282 6T g1 Zé €1 8 sexy =101,
ST LTS 652'sT 8I0'GE 0Ls'TY 68¢ i7%4 684 0.2 961 4 < 1
SIgL 5069 996' 056'S 080's SLl 151 PE1 ert 411} 1 1 g I 2
I6F'12 28v'1e 00281 29281 #00sT 0Zs ¥ |G [i4514 6% 1 15 5 Z €
6F2'6T T4%°6T g25'sl 962'91 18261 ¥EG 9gg 00% ki1 A ] Z < I g ¥
506'09 BTG SEEYE 2I6'LY 8OLLY 802 68'T 86L'T 19’1 #LT £ g8 IT ¥ 4 [
8102 ST0Z FIoz £102 2102 11174 9102 y10Z €102 210z 810z s102 FI0Z b 1ind k417 24 Smore)
] SRosTHIesSE] (SP5022) 10oms A nojuen

_ - (575037) 1007 YIRI uouTe)
9102 'T¢ AoN uny wodoy ‘9107 ‘g7 Sny perepd[) mieq a

o oo (9102) Arewrung 910§ [0OYJS JBIL-9AIl] &N



4

‘preag 3Bajja)) aip o SRWSPEn pesRlsiBea sug 050 wiose ay) pue weidc.y UL PASUBADY JUDUIBIE[] PITUBAPY ‘Jy ‘PIeoyg s8o(07) ‘pieog a93([0) YL 9107 &

preogaberon mw
287 6472 8L'2 ILg 0672 FA B EI'E ore 1T¢e 88'¢ it'e 6P'E 00P L1748 4 05'% BJ00g Mesy
PET'05S L8708 PZI'L05 SCLLLY ZAT'SPR 529'21 GET'2T 9011 9596 Fa0's L oF It -4 B1 SN (Ro],
251'69 F09'8L SILTL 265°2L L5T'ES 568 SIO°F 626 ¥eg 86k T T
L2921 259°LGT L0%'28T 0L8°20T 98Z'vel 622'C €682 GGL'2 ST¥Z 999'T 11 2 2 z
ESEeFE E19'%F1 658'c¥1 REFOET FER'ETT BRiEN 100’8 T0E'E 6682 G58' €2 141 ] G 1T £
039'96 ZLTLB 87506 8¥SLL 00106 SLL'E £¥6'S 61¥'2 LSB'1 6¥1'2 2 <1 €l o1 S ¥
6S9'8G ¥EF'ES L6Y'BY LZ68F S6L'RY 1612 TEG'T ZFY'T 195'T 9687 48 L ol al F g
9102 (40174 ¥102 £102 2102 9102 stoz ¥I0Z £102 3102 9102 sloz ¥102 SI0Z 2102 nopFodnro) pue afenue ysydoy
¥0e BO'E 96'7 1Z€ 0¢ £1'e s 8678 0z'¢ ane ooe 100G weap
651'8% 202'6¥ 812'6S SET'1E L12'8¢ 1822 S6L'T L87'1 890°'T L16 T Fumexy] [R0L
9Z¥EL SIO'F1 ho1 a4 08 L6¥'L 1284 i1 B6F Z26¢ 262 T
8L 6258 L00'¢ 091°2 5002 92 Gzl 68 [ 4] <9 1
FAZ a4 506"/, 8859 £e0'y 660'Y 41174 05z S0Z LST ST1 T €
ES6TT SET'ZL 2el's 662'R 9659 (1744 L5 nee 9%z 8L ¥
LIT'E1 51021 L6E'S 682’8 Likt4] 8% 98 S9€ 60¢ 192 g
Moz ST02 ¥102 £102 2102 o102 S162 FI0Z $102 FALird b 1117 9162 [ 40074 £102 2102 V¥ 9oumpyg sqndmos
1€% ¥EP 17y [N L¥T [HiN] P&E <0 oV 0% ooy DEYG MEIJY
¥BI'E1 B0F'2T 862'T1 65401 9086 20F T6T Tk 60F L!14 T SHIEXY [D0]
805 pés ;14 128 [4:73 92 e ie 0r 1 13
LPE 8t 4 S¥2 Lee L1 61 0§ i te K
L06'T LIF'T 958'[ ¥ETT FLO'T 06 BL [:TA 501 é6 £
o1'g 86'T ¥E9'T LI5'1 2821 69 59 o9 99 8% T ¥
L52'8 THI'B §co'L 9% 956’9 002 96T 5g2 14 641 g
9102 q102 Y0z £102 FA i 111174 S102 ¥I0¢ £102 2102 8102 (1) ¥l02 £I0Z 2102 aumr) pue ofenduey asoup)y
o) SnesTIRsReR] {5P5024) [ooups AT nopre)
(5¥5022) 100535 YSTH uoyme)
9102 '1Z AoN uny vodsy ‘9107 ‘¢z Sny parepdp e1eq
A S 2100§ [00T]OS TeI-OAL]
om0 peommod 1 (9102) Arewrwung 9.102€ [OOYIS IBIL-9Al &N
P N

N



"paeog 25200 oyl Jo spewapen pasesiiel ate oo uiooe sy puE ‘wieifold JUSNIA3E]] PAJUBARY TUBWAIRY] PAdURADY ‘¥ ‘Pleoq afefjen pieog aBeyo) oYL 910Z &

preogabation @
2€¢ 82'E e LEE SE'E ¥LE £L¢ e BLE €Lt 262 €9'c a¥e 00z 00t BI00F TEayy
69582 PO5'E FOL'22 512 £5802 8261 T 1581 622’1 288’1 4 8 el £ £ SuneTy 0L
POE'T GOE'E [ALEN 150°7 0ET'T it £e 43 Lo ¥e 1 3 i ¢
6SE'Y 9y 1.8 SLL'E £18'E 601 TE1 £01 Tt 021 < € [ I I 4
905°L 916'L LEV'L 1669 £LL'9 £98 SIS 9¥e 92t 0P o1 Z 3 I I €
022’9 2i8'C 0LL'S 084G e’ €61 €88 184 10F L5¥ 4 é T I F
if48 4 G68'S [0 jiass TIR'E oge SPe [sg it |FE 1 E)
9102 sT02 108 8102 g10e 102 s108 10z 810z 2oz a1 102 FL0Z 11004 210z » UMY pre ofenfue] gowaly
iLe GLE 9 8L2 £87 L6'Z 662 £0¢ e 1€ 00°g E¥E 20% NS WeIW]
£9L'601 628801 80L0LT HT'OTE £€86'601T 9062 £86'2 926'2 996'2 £16'2 ar B AT STIETY [#0],
80551 £98'82 LiB'1E POs'LY £65'52 PLE 65 995 Gis B 4 e T
685'3¢ <eL Tl To'eL 91121 LEL'TE 208 SLT 82 692 292 H 5 H
PID'2E P8r'ee 209'L8 L0288 682'6E L8 ¥80°F BED'T a1e1 211 g L ¥ £
Z0%°LT oLL8T 199°81 8LO0Z 956°02 89 E29 609 0L £39 Z [ € 14
060'8 LLTIT 1556 GE¥1I 88F'1L 6I€ 80F jlidd 9% a5p I & £ g
9102 S102 ¥102 £102 210z 2102 0 ¥102 s102 2108 9102 £102 ¥1og 102 210z Awsg weedomy
[TA4 82 9L'g 182 082 e e eTE 12°¢ CZE €08 €8¢ Pog £LE I£e SU0IS MES
2807007 ¥SL'Z0P 162°868 165'988 BL0'T8E 209'01 2LLOT 20801 FET'01 LIE'6 0e 81 44 27 92 Uy (0L
BLE'RY ¥00's¥ SEL'LE 2050 6L2'EY 0oL 29 TS L8¥ ¥ T I T
£08°GET FES'IEL SLS'ISL pLE'E2T 2146°221T £2L'2 cI9'e 652 228’2 80I'Z I I € ¥ 9 4
Q19’611 159241 [80°81T 109121 ELLSTT 292' 1858 £PTE 6¥3'c £00's L [H] § £ ] €
96E°2L sares Z08'0L £O9'2L 81189 £85' 1192 2182 Li9°2 0lg'z 8 € 11 ¥ g ¥
£22°08 G9¥'0E FE8°08 LBE'6E 820°'18 08E'T 8681 26K 68E°T G87'T £ g [ £ £ 1
210z 5102 i £102 F{0 9102 oz ¥102 8102 zrez 210z 14 YO £102 102 woppsodinor) pue amyerry qsRdug
Bqop STIEENTPESSEW (Ep5022) [eotps yBig voyE)
(§v5022) [00TPS UR[H HolrE)
9107 T2 AoN uny nodey ‘910z ‘¢z Sny parepdn) e1ed A
A S 9100 [00YIS TBSK-IAL]
uondo peormod /o (9102) ArewriIng 9102€ [00YJS IB3{-9Al &N




9
"precy 983(107) 1) JO S}IEWRPEN paalsidal ale 0fo] wGe Ay pu "WEISeI] JUSWSIR] PRIUEADY UALLAIL] PAIURAPY Iy 'pIRog aa)[07) ‘pIRog 23907 YL 910Z &

preogabsqion @

86¢ o0e ang oe voe 8F'E 15's iee 19 8FE 05 BI005 UBSP]
988'6T 9L6'81 S80°BT 82P'81 asp'8T 8i¥ 9% 83¥F 6L¥ 61F [1]8 STrexy (0T,
2282 90L°2 SBEE 8i8'¢ ak'e 15 0¥ 143 0¥ f23 £ 1

P0G EILY 0LET S0’ 74 ad [ 96 £6 8 ZL [ 2

80y 89°F 09y 50L'F ¥85°% a8 6L 6 R6 90 ¥ £

IZE'E 192'¢ 091°g 890°S 91g'c &8 16 26 €6 8L 4 ¥

915’ 609'E 6585'E 690'E 055°¢ 981 L5T Fil 081 081 g

910% SHOY FLoz s102 2102 a10e 5102 yioz TI02 (401 9102 €108 4174 £102 210z LrooqL o
e 143 10'¢ EIE 608 0sE 9T'e A &3 A 8TE se'e Ve i G100 ULy
869'28 B68°8L 6V'TL 969°49 ¥35'29 ¥sZZ b4 -4 5022 ce8'1 QLT ¥ 81 ST Surexy oy,
BOL'ST BPO'ST B9T°YI LSKZT SLE'TT ¥4z &5t LEE |5:74 961 4 [ e 1

262'TT %2801 oS 11 62001 0.8'6 518 2t 18t 08 182 L 4 g [

O12'81 282'sT POT'ST ¥zS'el 9I0'ET ceg 9FF 908 aT¥ PRE 1T < £ £

86.'22 FAL ¥ L28'Tz 0EE'BT LPFLY LL9 629 069 66 125 4 14 ¥ ¥

Z269'%1 621'ST L¥81I 892'2T 8I¥01 £F 6LE LOE 688 918 L g ¥ g

9102 £102 j4lr4 |30 2roz : 11174 5103 vi0z 4 i zIoe argz 102 F102 8102 210z SNOUOIROTI]
0672 BLZ 682 08’z 187 oge cre ¥IE 618 6T°¢ 05t BI0DE UEIP]

|8:] g4 2L0°L2T ZPELTT 2I6'80T 8Z0'001 BL6'T LeL'1 60L°1 6881 LL21 4 STEEYE [E30L,
9617%¢ S61'9E 98062 61683 85%°0% ord SEE 8.2 602 L81 T

996°22 645'T2 L6¥'02 SvL08 SI8°L1 £EE £92 662 ¥5e ez 1 4

9pe12 589'1Z 86212 2L0'81 PL6LT €8¢ 0% 8%¢ 118 Li1x g

BLLEE £2T'82 ebe'Le 862'62 ¥56'22 914 69F iad 898 L8 F

veo'ce 06E'6T 20681 8.8'G1 LZB'ET 4] £9¢ 9g¢e 182 1¥2 T g

2102 o106z g 8102 210z 9102 S102 102 g1z nz 910z 5102 IOz £102 [0 SHIIOMOIS0 B

[eqop SHRTMpEsE (5¥5022) 100YPS Y3rH soyEy

_ (§750£2) 10028 YIH uomre)
9107 ‘12 AoN ung Hoday ‘910z ‘g7 Sny parepdp ered a

I | (9102) ATeWIUINS 9100G [OOYIS JBIX-IAL] &N

)

e




— U N SO

0/

Z
‘paeog aHae] Y3 JO syrewepR) pe1a)siSal are 0Jof U0de A1) pue ‘Werfoud JusuIadE]g PIIURAPY ‘JUSIale|] PaleApy 'dy ‘pieog 9501107 puareq afe|[0) YL HI0Z &

preogabation @
o 8'E S¥E or'e 19z 6E¢ 005 I
L6E0LT REG'ELT YOL¥ 688'F 82 83 U [e3o],
16215 LEE'EE BII'L SBT°T F4 ¥ 1
SKE'TS 6£2'TS 682'L 6E'] 81 11 [
BEO'OE 169'SE 096 206 I Zl £
688EE 2£9'82 589 90 G ¥
63L'L 619'8 192 474 I T <
%0z §T0E ¥io2 £102 2102 a102z ST0Z 41171 $102 2102 9702 ST02 ¥ioz 102 2102 1 iy
867 20t 90'¢ 662 e F'e S¥E Ge'e L¥E L¥e 05'g S0 WeIW
$8E'6] SL6'8T 520'81 9281 8Fp'81 134 19% 8zr BiV (314 [1]8 SINEXY [RI0],
6882 159'2 SIE'E 808'2 $96'2 154 ¥ 1 LE 63 £ I
Z01's 65L'Y 965'F rL'y S19¥ £8 L6 68 86 08 4 2
60F'F 659'% £L9F wL'y 266'¥ 18 €6 6 86 oot z £
168'C GGE'E L2'¢ 1882 1L2'¢ 98 zL S0t 16 o8 £ ¥
1% 185 £EP'E 99Kt iaa™ Lzl 851 o1 ¥GI {748 g
8102 o102 41 102 o102 9102 S10z 1400 4 174 2102 9102 5102 FHOE £102 2102 OISR [RINY-TON IFE0p
Aix4 £0E 80'E 10°€ ¥0'E 1¥e fA 2 g8 ore 68E 9z IS WEA
SEE'GT SLB'8T S80'8T 9zb'81 £9T8T 8T¥ 414 744 8LF L1¥ ol STy (0L
8892 £79'2 1L2'2 Z6Y'E 8652 BE 1) e v 14 4 2 T
#1P'G 0287 188} 962" L8EP 2 68 0! I6 SL g [
235y ZES'T ZeL'y GEU'S 855'F 6 Z6 LTE (174} G6 14 €
52's 8L8'E 90'e bi6'2 9rE's Li7A £6 LE 28 68 2 ¥
B0S'E 09e Te9'e 6ZP'S 26V’ 9z L¥1 801 [1a 911 g
p:11179 102 404 £102 FALi] :111:4 <102 ¥102 £10¢ oz 9102 S16T ¥z s102 2102 UOISANG [EINY OFNH
fedon STRIPESSEI (5¥75022) [901PS YSE HoNTE)
(¥5022) [ootPs YS[H Hone)
9107 ‘12 AoN uny Hoday ‘910z ‘¢z Sny pojepd ereq s
A S 9I00§ [00YDS TedX-9AL]
o poogod o (9102) Arewriung 9102€ [00YJS Ied L -9Al N

@




"

8

‘preeg sSaye) ) jo sysewopen pasansifel ase ofo] wiode ay pue weifolg uBee)J PRSUBAPY JURIIBIE]] PAdURAPY ‘Jy ‘Pieog afs(jon “preog s8a(1e) ML 9102 &

pIeogabofon @
L0 zre 60°8 LIE 5Is 5 PEe 95'¢ e 6b'e 182 e LT S1005 WEOW]
6EL'762 09£'8L2 0LF'092 025652 088'022 655'g 008°L 6El'2 ££29 PRe'S I sL 9F ST TRI0L
e6R'ED 159'L8 80975 L2y 2P6'YF IE'l £92'T 221'1 a8 96L 91 0z £ 1
01L'Th £27'98 902'58 920'18 Z68'62 690°T 526 218 689 969 2 12 6 2
012'95 BF1'CS £56°1S RLL9P ¥FE'TY 6T 00s'T 0EE'1T SET'1 £20'T 12 81 L £
FEL'GL 600'EL L26'69 909°€9 156'LS L1E'2 se1'2 101°2 0I8'[ atTA BI L] <1 ¥
£L1'98 se1'98 99.'8% £E805 1I8's¥ 590'2 61 PLLT 6eL'l 999°1 g 5 8 g
8102 S10Z ¥10z £102 2102 9102 §102 ¥I0Z £102 0z 9102 5102 yioz 31174 20 fBojoyndsy
09°g 95°¢g 18 14 65 6Le g LLE 39 u6e 2w 5% 08 e ogs 2095 WEIW
GLI'ES vig'es 680°LY L68'27 SHI'RE 9922 e L8 PRLT 2951 A 92 14 91 L Suzexg ()0,
FED'S 0gss S66'% £6L'Y 6£8'c £81 1z GLL 991 6 T I 4 T
2969 3E1'9 096'S 1809 8T 857 202 91 aL1 L¥E z [ I ¢ 4
LB5'6 285°61 8.8 ¥R Q62'2 GPE 91¢ 28z 01¢ 152 < [H] 4 £ ¥ £
12£%1 PeLPE SSO'ET SFI'TL 6101 019 G629 a6 93 Fiv L4 g G 8 9 14
BBT°LL BI&'SE £62'S1 08221 PeszI €88 | 475 ¥eL 909 L9 g g8 01 ¥ 14 g
oT0z 5102 ¥I0Z £102 [0 9102 S107 FIOZ £102 210z o102 STz YIOZ stog 2108 SEEpap ) sl
15 WE 168 ovE 15 ¥9E 9v'g 29°5 s £LE £eg 692 96°7 1753 are Q1005 Weap
LSE'EE 298'22 LLL'OZ £GE'61 08E°LT 956 Ti6 164 CLL Z8L Il 92 92 a1 a1 SOEXY [E10L
01L'e P1L'2 8ir'e 222'E 9081 F44) 161 25 <9 4] 9 L ¥ 2 t T
091'F LLY'E 2e9's 095’ o8’z gl F4:1 Tk £OT 201 13 L 1 2 1 4
GLO'E 658'2 [id:44 0592 0TF'E 441 121 86 §T1 811 |4 13 £ g < g
208°S L18° 8225 199 881y 02z 552 PIZ 061 ¥51 1 g g g 9 ¥
501’8 02'L 656'9 8719 Lr's 1 038 982 262 £08 3 g g ¥ 1 g
9102 o102 ¥I0Z £102 2102 gioz S102 ¥i0Z 8102 2102 14104 s102 ¥102 S0 2102 uspauSeyy pre Appoep ) sopsdig
feqold mampEsse {515027) 100105 YAE uoe)
(&¥5072) 1005 YI[H nonme)
910% ‘17 AoN uny hodsy ‘9103 ‘gz Sny perepd) mieqg A
A S 91008 [001]DS JEI-IAL]
reondo peommod (9102) Arewriung 9102€ JOOUIS IBI{-2AI &N
.\.1/

R



2/

8

"PiE0g 9831[07 94} 4o Sprwapen psisisidal ale ofo] LI0dE Al pue ‘URIB0L] JUSURIE] PRAIBAPY ‘TUSLIAIE) pRIERAPY gy ‘Dirog adalo) pieog 288110 UL 9102 @

paeogebafjon a
1¥e see 26¢ £E'E 92'¢ 158 62°¢ 38 6E'¢ L't 982 i &4 00g BX00¢ W]
8212 16488 p0S'LE Sp5'sg ¥r0'v2 229 028 685 (1} BLF L o1 I STTEE] PG ]
£8L G8E'T 696 £68 20T 9 9 ¥ g a1 T T I
0S6F LLO'S 6£0'S XS] PEI'S €6 Fil 11 66 L6 9 2
£0T'Ti 0026 996 LGL8 189'2 602 LT 9871 L1 L%T < T I £
FOr'0r LIT'R 650’8 IE6'L 9LL'G P02 291 ekl ST 921 T 4 ¥
T¥S'F 3687 S6L'E Ve 168 o1l g1 8 64 L £
2102 S102 e 102 2102 9102 5102 ¥102 2102 zroe 11174 grez ¥102 £10E e10d ofjojiod UfERd (- MV OpmS
882 08 98e 08'z €8¢ 208 £672 ¥ 68'2 L0E ooy 0zZ'v 88 ARG WeIR]
£81°L02 598'061 £29'v81 GE0'0LT Z5TF8T 8168 €6E'L ars'e 856'S 234 T [ir4 91 Surexy 0],
¥8R'8K SEP'OY oRL'TF LEL'BE Z81°6E 2291 ¥85'1 16T 952’1 808 1
0028 995'98 ¥6L'2E 6L8'TE 104°43 e81'l 69¢'T Y01 181'T 8L 1 T [4
B88¥16 G6P'6Y LET'SH 8¥T'2¥ 0¥'6E 9F6'T 928'1 a1 1) | F51 £ | &
996'FF 68F'LE £19'sg SL5'FE vigee 08T 82¢'T CED'T P21 1zt [ L L ¥
¥L0'62 06892 ££8'92 BL9'12 £6Z61 S6E'T 981'T ¥8I'T 198 0LL [ F g
at0e ST0Z (414 £102 o102 2102 ST02 F10z $10% 2102 9102 S162 FIoz 8162 2102 SRSERS
LLE LLE e F3H 45e €8¢ 88€ 068 6E'S I¥e e 8EY ang 8% F18 RIS WA
90£'5971 areIsT P86'0¥1 80L'68T ZEFVET 2198 2ESE 99%°8 £682'% 881'e g g ¥ el Fal SRy (A0
2852 6L0'g 2882 jalitits QLT'AT ¥ Le 153 19 828 4 T
64’51 8pEel Q0E'El 818'z2 £51°02 288 ze2 188 [it4Y 6% 4 P 2
28L'%F Pee'IY v92'2¥ 219°22 164°82 956 a8 258 099 63L € T ¥ 2 I H
586'05 £20'EG 62L'8F £48°68 90T1'sE 692'T SOT'E BLE'T 98 (Hi2] H € H 4 4
2'SY a90° 1Y £0E'PE 989°%¢ 2EZ'CE €60'T 810'L 20T 618 208 4 T T q
9102 9102 oz 102 2102 8102 1oz 162 114 {102 9102 10174 ¥i6z 102 3102 + Sttty pu sHenfimey prueds
ol STASTRESRI {sv£022) Joots YA uome)
(5¥5022) 100735 YA noyue)
9102 ‘Tz AoN umy J1odoy ‘910z ‘gz Sny parepdn ereg A
A S 91008 [00]DS TeIX-9AL]
ot poommod s g (9102) Alewriung 9100€ [O0OYIS 183 L -9Al N
\) \.I/.,
S )




<i

03
‘preog sfsjos dy) jo sy1ewapes) pauzisiSal ale ofo] wise sy} pue ‘weafoud JUSLISIELY PIOUBADY ‘TUSUIAIRI] PISURADY ‘J ‘PIBC] 2501107 PLeeg 595107 AL 8102 &

preogebalon @
0L'g Pe e LLe 082 1e¢ vee SEE 6E'¢ A 15¢ PrE e8E 4 4 69 B0IS TR
PES'hEY 075'9L7 8L6°PIV SE9'¥ K LTIL'8EF 9511 SO8'0F 66901 g52'01l £8L'6 G 6¥ 8¢ € 8t STy (0L
0v'021 LL0'STT #82'16 6F¥'S8 9e9'08 <8l'T 621°T 9L a1L 409 T 1 T [ T
BG6'FTE SPO'gIT £PT°0eT S60'0ZT TIFTE £502 C66'T €582 1002 06.'T 01 ¢ 2 Z 4 4
OFF'TIL 104381 2CEE 02096 994'26 00L°g [H3:¥4 4612 9%2'¢ €222 € LI 9 ¥ < g
20.'88 908's8 12686 8cL'%6 860'T6 288'2 1282 6918 690'¢ 1882 zl 21 T £l 81 ¥
62069 LEBVF 9L6°08 908'LY 901'05 £F5T 000°2 SE2E [rard 288 ] g 8 9 L g
8102 102 ¥ioz 8102 roe 9102 502 FI0Z T gI02 (4074 e s102 FIOZ s10¢ 10e Ksorsyy soreys pafup
P9z e 9¢ €0 6O°E 887 082 1] 60°¢ 80°€ o'z GG UBIPY
DI0'462 $EL'E8% 681242 L12'982 P06'652 1LL'e L8L'8 21'e 600'S 2957 4 STy oL
VLETL 995'92 966'99 9FE'08 268's8 208 ¥el et LEY 98 T
908° T4 LFB'0L 921'24 Z19'€9 02885 88L 016 £99 LS 455 [ F4
R00°FL 67004 628'TL ¥98'09 E5E'68 LI6 G456 698 €48 199 £
881°0F SEE'RE 968'CE 055'9¢ Z6L'S8 B:14 L8 €15 LTy 0gF 4
Pes'sE ae'Le 9€8'28 k382 s¥0'0E 629 16¥ L¥S £09 10s )
9470 STO¥ ¥loz 102 falird 707 <102 ¥1o0z 102 2102 910z <T02 ¥ioz S102 2102 0] pue ISR SOPS Py
e 92 aze 92E LTE eve LEE e 62°€ L2 SZE 222 05'g BH00§ WA
SBE'ST 0P98I 29¢'L1 £T0°LT b i1 529 <09 o6 5 8iF ¥ £ g SUrexy [0
B61% A 6.9 814 88L 49 81 49 L1 Z1 I
LEL'Y Bl 91g'g 922'C £99'¢ 4] <9 €8 <6 86 T z I 2
90E°L oLy L00'2 Fi A €1e's 382 052 961 ee £81 Z T T €
001'g 00T'% 119'¢ 15¥'€ F{ia a8l 51 481 I 111 4
86T'¢ ZLBZ 6rL'e 9L87F LLT'E SGE 16 9l b3} 0L 1 [
9108 S102 ¥IOZ €102 2102 9102 102 F102 4 0124 f411-9 9102 <10z ¥102 sI0Z f41 ofoy103 Ammexg Uy OpmS
oD SRR (&p2022) eotps (B worwe)

. (5¥5022) 1°oPS :m__lm. UOHIED
9102 ‘12 AoN uny 1odoy ‘910z ‘¢z Sny parepd) eleq A

o oo (9102) ATewIumg 91095 [00YIS T2 X-IAL] &

D
D

\
( .
(
.



Bullying Part |

Bullying Prevention
and

Intervention Plan




Dr. Jennifer Fischer-Mueller
Superintendent of Schools

Debra L. Bromfield

Director of Student Services

Jennifer A. Henderson - B[arry_ S. NeC'th
Assistant Superintendent 960 Washington Street, Canton, MA 02021 chool Business Adrministrato.
Jor Curriculum and Instruction Telephone: 781-821-5060

Fax: 781-575-6500
www.cantonina.org

CANTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS

To develop students who are competent and creative thinkers, curious and confident learners, and compassionate citizens.

Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan

The Canton community recognizes that the social/emotional, physical, and mental well-being of every student is
paramount to each individual student’s ability to learn. With this philosophy firmly in place, the CANTON
PUBLIC SCHOOLS (CPS) are striving to educate our students, staff, and community regarding the need to
promote and support positive social skills and norms. Education, collaboration, and communication, along with
appropriate corresponding expectations, will be the cornerstone of CPS8’ efforts to create comprehensive safe
environments for our students to learn, play, and grow. A safe and encouraging environment is the right of every
student.

The Canton Public Schools recognize that certain students may be more vulnerable to becoming a target of
bullying or harassment based on actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, including race, color, religion,
ancestry, national origin, sex, sociceconomic status, homelessness, academic status, gender identity or expression,
physical appearance, pregnant or parenting status, sexual orientation, mental, physical, developmental or sensory
disability, or by association with a person who has or is perceived to have 1 or more of these characteristics.

Our goal is to educate, encourage, and expect our entire educational community to promote an atmosphere that is
welcoming, supportive, and inclusive for each and every student. The following components are critical and will be
on-going in our efforts to provide a safe setting for all students in Canton:

1. Appropriate policies and procedures
a. Prohibits ALL forms of bullying
b. Digital, electronic, and internet safety measures

K-10 student education and prevention instruction

On-going and annual Staff Professional Development

Comprehensive communication with students, staff, pérents, and community
Appropriate expectations posted in student handbooks and school websites

Resources and services readily available

PR

Community collaboration




I LEADERSHIP. .....cccerverrrrerueeesteiesseeesseesssssessnsessnssssesseessssssssesnnessresessnnes p.3
IL  TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVP]ﬁLOPMEN;IT ...................................... p.5

I1I.

IV.

V.  POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR REPORTING AND RESPONDING TO BULLYING AND
RETATIATION. . veeertereterveeensesaenseeesessnsessressnsesesnsssssessssssesstossimssssssnsesssssssirssses p.9

VI.  COLLABORATION WITH FAMILIES........cveerveeiieesressnsssesssesssassnressseessnens p.12

VIL  PROHIBITION AGAINST BULLYING AND RETALIATION......vvvoooosssssss oo p.13

VIII. PROBLEM RESQOLUTION SYSTEM...c..ceervene. creerrreenterreetiresrrre st rerareenis p.14

IX.  DEFINITIONS...cceorsisrvesrresseisreseessesssesssonansonees errerrere e e et nreens p.14

X,  RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS....vvtiveerrersseessssereresssessseseesssessssesessessnes p.15

TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPENDIX: SAMPLE SUSPICION OF BULLYING REPORTING FORM

BPIP PLAN FY 17 Tuble of Contents

Page 2




1. LEADERSHIP

Canton Public Schools recognizes that Leadership at every level plays a critical role in developing and
implementing the Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan and Policy (BPIP) in the context of whole school
/district and community efforts to promote positive school climate. The Canton administration and staff plays
a pivotal role in teaching students to be civil and respectful to one another. Canton recognizes and embraces
the notion that leadership can and will emanate from our School Committee, administration, staff, student
body, and community members. However, Canton’s educational leaders are responsible for setting priorities
and for staying up-to-date with current research on strategies to prevent and effectively respond to bullying.

A. Public involvement in developing the re-authorization of the Plan
In compliance with M.G.L, ¢. 71, § 370, the Canton Bully Prevention Plan has been developed in consultation

with teachers, school staff, professional support personnel, school volunteers, administrators, community
representatives, local law enforcement agencies, students, parents, and guardians. The Plan itself has been
built entirely by the aforementioned personnel. Consultation included ample notice and a public comment
period before the Plan is adopted by the School Committee. Along with comprehensive representation from all
of these constituencies in the Plan development, the following components were included:

Working Sub-Committees
BPIP Committee

Public Comment

School Committee Hearing

e TR

The Canton Public School’s BPIP Committee consists of the following individuals:

The 2015-16 BPIP Committee Members:

(Co-Chair) Ryan Gordy, Director of Wellness K-12
{Co-Chair) Kim Clarke-Connor, Canton Nurse Administrator
(Co-Chair) Debra Bromfield, Director of Student Services
Derek Folan, Canton High School Principal

Robie Peter, Luce Elementary School Principal

Charles Rae, Canton Police Officer/School Resource Officer
Donna Bauman, Canton High School Adjustment Counselor/Title IX Compliance Officer
Dr. Dan Muse, School Physician

Meg Gannon, School Committee Member

Martha Lawless, Director of Food Services

A. Assessing needs and resources :
The Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan is the Canton Public Schools district’s blueprint for enhancing

capacity to prevent and respond to issues of bullying within the context of other healthy school climate
initiatives. As part of the planning process, school leaders, with input from families and staff, have assessed the
adequacy of current programs; reviewed current policies and procedures; reviewed available data on bullying
and behavioral incidents; and assessed available resources-including curricula, training programs, and
behavioral health services. This “mapping” process assists Canton schools in identifying resource gaps and the
most significant areas of need. Based on these findings, our schools will revise and develop policies and
procedures; establish partnerships with community agencies, including law enforcement; and set priorities for
the present and future.

At least once every four years beginning with 2015/16 school year, the district will administer a Department of

Elementary and Secondary-developed student survey to assess school climate and the prevalence, nature, and
severity of bullying in our schools. Additionally, the school or district will annually report bullying incident

BPIPPLAN FY 17 Tubie of Contents

Page 3




data to the Department. Similar tools to the student survey may be used with faculty, staff, and
parents/guardians to assist in determining school climate needs.

Upon completion of the survey to all schools in the district, the BPIP Committee will ascertain building-specific
data on the prevalence and characteristics of bullying, and particularly focus on identifying vulnerable
populations and “hot spots” in school buildings, on school grounds, or on school buses, This information will
help to identify patterns of behaviors and areas of concern, and which will impact decision-making for
prevention strategies including, but not limited to, adult supervision, professional development,
age-appropriate curricula, and in-school support services.

A, Planning and oversight .
The Principal or his/her designee will be the administrator responsible for receiving alleged bullying reports in

the Canton Schools. Each school building in Canton has established a specific group of individuals who
address those students who are identified as at-risk children. (These groups are named differently at each
school). This group is compiled of administration, guidance counselors, the school nurse and school counselors
and meets once weekly, or once per seven day cycle. The team reviews incident reports, and is able
confidentially access the designated student(s) academic, discipline and social/emotional history through this
format. This type of dialogue amongst team members provides a venue for actively and collaboratively
addressing each student’s needs and recommended interventions.

Canton has K-10 Weliness programming which includes evidence-based bully prevention. The BPIP
Committee, with the help of the Wellness department from each school, continues to include evidence based
anti-bullying units of instruction in the K-10 Wellness Curriculum.

Members of the BPIP Committee, as well as select members from each school, work collaboratively to review
and revise policies and protocols to address Bullying Prevention and Intervention. The Policy and the Plan is
reviewed and revised regularly based on accumulating data reflecting the efficacy of the policy. If the BPIP
Committee encounters an area(s) of concern in the interim, the Policy and/or Plan will by revised The
Technology Department has developed and distributed an Internet Safety Policy. The Principal’s will update
all student and staff handbooks as well as codes of conduct as changes are made to either the BPIP policy or
plan,

The BPIP Committee provides student, parent and faculty educational programs about bullying prevention

and intervention. Each school currently has reporting forms that are available in the main office, guidance
office, and/or counselor’s offices. A web-link to the district’s bully reporting forms are on the district’s website
for reporting purposes. Additional resources are available on the district’s website as well,

The vision of the BPIP Committee is for all staff to appropriately identify and document initial incidents of
possible bullying to establish an ongoing catalog of occurrences. An appointed CPS staff member will maintain
these files so that the Civil Rights Officer will have supported documentation in the event that an incident leads
to a comprehensive investigation, All invested individuals (students, parents, and staff) will be educated about
the reporting and disciplinary process, Ultimately, when a report is filed and found to be substantiated_by the
principal or his/her designee, the student(s) found to be involved as aggressors (and their parents) will have full
awareness of the reporting and potential disciplinary process.

The BPIP Committee works with the Title IX Coordinator to review and revise necessary guidelines outlined in
the Bullying Prevention Policy when changes occur.

D. Priority statements
The Superintendent and the Canton Schoel Committee’s Vision for the Canton Public School succinctly defines

our priorities,

BPIP PLAN FY I7 Tuble of Contents

Page 4




To develop students who are competent and creative thinkers,
curious and confident learners, and compassionate citizens.

Individual schools in the district have established their own mission statements that are consistent with the
overarching vision statement of the Cantont Public Schools.

II. TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

A. Annual staft training on the Plan
Annual training for all Canton Public Schools staff clearly outline all responsibilities staff members have to

contribute to the perpetuation of a safe and welcoming school environment. This includes an overview of the
steps that each building principal or designee follows upon receipt of a report of possible bullying or
retaliation, as well as an overview of the bullying prevention curriculum for students at that grade level.
Furthermore, staff is made aware of the full range of curricula offered at all grades throughout the Canton
Public Schools. District staff members hired after the start of the school year are required to participate in
school-based training during the school year in which they are hired.

B. Ongoing professional development
The goal of professional development is to establish a common wnderstanding of tools necessary for staff to

create a school climate that promotes safety, civil communication, and respect for differences. Professional
development builds the skills of staff members to prevent, identify, and respond to bullying. As required by
M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, the content of professional development for the Canton Public School system and each

school building is informed by research and will include information on:

a) Developmentally (or age-) appropriate strategies to prevent bullying.

b) Developmentally (or age-) appropriate strategies for immediate, effective interventions to stop
bullying incidents. :

¢} Information regarding the complex interaction and power differential that can take place between
and among an aggressor, target, and witnesses to the bullying,

d) Research findings on bullying, including information about specific categories of students who have
been shown to be particularly at risk for bullying in the school environment,

e) Information on the incidence and nature of eyberbullying.

f) Internet safety issues as they relate to cyberbullying.

Professional development will also address ways to prevent and respond to incidents that may be bullying or
retaliation for students with disabilities that must be considered when developing students’ Individualized
Education Programs (IEPs). This includes a particular focus on the needs of students with autism or students
whose disability affects social skills development.

Additional areas identified by the Canton Public Schools for professional development include:
a) Promoting and modeling the use of respectful language.
b) Fostering an understanding of and respect for diversity and difference.
¢) Building respectful relationships and communicating with families.
d) Constructively managing classroom behaviors, |
e) Using positive behavioral intervention strategies,
f) Applying constructive disciplinary practices.
g) Teaching students skills including positive communication, anger management, and empathy for
others,

BPIPPLAN FY 17 Tuble of Contents

Page s




h) Engaging students in school or classroom planning and decision-making.
iy Maintaining a safe and caring classroom for all students,

C. Written nofice to staff
The Canton Public Schools provides all staff with annual written notice of the Plan by publishing information
about it, including sections related to staff duties, in the schoo! handbook or the code of conduct.

III. ACCESS TO RESOURCES AND SERVICES

A key aspect of promoting positive Canton school climates.is ensuring that the underlying emotional needs of
targets, aggressors, families, and others are addressed. Our goal is to provide strategies, support, and services
necessary to meet these needs, In order to enhance Canton’s capacity to prevent, intervene early, and respond
effectively to bullying, the services mentioned below reflect an understanding of the dynamics of bullying and
provide approaches to address the needs of targets and aggressors.

A. ldentifying resources .
CPS has initiated the process of identifying its capacity to provide counseling and other services for targets,

aggressors, and their families. The members of the BPIP Committee as well as the school district’s leadership
annually review the current staffing and programs that support the creation of positive school environments,
We focus on early interventions and intensive services when warranted. The process of mapping resources is
an ongoing, dynamic process and will allow us to develop recommendations and action steps to fill resource and
service gaps. '

1) Mapping the Resources
a) Superintendent
b) Director of Curricunlum and Development
¢) Director of Student Services
d) Business Manager
e) Principal
f) Assistant Principal
g) Guidance Department
h) School Psychologists
iy Adjustment Counselors
j) School Nurses
k) School Resource Officer
1) Teachers
a) Student Mentors

2) Programs

#) Bullying Prevention and Intervention Curricula [Refer to Section IV for complete list of curricula]
a) School Crisis Response/Intervention Teams
a) Building Incident Management Teams
a) Building Specials, or At-Risk Teams
b) High School (Mentor) Programs
*  Boomerang Project
»  Student Council
* SADD
* National Honor Society
* Canton Character Crew

f) Middle School (Mentor) Programs

BPIP PLAN FY 17 Tuble of Contents

Page 6




*  Student Council

+ Student Leadership Council

* Boomerang Project (Fall 2012)
+  PAWSitivity

g) Elementary (Mentor) Programs
*  Good Citizenship Award/Walil of Fame (JFK)
+ Team Building Motto .
* SHINE (Luce)
*  Bucket Filler (Hansen)
* Team Building Motto -

B. Counseling and other, services
Canton Public Schools is committed to ensuring that the emotional needs of both bullying targets and of

. aggressors are addressed. All students (K-12) have access to counseling staff and services within each building
(school counselors, adjustment counselors, school psychologists, and nurses). These professionals will:

» Develop safety plans for students who have been targets of bullying.

»  Work with students to develop their social skills as a way of preventing bullying through the
promotion of positive communication skills.

+ Intervene and address the aggressors of bullying, focusing on the function of the behavior and
address techniques to redirect this behavior,

»  When deemed necessary, counseling staff will implement behavioral intervention plans for
specific students identified as aggressors.

+ TIncorporate culturally and linguistically appropriate resources as individual student needs are
identified.

C. Students with disabilities
As required by M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, the Special Education teams throughout the district work collaboratively to
address situations in which students with cognitive, social, emotional, or physical disabilities may be vulnerable
to bullying or harassment. If a student’s disability is causing them to exhibit behaviors which are making them
particularly vulnerable to harassment by their peers, or to fail to understand appropriate social inferaction in
the "mainstream,” then the issues will be addressed in the student's Individualized Education Program (TEP).
The IEP Team will ensure that all measures are taken to develop the student’s skills to respond to and avoid
situations in which the student may be bullied or harassed. The Team will provide clear and developmentally
appropriate education that will in turn work towards effectively mitigating the instances and effects of
bullying, This will include, but is not limited to including provisions, plans and goals as it relates to bullying in
each student’s IEP.

D. Referral to outside services

The Director of Student Services in concert with building principals or their designees identify and develop
specific protocols for crisis prevention and intervention which become an integral component of the therapeutic
approach when addressing bullying in the Canton Public Schools, If there is a need for community based
linkages or other resources the Guidance Department has bridged its resources to include others. Such
resources include, but are not limited to:

* Riverside Mental Health

+ New Life Counseling and Wellness

» Norwood Hospital

+ Bournewood Health Systems

*  South Bay Mental Health

BPIPPIANFY 17 Tuble of Contents

Page7




IV. ACADEMIC AND NON-ACADEMIC ACTIVITIES

The Canton Public Schools strives to offer and implement 'age appropriate social, emotional and bully
prevention K-10 curricula, as well as offering activities to encourage safety and respect throughout the district.

The Canton Public Schools send staff members te various MARC workshops to provide staff and parents with
the appropriate tools and information to understand, prevent and intervene with bullying behaviors, All statf
members receive training regarding the Bully Prevention and Intervention Law and its implications for Canton
students,

The Canton Public Schools implements one primary bullying prevention curriculum, Committee For
Children’s evidence-based Second Steps and Steps To Respect, k-8. The high school has age appropriate
curricula. The curricula is evidence-based and incorporates a wide variety of teaching techniques and
strategies to support bullying prevention efforts. In addition, staff is provided ongoing training for these
programs.

Current curricula directed toward grades PreK-10 including the following:

a) Grades K-5:  Second Step, Steps to Respect, Pacer Center, Kidhealth.org, Stop
Bullying Now (HRSA website), MARC K-5 curriculum,
a) Grades 6-8:  Second Step, Discovery Education, Stop Bullying Now website,

Glencoe Teen Health Courses, Teenage Health Teaching Modules,
Health Teacher, Pacer Center

a) Grades 9-12: Anti Defamation League, Pacer Center, Health & Human Services
www.Mass.gov, Bullying Prevention and Intervention resources www.doe.mass.edu,,
MARC - Massachusetts Aggression Center.

The BPIP Committee has directed staff and parents to a wide variety of Bullying Prevention and Intervention
resources, such as: ‘

Health & Human Services: www.Mass.gov

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education; www.doe.mass.edu
Bullying Prevention: www.indiana.edu/~safeschoolSrsBullying. pdf

MARC: www.bridgew.edWMARC

ADL (Anti-Defamation League): www.adl.org

www.Stopbullyingnow.org

www.Casel.org
www MIAA . .net

Erpbppelezs

Technology use that is integrated into school curriculum fosters information retrieval skills, encourages critical
thinking skills, collaboration and provides educational opportunities for both students and staff. CPS
Technology access, for students and staff in Canton, is a privilege, not a right. Along with this privilege, come
certain responsibilities for all users. The school district is providing access to the CPS Technology for
educational purposes only. All users must conform to the terms and conditions established by the district’s
Acceptable Use Policy (AUP). All students and staff within the Canton Public Schools must read and sign this
policy; students must alse have their parents and/or guardians read and sign the policy. The school district
cannot provide access to any student or staff who fail to sign and return the policy.

Y. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR REPORTING AND RESPONDING TO BULLYING AND
RETALIATION
BPIP PLAN F¥Y 17 Tuble of Contents

Page 8




A, Reporting bullying or retaliation
Reports of incidents that may be bullying or retaliation may be made by staff, students, parents or guardians,
or others, and may be oral or written. Oral reports made by or to a staff member shall be recorded in writing,
A school or district staff member is required to report immediately on the designated form to the principal or
designee any instance of possible bullying or retaliation the staff member becomes aware of or witnesses.
Reports made by students, parents or guardians, or other individuals who are not school or district staff
members. The school or district will explore a variety of reporting options, in addition to the standardized K-5
and 6-12 reporting forms available to the school community. Such options include, but are not limited to a
voicemail box, a dedicated mailing address, and/or an email address. Each building principal will determine
the appropriate mode(s) of the reporting process and publicize this accordingly to students, staff, and parents.

The BPIP Committee will ensure that each public school building in Canton will:

a) Include a copy of the Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form in the beginning of the year packets for
students and parents or guardians,

b) Make the Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form available in numerous sites, such as the school’s
main office, the counseling office(s), the school nurse's office, and other locations determined by the
principal or designee. _

¢) Post the Form on the school’s individual, as well as the district, website. The Suspicion of Bullying
Reporting Form will be made available in the most prevalent language(s) of origin of students and
parents or guardians.

At the beginning of each school year, the school or district will provide the school community, including
administrators, staff, students, and parents or guardians, with written notice of its policies for reporting acis of
bullying and retaliation. A description of the reporting procedures and resources, including the incident
report, the name and contact information of the principal or designee, will be incorporated into student and
staff handbooks. This information will also appear on school or district websites, and include in information
about the Plan. )

1. Reporting by Staff
A staff member will report immediately to the principal or designee when he/she witnesses or becomes
aware of conduct that may be bullying or retaliation. The requirement to report to the principal or
designee does not limit, and encourages, the authority of the staff meinber to respond to behavioral or
disciplinary incidents consistent with school or district policies and procedures for behavior management
and discipline.

Reporting by Students, Parents or Guardians. and Others
The entire Canton School district expects students, parents or guardians, and others who witness or
become aware of an instance ofalleged bullying or retaliation involving a student to report it to the
principal or designee. Students, parents or guardians, and others may request assistance from any statf
member to complete a written report, Students will be provided practical, safe, private and
age-appropriate ways to report and discuss an incident of bullying with a staff member, or with the
principal or designee.

[+

B. Responding to a report of alleged bullying or retaliation by students or staff.

1. Safety
Before fully investigating the allegations of alleged bullying or retaliation, the principal or designee will

take steps to assess the need to restore a sense of safety to the alleged target and/or to protect the alleged
target from possible further incidents. Reasonable responses to promote safety may include, but not be
limited to, creating a personal safety plan; pre-determining seating arrangements for the target and/or the
aggressor in the classroom, at lunch, or on the bus; identifying a staff member who will act as a “safe

BPIPPLANFY17 ’ Tuble of Contents

Page 9




person” for the target; and altering the alleged aggressor’s schedule and access to the target. The principal
or designee will take additional steps to promote safety during the course of and after the investigation, as
necessary,

The principal or designee will implement appropriate strategies for protecting from bullying or retaliation,
a student who has reported alleged bullying er retaliation, a student who has witnessed alleged bullying or
retaliation, 2 student who provides information during an investigation, or a student who has reliable
information about a reported act of alleged bullying or retaliation of or by a student. The Canton Public
Schools, or the designated BPIP Committee, will establish student safety planning policies and procedures,

2. Obligations to Notify Others
a. Notice to parents or guardians

Upon determining that bullying or retaliation has occurred, the principal or designee will promptly
notify the parents or guardians of the target and the aggressor of this, and of the procedures for
responding to it. There may be circumstances in which the principal or designee contacts parents
or guardians prior to any investigation. Notice will be consistent with state regulations at 603 CMR
49.00.

b. Notice to Another School or District
If the reported incident involves students from more than one school district, charter school,
non-public school, approved private special education day or residential school, or collaborative
school, the principal or designee first informed of the incident will promptly notify by telephone the
principal or designee of the other school(s) of the incident so that each school may take appropriate
action, All communications will be in accordance with state and federal privacy laws and
regulations, and 603 CMR 49,00.

¢. Notice to Law Enforcement
At any point after receiving a report of bullying or retaliation, including after an investigation, if
the principal or designee has a reasonable basis to believe that criminal charges may be pursued
against the aggressor, the principal will notify the local law enforcement agency. Notice will be
consistent with the requirements of 603 CMR 49.00 and locally established agreements with the
local law enforcement agency. Also, if an incident occurs on school grounds and involves a former
student under the age of 21 who is no longer enrolled in school, the principal or designee shall
contact the local law enforcement agency if he or she has a reasonable basis fo believe that criminal
charges may be pursued against the aggressor..

In making this determination, the principal will, consistent with the Plan and with applicable school
or district policies and procedures, consult with the school resource officer, if any, and other
individuals the principal or designee deems appropriate.

C. Investigation
The principal or designee will investigate promptly all reports of alleged bullying or retaliation and, in doing

so, will consider all available information known, including the nature of the allegation(s) and the ages of the
students involved.

During the investigation the principal or designee will, among other things, interview students, staff, witnesses,
parents or guardians, and others as necessary. The principal or designee (or whoever is conducting the

investigation) will remind the alleged aggressor, target, and witnesses that retaliation is strictly prohibited and
will result in disciplinary action.

BPIPPLIAN FY17 Table of Contents

Page 10




[U

Interviews may be conducted by the principal or designee, other staff members as determined by the principal
or designee, and in consultation with the school counselor, as appropriate. To the extent practicable, and given
his/her obligation to investigate and address the matter, the principal or designee will maintain confidentiality
during the investigative process. The principal or designee will maintain a written record of the investigation.

Procedures for investigating reports of allegedbullying and retaliation will be consistent with school or district
policies and procedures for investigations. If necessary, the principal or designee will consult with legal counsel
about the investigation,

. Determinationg

The principal or designee will make a determination based upon all of the facts and circumstances. If, after
investigation, bullying or retaliation is substantiated, the principal or designee will take steps reasonably

calculated to prevent recurrence and to ensure that the target is not restricted in participating in school or in
benefiting from school activities. The principal or designee will:

1) Determine what remedial action is required, if any, and
2) Determine what responsive actions and/or disciplinary action is necessary.

Depending upon the circumstances, the principal or designee may choose to consult with the appropriate
personnel, and the target’s or aggressor’s parents or guardians, to identify any underlying social or emotional
issue(s) that may have contributed to the bullying behavior and to assess the level of need for additional social
skills development. In addition, it will be determined if a referral needs to be made to the Title IX Compliance
Officer.

The principal or designee will promptly notify the parents or guardians of the target and the aggressor about
the results of the investigation and, if bullying or retaliation is found, what action is being taken to prevent
further acts of bullying or retaliation. All notice to parents must comply with applicable state and federal
privacy laws and regulations. Because of the legal requirements regarding the confidentiality of student
records, the principal or designee cannot report specific information to the target’s parent or guardian about
the disciplinary action taken unless it involves a “stay away” order or other directive that the target must he
aware of in order to report violations,

The principal or designee shall inform the parent or guardian of the target about the Department of
Elementary and Secondary Education’s problem resolution system and the process for accessing that system,

regardless of the outcome of the bullying determination. http://www.doe.mass.edu/pga

E. Responses to Bullying
The following components enumerate the school’s or district’s chosen strategies for building students’ skills
and other individualized interventions that CPS incorporates in response to remediate or prevent further
bullying and retaliation For example.
1. Teaching Appropriate Behavior Through Skills-building
Upon the principal or designee determining that bullying or retaliation has occurred, the law requires
that the school or district use a range of responses that balance the need for accountability with the need
to teach appropriate behavior. M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370(d)(v). Skill-building approaches that the principal
or designee may consider include:
»  Offering individualized skill-building sessions based on the school’s/district’s anti-bullying
curricula,
BPIPPLAN FY17 Table of Contents

Page 11




* Providing relevant educational activities for individual students or groups of students, in
consuitation with guidance counselors and other appropriate school personnel.

* Implementing a range of academic and nonacademic positive behavioral supports to help
students understand pro-social ways to achieve their goals,

* Meeting with parents and guardians to engage parental support and to reinforce the
anti-bullying curricula and social skills building activities at home.

* Adopting behavioral plans to include a focus on developing specific social skills.

* Making a referral for evaluation,

g

Taking Disciplinary Action
If the principal or designee decides that disciplinary action is appropriate, the disciplinary action will be

determined on the basis of facts found by the principal or designee, including the nature of the conduet,
the age of the student(s) involved, and the need to balance accountability with the teaching of
appropriate behavior. Discipline will be consistent with the Plan and with the each school’s code of
conduct.

Discipline procedures for students with disabilities are governed by the federal Individuals with
Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEA), which should be read in cooperation with state laws
regarding student discipline,

If the principal or designee determines that a student knowingly made a false allegation of bullying or
retaliation, that student may be subject to disciplinary action.

i

Promoting Safety for the Target and Others

The principal or designee will consider what adjustments, if any, are needed in the school environment
to enhance the target's sense of safety and that of others as well. One strategy that the principal or
designee may use is to increase adult supervision at transition times, less structured times (recess, lunch,
etc...) and in locations where bullying is known to have occurred or is likely to occur.

Within a reasonable period of time following the determination and the ordering of remedial and/or
disciplinary action, the principal or designee will contact the target to determine whether there has been
a recurrence of the prohibited conduct and whether additional supportive measures are needed. If so,
the principal or designee will work with appropriate school staff to implement those supportive
measures immediately. )

VL. COLLABORATION WITH FAMILIES

Canton Public Schools will develop effective plans which will include strategies to engage and collaborate with
students’ families in order to increase the capacity of the schools to prevent and respond to bullying. Resources
for families and communication with them are essential aspects of effective collaboration. As required by law,
Canton Public Schools will continually strive to meet state standards and to include provisions for informing
parents or guardians about the bullying prevention and intervention curricula used by the Canton Public

Schools including:

1. How parents and guardians can reinforce the curricula at home and support the school and/or district

plan.

2, The dynamics of bullying.

3. Online safety and cyberbullying. Parents and guardians must also be notified in writing each year
about the student-related sections of the bullying prevention and intervention plan, in the language(s)
most prevalent among the parents or guardians. In cur initiative to collaborate with families, Canton
Public Schools will take into account age, climate, socio-economic factors, linguistic, and cultural

BPIP PLAN FY 17 Tuble of Contents

Page 12




make-up of students and their parents regarding these collaborations.

Furthermore, Canton Public Schools will develop a plan that will offer a resource and information network for
parents and guardians. There will also be a timely notification system in place to ensure awareness of all parent
and community programs/presentations,

A. Parent education and resources
Canton Public Schools will offer education programs for parents and guardians that are focused on the
parental components of the anti-bullying curricula and any social competency curricula used. The programs
will be offered in collaboration with the CAPT, School Councils, Special Education Parent Advisory Council,
and any other relevant organization,
B. Notification requirements
Each year Canton Public Schools will inform parents or guardians of enrolled students about the
anti-bullying curricula that are being used. This notice will include information about the dynamics of
bullying, inchading cyberbullying and online safety, Canton Public Schools will send parents written notice
each year about the student-related sections of the Plan and of the Internet safety policy. All notices and
information made available to parents or guardians will be in hard copy and electronic formats, and will be
available in the language(s) most prevalent among parents or guardians, The Plan and related information
will be posted on the Canton Public School’s website. Notification of presentations will be published in the
Iocal print media, as well as on Cable Access, In addition, other electronic communication (emails, texting,
etc...) will be used whenever "
possible,
VII. PROHIBITION AGAINST BULLYING AND RETALIATION

Acts of bullying, which include cyberbullying, are prohibited:

a) On school grounds and property immediately adjacent ¢o school grounds, at a school-sponsored or
school-related activity, function, or program whether on or off school grounds, at a school bus stop, on
a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased, or used by a school district or school; or through the use of
technology or an electronic device owned, leased, or used by a school district or school, and

b) At alocation, activity, function, or program that is not school-related through the use of technology or
an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by a school district or school, if the acts create a
hostile environment at school for the target or witnesses, infringe on their rights at school, or
materially and substantially disrupt the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

Retaliation against a person who reports an incident of alleged bullying, provides information during an
investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying is also prohibited.

As stated in M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, nothing in this Plan requires the district or schoel to staff any non-school
related activities, functions, or programs.

VIIE. PROBLEM RESOLUTION SYSTEM:

Any parent wishing te file a claim/concern or seeking assistance outside of the district may do so with the

BPIP PLANFY 17 ' Iuble of Contents

Page 13




Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Program Resolution System (PRS). That information can
be found at: http://www.doe.mass.edu/pga, emails can be sent to compliance@doe.mass.edu or individuals can
call 781-338-3700. Hard copies of this information is also available at the Superintendent’s office.

IX. DEFINITIONS

Aggressor is a student who engages in bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation.

Bullying, as defined in M.G.L. c. 71, § 370, is the repeated use by one or more students of a written, verbal, or
electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a target that:

Causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target’s property.

Places the target in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself or of damage to his or her property.
Creates a hostile environment at school for the target.

Infringes on the rights of the target at school, or

Materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

o ae T

Bystander is a student (or students) who participate in the bullying incident(s) via observation or spectatorship.

Cyberbullying, is bullying through the use of technology or electronic devices such as telephones, cell phones,
computers, and the Internet. It includes, but is not limited to, email, instant messages, text messages, and
Internet postings. See M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370 for the legal definition of cyberbullying,

Hostile environment, as defined in M,G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, is a situatien in which bullying causes the school
environment to be permeated with intimidation, ridicule, or insult that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to
alter the conditions of a student’s education.

Retaliation is any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment directed against a student who reports bullying,
provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about
bullying,

Staff inciudes, but is not limited ¢o, educators, administrators, counselors, school nurses, cafeteria workers,
custodians, bus drivers, athletic coaches, advisors to extracurricular activities, support staff, or
paraprofessionals.

Target is a student against whom bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation has been perpetrated.

Upstander is a student or students who actively choose to remove or support the target in some form during a
bullying incident,. :

X. RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS

Consistent with state and federal laws, and the policies of the school or district, no person shall be
discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town or in obtaining the advantages, privilege and :
courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or sexual e

BPIPPLANFY 17 _ Table of Contents [

Page 14



orientation. Nothing in the Plan prevents the school or district from taking action to remediate discrimination
or harassment based on a person’s membership in a legally protected category under local, state, or federal
law, or school or district policies.

In addition, nothing in the Plan is designed or intended to limit the authority of the school or district to take
disciplinary action or other action under M.G.L. c. 71, §§ 37H or 37H%, other applicable laws, or local school

or district policies in response to violent, harmful, or disruptive behavior, regardless of whether the Plan covers
the behavior.

BPIP PLANFY 17 Tuble of Contents

Pagels -




Bullying Part Il

Procedure and Guidelines




IL

1L

IV,

VI

VIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction

A. Definitions - Bullying TerminolOgy.......cooovvviiiiiniiiiinrns
B. Confidentiality.......ovveriiiiiiii

Academic and Non-Academic Preventative Activities

A. Curricula Noiification Requirements................ e e
ST RNV (1111013 s VU PPN
C. Parent Workshops.....oooiiiiiiii e
D. Parent Education and ReSOUTCES. .. ouverrieverrcaarsirianrinrirarirnsraineinsn

Professional Development and Training

A, StAff TIAIMING . ..ovv e e
B. On-going Professional Development............vvviiivveseniaiinncennnenennnns
C. WIIHED NOTOE. . vev vt eerevre et cnene sttt ia s e na s e an e na e

Intervention-Guidelines/Procedures for Dealing with Bullying

mOoawEs

Access to Resources and Services

A, Tdentifying RESOUTCES. ...uurvurenrrrrnvrrtiiiri st
B. Counseling and Other SeIvices........ocvceevveenonn TP
C.  Students with Disabilities.....covvrr i
D. Qutside Services....... SO PSP P

Relationship to Other Laws........ccoviiiininiin e

Appendices

Individual Behavior Plan ..

ToOmHDOwE

Bullying is Prohibited.........coooiiiin
Notification and Reporting/ Response Gmdellnes ................................
Retaliation or False ACCUSAtIONS. ... vriiiveirierreirae i rcrn e
Target ASSISTAICE. ... uvvvivnieir i riea st
CONSEqUENCES. ..vvvnereririivieinaanns R I PRIT

. Bully Reporting and Investigation Process. ...
Flow Chart Procedure for Responding to a Bullying Incident..................
Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form...... ..o,
Bullying Investigation FOrm. ...
Behavioral Remediation Agreement ..............................................

Consequences of Bullying.........ooooiiviii
Procedural guidelines for Students with Disabilities............ooooeernninen




L. INTRODUCTION

The Canton Public Schools are committed to providing our educational community (students, staff,
parents, and visitors) with a safe and equal opportunity to their educational pursuits and activities. The
Canton Community recognizes that for children to learn, grow, and reach their full potential there must be
several key components in place. At the forefront of these important pieces are parameters that help to
safeguard the physical, social, emotional, and intellectual safety of each and every student. Promoting
and encouraging each person in our educational family to be their best EVERY DAY is at the core of our
educational foundation. Qur goal is to encourage, educate, and motivate our students to make positive
daily decisions and develop into happy and productive members of society. This policy has been
developed to ensure that our stadents learn to treat others with respect in a safe learning environment free
from any form of bullying or any other type of harassment.

The Canton Public Schools recognize that certain students may be more vulnerable to becoming a target
of bullying or harassment based on actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, including race,
color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, socioeconomic status, homelessness, academic status,
gender identity or expression, physical appearance, pregnant or parenting status, sexual orientation,
mental, physical, developmental or sensory disability, or by association with a person who has or is
perceived to have 1 or more of these characteristics.

A Definitions - Bullying Terminology

Several of the following definitions are copied directly from M.G.L. c. 71, § 370, as noted below and
encouraged by the law itself, Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010 — an Act Relative to Bullying in Schools.
Schools or districts may add specific language to these definitions to clarify them, but may not alter
their meaning or scope.

Aggressor is a student who engages in bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation.

Bullying, as defined in M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, is the repeated use by one or more students of a written,
verbal, or electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at
a target that: '

Causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target’s property.
¢ Places the target in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself or of damage to his or her
property. -
Creates a hostile environment at school for the target.
Infringes on the rights of the target at school, or
Materjally and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of
a school.

Bystander is a student (or students) who participate in the bullying incident(s) via observation or
spectatorship.

Cyberbullying, is bullying through the use of technology or electronic devices such as telephones, cell
phones, computers, and the Internet. It includes, but is not limited to, email, instant messages, text
messages, and Internet postings. See M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370 for the legal definition of cyberbullying.

Hostile environment, as defined in M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, is a situation in which bullying causes the
school environment to be permeated with intimidation, ridicule, or insult that is sufficiently severe or
pervasive to alter the conditions of a student’s education.

Retaliation is any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment directed against a student who reports
bullying, provides information during an investigation.of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable




IL

information about bullying.

Staff includes, but is not limited to, educators, administrators, counselors, schoel nurses, cafeteria
workers, custodians, bus drivers, coaches, advisors to extracurricular activities, support staff, or
paraprofessionals.

Target is a person against whom bullying, cyber bullying, or retaliation has been perpetrated.

Upstander is a person who actively chooses to support the target in some manner during a bullying
situation.

. Confidentiality

Reports of bullying, harassment, sexual haragsment, discrimination, or hate crime should be kept
completely confidential, involving as few people as possible, with the goal of protecting the target
and stopping the behavior.

The District will respect the privacy of the complainant, the subject(s) of the complaint, and the
witnesses to the extent possible consistent with its obligations under federal and state law and
regulations, its Policy to investigate, report, and take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action,
and with applicable state and federal confidentiality laws and student record regulations.

(FERPA)

ACADEMIC AND NON-ACADEMIC PREVENTATIVE ACTIVITIES

A. Curricula Notification Requirements

Each year Canton Public Schools will inform parents or guardians of enrolled students about the anti-
bullying curricula that are being used. This notice will include information about the dynamics of
bullying, including cyberbullying and online safety. Canton Public Schools will send parents written
notice each year about the student-related sections of this Policy and of the Internet safety policy. All
notices and information made available to parents or guardians will be in electronic formats and/or,
hard copy and upon request will be available in the language(s) most prevalent among parents or
guardians. The policy and related information will be posted on the Canton Public School’s website.
Notification of presentations will be published in the local print media, as well as on Cable Acoess.

In addition, other electronic communication (emails, texting, etc...) will be used whenever possible.

B. Curriculum

PreK-12 bully prevention curriculum and education is under constant review, The Canton Wellness
Department supplies bully prevention, violence prevention, and decision-making education in grades
preK-12. To further encourage appropriate behavior K-3 educational classes provide age appropriate
bully prevention and anti-violence curriculum in collaboration with Wellness classes in an
interlocking evidence-based curriculum. Evidence-based programming is preferred and offered
wherever possible. K-12 curricula, which are subject to change as new and innovative curricula is
reviewed and discovered, directed toward grades PreK-12 currently include the following:

For questions or feedback regarding up-to-date curricula utilized in the Canton Public Schools
please visit the CPS District website (www.cantonma.org) or contact the Wellness Coordinator.

C. Parent Workshops

Canton Public Schools bullying plans include strategies to engage and collaborate with students’
families in order to increase the capacity of the schools to prevent and respond to bullying. Resources




II1.

5
for families and communication with them are essential aspects of effective collaboration. In our
collaborations with families, Canton Public Schools take into account age, climate, socio-economic
factors, linguistic, and cultural make-up of students and their parents regarding these collaborations.
As required by law, Canton Public Schools continually strives to meet state standards and to include
provisions for informing parents or guardians about the bullying prevention and intervention curricula
used by the Canton Public Schools including:

» How parents/guardians can reinforce the curricula at home and support the school and/or
district plan.

» The dynamics of bullying.

¢ Online safety and cyberbullying.

Furthermore, Canton Public Schools offers resources and programming for parents and guardians.

Parent Education and Resources

Canton Public Schools offers education and skill-based programs for parents and guardians that are
focused on the parental components of the bullying prevention curricula and any social competency
curricula used. The programs are offered in collaboration with the CAPT, School Councils, Special
Education Parent Advisory Council, and any other relevant organizations.

For questions or feedback regarding up-to-date programs utilized in the Canton Public Schools
please visit the CPS District website (www.cantonma.org) or contact the Wellness Coordinator.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

A. Staff Training

The Canton Public Schools provides annual training for all staff that clearly outlines the
responsibilities that staff members have to contribute to the perpetuation of a safe and welcoming
school environment. The training will include:

e Overview of what bullying is and how staff can help to prevent it or steps they must take to
intervene

* Overview of the steps that each building principal/designee will follow upon receipt of a
bullying or retaliation report

o Title IX training annually

District staff members hired after the start of the sehool year will be required to participate in a
school-based training during the school year in which they are hired, unless they can demonstrate
participation in an acceptable and comparable program within the last two years. Staff trainings
will be recorded and archived for professional training purposes.

B. On-going Professional Development

The goal of professional development is to establish a common understanding of tools necessary for
staff to create a school climate that promotes safety, civil communication, and respect for differences.
Professional development will build the skills of staff members to prevent, identify, and respond to
bullying., As required by M.G.L. c. 71, § 370, the content of professional development for the
Canton Public School system, and each school building within, is based upon research and evidence-
based practices, for example:

o Developmentally (or age-) appropriate strategies to prevent bullying.
e Developmentally (or age-) appropriate strategies for immediate, effective interventions to




Iv.

stop bullying incidents.

* Information regarding the complex interaction and power differential that can take place
between and among an aggressor, target, and witnesses to the bullying.

e Research findings on bullying, including information about specific categories of students
who have been shown to be particularly at risk for bullying in the school environment.

e Information on the incidence and nature of cyberbullying.

e Internet safety issues as they relate to cyberbullying.

Professional development addresses ways to prevent and respond to bullying or retaliation for
students with disabilities that must be considered when developing students’ Individualized Education
Programs (IEPs). This will include a particular focus on the needs of students with autism or students
whose disability affects social skills development.

Additional areas identified by the Canton Public Schools for professional development include:

Promoting and modeling the use of respectful language.

Fostering an understanding of and respect for diversity and difference.

Building respectful relationships and communicating with families.

Coustructively managing classroom behaviors.

Using positive behavioral intervention strategies.

Applying constructive disciplinary practices.

Teaching students skills including positive communication, anger management, and empathy
for others. i

* Engaging students in school or classroom planning and decision-making.

s Maintaming a safe and caring classroom for all students.

C. Written notice

The Canton Public Schools will provide all students, faculty, staff and families with annual elecironic
and/or written notice of the Bully Prevention and Intervention Policy by publishing it in the student
handbook and on the CPS website. It will be reviewed and updated as needed each year in accordance
with national and state law, local policy and school safety survey data collection that will be
employed every three years to determine progress, programming and necessary changes.

INTERVENTION - GUIDELINES/PROCEDURES FOR DEALING WITH BULLYING

Please refer to:

Appendix A: BULLYING REPORTING AND INVESTIGATION GUIDELINES and
Appendix B: PROCEDURE FOR RESONDING TO A REPORT OR WITNESSING OF
BULLYING.

In school systems, bullying may cross many lines. The situation may be an instance of student to
student, student to staff member, staff member to student, or staff member to staff member,

Guidelines for dealing with any of these charges are as follows:

A. Bullying is prohibited;

"On school grounds;

On property immediately adjacent to school grounds;

At school-sponsored or school-related activities, functions, or programs;

At school bus stops;

On school buses or other vehicles owned, leased or used by the school district; or,

Through the use of technology or an electronic device owned, leased or used by the Canton




Public schools;

Bullying and cyber-bullying are prohibited at a location, activity, function or program that is not
school-related or through the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased or
used by the Canton Public Schools if the act or acts in question:

Create a hostile environment at school for the target;

Infringe on the rights of the target at school; and/or

Materially and substantially disrupt the education process or the orderly operation of a
school.

B. Notification, Reporting and Response Guidelines:

1.

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Staff members must always take every report of behavior that may be bullying or
retaliation seriously and take action immediately.

It is up to the principal or his/her designee to determine if the reported behavior meets
the definition of bullying,

All reports of suspected bullying must be documented on the reporting form. Please
refer to Appendix C.

If bullying is suspected (student to student) and is reported to a staff member other than an
administrator, the staff member should inform the Building Principal or Superintendent
Designee and complete the Suspicion of bullying form.

If bullying is suspected (staff member to student) and is brought to the attention of any stafl
member, that staff member should notify the Building Principal or Superintendent Designee.
The Suspicion of Bullying Form will be completed as determined by the Building Principal
or Superintendent Designee. She/he will then determine if the complaint warrants further
investigation.

If bullying is suspected (student to staff member) the staff member should notify the Building
Principal or Superintendent Designee and complete the Suspicion of bullying form.

In a situation involving a charge of staff member to staff member bullying the staff member
should notify the Building Principal or the Superintendent Designee. The Suspicion of
bullying form will be completed as determined by the Building Principal or Superintendent
Designee. She/he will then determine if the complaint warrants further investigation.

In all situations in which bullying is suspected, the alleged the target should describe in
writing the specifics of the complaint to ensure that the subsequent investigation is focused
on the relevant facts. Oral and anonymous complaints will be reviewed but are inherently
difficult to investigate and may not be procedurally fair; as a result no disciplinary action
shall be taken on anonymous complaints unless independently verified by clear and
convincing evidence. All other complaints will be reviewed based on a preponderance of
evidence standard. Complaints need to be in written form and should the complainant need
assistance writing the complaint then a scribe will be provided.

Once a suspicion has been reported, including charges of physical harassment as well as
threats to a person's safety or position in the school or work environment, the following
course of action should be taken:

a. Under any invesiigation of allegations of possible bullying or retaliation, school
personnel will consider if there is an immediate need to initiate steps to support




the alleged target and/or protect the alleged target from further potential
incidents of concern. In taking such action, however, the rights of both the
alleged target and alleged aggressor will be considered fully.

b. The Building Principal or designee should investigate the charge through

discussions with the individuals involved and should use the Suspicion of

~ Bullying Reportiing Form to document the alleged incident. Please refer to
Appendix D. In situations involving a staff member, he/she should be informed
of his/her rights to have a third party present at the time of the discussion. In
situations involving students, the Principal or designee should interview the
reporting staff member, alleged target, witness(es)/bystander(s) and alleged
aggressor. Parents will be informed of the situation and invited to participate in
discussions. It is important that the situation be resolved as confidentially and as
quickly as the circumstances permit. Follow-up verification procedures will be
explained.

c. The matter shall be documented in a manner consistent with the behavior, the
impact of the behavior on the alleged target and the school, and the digciplinary
consequences imposed by the administration. Failure to comply after a
resolution meeting will result in appropriate discipline.

8) Ifafter formal discussion with the involved parties, the Building Principal or Designee
determines that further action must be taken, the following would occur:

a. In instances involving student to student or student to staff member bullying, the
student would be held to the discipline code of the school. Legal action may also
be initiated at this point.

b. Any decision regarding further action will be documented on the INDIVIDAUL
BEHAVIOR PLAN and/or the BEHAVIORAL MEDIATION
AGREEMENT. Piease refer to Appendices E and F.

¢. In instances involving staff member to student and stafl member to staff member,
bullying findings would be reported to the Superintendent of Scheols or
Designee for further action. Legal action may also be initiated at this point,

C. Retaliation or False Accusations

Retaliation or false accusations against a person who reports bullying, provides information during an
investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying shall be prohibited.
If it occurs, it could be considered grounds for removal from the educational setting for a student or
dismissal of staff personnel. A referral to law enforcement may be mad

D. Target Assistance:

The Canton Public Schools encourages counseling and/or referral to appropriate services, including
student support services, guidance, special education team, civil rights officer, and school resource
officer, academic intervention, and protection to students, both targets and aggressors, affected by
bullying, as necessary, '

The Canton Public Schools recognize that certain students may be more vulnerable to becoming a
target of bullying or harassment based on actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, including
race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, socioeconomic status, homelessness, academic
status, gender identity or expression, physical appearance, pregnant ot parenting status, sexual
orientation, mental, physical, developmental or sensory disability, or by association with a person
who has or is perceived to have 1 or more of these characteristics.




For further information about these guidelines or help with sexual harassment, bullying, or hazing
problems, or any other form of harassment, consult: the Superintendent of Schools or Designee at
781-821-5060.

E. Consequences:

If it has been determined that bullying has occurred, the aggressor shall be subject to disciplinary
action. The action taken for the individual will be through the discipline procedure as noted in the
student handbooks. Please refer to Appendix G to view THE CONSESQUENCES OF
BULLYING.

If the investigation does not substantiate the complaint of bullying, no record of the incident will be

placed in the aggressor’s personal file unless requested by the alleged aggressor, but will be kept on
file in the principal’s office and office of student services

. ACCESS TO RESOURCES AND SERVICES

A. Identifying Resources.

Each school building has a Crisis Response Team and/or an At-Risk Team that meets on a regular
basis to discuss students who are at risk for any number of reasons. These teams focus on individual
issues and seek to establish plans for intervention utilizing existing resources as well as collaborative
creative problem solving to establish alternatives for intervention and remediation.

B. Counseling and Other Services.

Canton Public Scheols is committed to ensuring that the social emotional needs of both bullying
targets and of aggressors are addressed. All students (PreK-12) have access to counseling staff and
services within each building (school psychologists, school counselors, adjustment counselors,
nurses, school resource officer, and other professional staff). These professionals will;

¢ Develop safety plans for students who have been targets of bullying

»  Work with students to develop their social skill strategices as a way of promoting positive
communication skills. This in turn will promote coping skills for a student who has been
bullied. _

e Intervene and address the aggressors of bullying, focusing on the function of the behavior and
address techniques to redirect this behavior. -

*» When deemed necessary, counseling staff will implement behavioral intervention plans for
specific students identified as aggressors.

¢ Incorporate culturally and linguistically appropriate resources as individual student needs are
identified.

C. Students with Disabilities,

The special education team will consider the student's level of social skills development and disability
when Initiating or reviewing the student's Individualized Education Program. The team will determine
whether or not the student navigates peer relationships in ways that are positive and developmentally
appropriate. The team will also determine if the student displays a deficit in the area of social
development and if their disability is likely to make the student more vulnerable to bullying,
harassment, and/or teasing. If so, the team will incorporate a developed and agreed upon safety plan
and appropriate interventions into the student’s IEP to address help remedy the identified deficit(s).

Please refer to Appendix H to view the PROCEDURAL GUIDELINES FOR STUDENTS WITH




10
DISABILITIES.

D. Qutside services.

Resources/information is available on the district website to assist parents seeking outside services. It
helps students and families access appropriate and timely services.

Relationship to Other Laws

Consistent with state and federal laws, and the policies of the school or district, no person shall be
discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town or in obtaining the advantages,
privilege and courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, religion, national
origin, or sexual orientation. Nothing in the Policy prevents the school or district from taking action
to remediate discrimination or harassment based on a person’s membership in a legally protected
category under local, state, or federal law, or school or district policies.

In addition, nothing in the Policy is designed or intended to limit the authority of the school or district
to take disciplinary action or other action under M.G.L. ¢. 71, §§ 37H or 37H'%, 37H % other
applicable laws, or local school or district policies in response to violent, harmful, or disruptive
behavior, regardless of whether the Policy covers the behavior.

Applicable Laws of Massachusetts that help navigate the situation and protect the integrity and right
of ALL students to a reasonable education free of any physical, social, or emotional interference:

¢ Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010: An Act Relative to Bullying in Schools (The Governer of
Massachusetts guarantees a comprehensive bully-free education.)

e Chapter 12, Section 11h (Attorney General guarantees the civil rights to an education free and
clear of intimidation or interference.)

o Chapter 265, Section 43 (Considers willful and intentional distress a crime and therefore
punishable by law.)

o Chapter 265, Section 43a (Considers a second conviction of intentional dIStress and
potentially more punishable by law.)

»  Chapter 266, Section 37E (Considers any type of annoyance or harassment via phone or
technology as a crime, especially when impersonation is involved.)

o Chapter 269, Section 17 (Considers hazing as a punishable crime with fines or some
type of confined sentence.)




APPENDICES

APPENDIX A

Bullying Reporting and Investigation Guidelines

The following provides general guidelines for investigating situations where bullying is alleged. The
Principal/designees will make adjustments to the process as necessary to conduct an effective and timely
investigation.

Step One: COMPLETE SUSPICION OF BULLYING REPORTING

If an adult witnesses or reports ingident: -

Staff member must complete Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form (see appendix) and gives
to the principal or designee.

If a student reports alleged incident to staff member;

Staff member acknowledges the student’s concerns.

Staff member determines if there are safety issues that must be addressed immediately.

Student or staff member must complete Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form and give to
designated administrative staff.

Staff are not responsible for investigating susplclon of bullying behavior nor are they responsible
for determinations.

Step Two: CONDUCT INVESTIGATION

Prepare to interview students:

Principal or designee completes the Bullying Investigation Form (see appendix).

Review students’ discipline and school records (include: TEP, 504s) to see if there are prior
similar incidents. )

Consult with additional staff (¢.g., SPED Liaison, counselor, nurse, art, wellness).

Determine which additional staff, if any, needs to be present during student interviews and/or
decision process (¢.g., SPED Liaison, other administrator, staff member of same gender as target,
etc.).

Take reasonable precautions to ensure that students are unable to communicate or undermine the
investigation (e.g., prevent access to cell phones, call all students to the office at the same time,
but interview separately).

Determine which students need to be interviewed. Include alleged target(s), alleged aggressor(s),
and bystander(s).

Interview all students involved, one at a time,

Interview target of bullying:

o Ask Target to complete a written narrative of the event, if appropriate.
¢ Read back to the student a summary of his or her account to ensure accuracy of notes.
¢ Interview the target first, without the presence of the aggressor.
Encourage target to immediately report any additional incidents involving alleged aggressor.
« Mediation should generally not be used with bullying situations, and in no event without full
agreement of both students.
o Remind the alleged target that retaliation is strictly prohibited and will result in disciplinary
action,




Interview the student alleged aggressor of bullying, and witnesses if necessary:

¢ Ask alleged accused student to complete a written narrative of the event, if appropriate.

* Read back to the student a summary of his or her account to ensure accuracy of notes.

» Focus more on the alleged aggressor’s behavior, protecting the target’s confidentiality,

s In case of denial or if further information is needed, inferview the witnesses.

e Document the all witness accounts.

» Remind the alleged target and witnesses that retaliation is strictly prohibited and will result in
disciplinary action.

Contact parent of target and alleged aggressor as appropriate to the process

Step Three: DETERMINATION AND CONSEQUENCES IF NEEDED

L

Determine whether there is sufficient basis to conclude that the alleged conduct occurred, and if
so whether it meets the legal definition of bullying.

Review whether matter should be referred to Civil Rights Officer, law enforcement, special
education team or others.

If the student has an [EP, work with his or her liatson to determine whether the specialized
procedures apply or whether Team should convene to address the conduct.

Assign appropriate consequences and take other steps to prevent recurrence.

If the alleged aggressor denies the incident and there is insufficient evidence, tell the alleged
aggressor that you hope s/he is right and that nothing happened, but you will continue to monitor
the behavior, Stress that any retaliation is strictly prohibited and will lead to consequences.

Step Four: DOCUMENT INCIDENT AND CONSEQUENCES

Document outcome of investigation on the Bullying Investigation Form.

Working with the aggressor, and if applicable) document on the Individual Behavior Plan Form
and the Behavioral Remediation Form (see appendix).

The Behavioral Remediation Agreement Form includes warning against retaliation and repeat
offences. It should include disciplinary actions, strategies and supports to be used to stop the
bullying and restore a sense of safety for the target, including steps taken to ensure there is no
retaliation against the targets or reporters. See Appendix E.

Target will be notified of steps taken to prevent recurrence and provide for participation in
school.

Notify all staff members that work directly with these students to allow for appropriate
monitoring of the target and aggressor.

File all report forms with the district “point person”, or Superintendent designee [ Note: job
description and title of individual to be determined]




APPENDIX B

PROCEDURE FOR RESPONDING TO A REPORT OR WITNESSING OF BULLYING

* Students may be held responsible for
other inappropriate content




this form is to be confidentially maintained in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g.
Do NOT file in the cumulative record.

APPENDIX C 14

i i T S ol T
|Directions; The Canton Public Schools is committed to providing a safe envirenment to all members of our community.
Despite our best intentions, incidents between students, andfor staff do occur at times. If you wish to report a disturbing incident between
two or mare students, or with staff, complete this form and return it to the Principal at the individual's school. Contact the scheol for
additional information or assistance at any time. This form can be completed anonymously by omitting signature and name. EVERY

reported act of bullying will be investigated. Parents of aggressors and targets will be contacted in cases of confirmed bullying.

3

Date of Report:

Name of student/staff target: ’ Age: Grade:  [School:

Name(s) of alleged aggressor(s) (if known): Age: Grade: |School:

Name(s) of witness({es) (if known):

Where did the incident(s) happen? (choose all that apply)
0 On school property [ Online/via technology O Other:

[ Ona school bus [J On the way toffrom school
[J Ata school-sponsored activity or event off school property

Please provide a brief written description of what happened:

O Teasing 0 Threat/property damage O Stalking O  Public humiliation
{J Social exclusion [0 Theft/property damage [0 Physical viclence [0 Discrimination

00 Retaliation 0 Sexual or other harassment O  Intimidation

O Other:

What did the alleged aggressor(s) say or do? (Include dates. Attach a separate piece of paper if necessary)

Are there other indications of gateway behavior? (eye rolling, isolating, put down, ignoring, tattling)

What is the relationship of the alleged target to the alleged agg;'essor?

Did a physical injury result from this incident?
[ No ] Yes, but did not require medical attention
O Yes, and required medical attention. Please describe injury

Is there any additional information you would like to provide? Attach a separate piece of paper if necessary

Name of person reporting incident:

Telephone {optional): . E-mail {optional}:

Place an X in the appropriate box: [1 Student O Staff [0 Parent/guardian 0 Other
Signature: Date:

Administrative Action Taken: . Date:

Administrator;

rev 4/16




This form is to be confidentially maintained in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.8.C, § 1232g.
Do NOT file in the cumulative record.

APPENDIX D

15

Inveétigation start date:

Name of student/staff target: Age: Grade: School:

Name(s} of alleged aggressor(s) (if known): Age: Grade: School:

Investigation

[J Review and attach Suspicien of Bullying Reporting Form

J Review discipline and school records {include |EP, 504s)

O Consult as neaded with additional staff {e.g. SPED Liaison, counselor, nurse). Include names here:

3 Determine which additional staff, if any, needs to be present during student interviews and/or decision process.
tnclude names here:

] Consult all staff who provide direct instruction or services to student
[J Cenduct student interviews
O Read back to each person involved a summary of his or her account to ensure accuracy of your notes
[J If physical injuries have occurred, ask nurse to examine target.
[ The foliowing checked items are attached to this report:
e Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form (if available)
Print-outs of blog posts, social networking emails, etc.)
Copies of other evidence
Consultation with additional staff as needed.
Police report(s)

Written statements from interviewees, repaorters, etc.
Nurse report(s)

Determination
O Provide a brief description of the nature of the conduct:

[J Check all that apply:
O Repeated use by one or more students/staff of a written, verbal or electronic expression or a physical act

or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a target that: (must include at least one of the following}
Causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target's property;

Places the target in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself or damage to hisfher property;
Creates a hostile environment at school! for the target;

Infringes on the rights of the target at school; or

Materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school

OoooOonOoao

Involves an imbalance of perceived or real physical or social powsr between target and aggressor(s}
O Retaliation from reporting of previous incident
[} Provide a Final Determination

O Incidents did not meet the definition of bullying
[0 Conduct of concern will be addressed by principal or designee

[0 Bullying has occurred and will be addressed by principal or other designee

O Criminal bullying has occurred and police should be notified of possible criminal charges.
What is the relationship of alleged target to alleged aggressor?

e




This form Is to be confidentially maintained in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.5.C. § 1232g.
Do NOT file in the cumulative record.

16

,Fﬁeégonse Plan if any)
Disciplinary Actions:

Remediation Actions:
{1 Behavioral Remediation Agreement attached
O Individual Behavior Plan attached (if applicable)

Student/Staff Safety Actions:

Notification and Documentation
Parent({s)/Guardian(s) of the target
Parent(s)/Guardian(s) of the aggressor

School Information systems

School alert system (if necessary)

Counselor of targst

Counselor of aggressor

Special Education (for repeat offenders)

Police will be notified for possible criminal charges
Other schools, coaches, and staff members (as appropriate) for implementing the disciplinary, remediation,
and student safety actions. Please describe.

oooooogon

Administrator/Investigator Signature Date:

rev 4/16




This form is to be confidentially maintained in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232¢g.
Do NOT file in the cumutative record.

s
Date:
Name of student: Age: Grade: Schogl;

Reason for Behavior Remediation Agreement:

| agree to the following terms to change my behavior:

| wili need the following support(s) to help me meet the obligations of my agreement;

The consequences of me not meeting the expectations/terms listed above are as follows:

Student Signature: ) Date:
Parent/Guardian Signature: Daie:
Plan Coordinator: Date:

Administrator/lﬁvestigator Signature: Date:




This form is to be confidentially maintained in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act,
Do NOT file in the cumulative record,

i

Date:.

20 U.8.C. § 1232¢.

Name of student:

Grade:

School:

Reason for Behavior Plan:

Student Supports:

Daily

Weekly

Timeline/Monitoring of Plan and Progress towards Goal(s) .

Team Contact

Team Contact

Termination from Plan

Date of Termination:

Student Signature: Date:
Parent/Guardian Signature: Date:
Plan Coordinator: Date:
Administrator/Investigator Signature: Date:




CONSEQUENCES OF BULLYING *

APPENDIX G

Disciplinary Actions

Remediation Actions

Target Safety

¢  Admonishment, various
warning(s)

Meetings with parents

Strategies on how to
help students seek
support and network

¢ Temporary removal
from the classroom

Counseling

Clarification about
who will be notified

® | oss of privileges

Education including
strategies to avoid
repeating behavior.

Notify staff about
incident and danger of
further contact

¢ (Classroom or
administrative detention

Academic and
nonacademic positive
behavioral supports

Strategies to respond
if being bullied (e.g.,
script, role playing,
etc)

® In-school suspension
during the school week
or the weekend

Revision of IEP, if
applicable

Identifying trusted
adults and “safe
areas”

® Qut-of-school
suspension

Individual Behavior Plan
form is included in this
packet)

Education about
rights to be free of
retaliation and
reasonable
expectations about
social consequences
for being part of a
bullying investigation
(e.g., people will talk
about it, but they may
nof retaliate)

e Referral to Law
Enforcement

Referral o Special
Education (for conduct
that may be related to a
disability)

Periodic check-ins

® Expulsion or

Whole community

termination meetings
¢ Consequences for Identification and
repeat offenses empowerment of
bystanders
Education about
technology

* Note the following: Aggressors can be required to undergo counseling with an in-house
counselor (i.e., authorized school staff) as part of their remediation agreement or

behavior plan.

1. Notify the aggressor of his or her rights and the process to appeal your decision.

2. Meet with the target and/or bystanders to develop a safety plan,

Notification

3. Notify parent(s)/Guardian(s) of the target and aggressor about your
determination and—to the extent allowed by confidentiality laws—actions taken
to prevent recurrence of conduct that is of concern.




a. School staff is generally prohibited from informing the target or his/her
parents of disciplinary actions taken against a student, uniess it directly
relates to the target, e.g., a “stay away” order.

4. Consult with police, as needed.

a. There is no such thing as “criminal bullying” but we should consult with
police to determine whether the conduct at issue could result in criminal
charges such as criminal harassment, stalking, or assault/battery).

2.  Contact other schools, coaches, and staff members if necessary to implement
disciplinary, remediation, or student safety actions.

a. School administrators may generally not share information about students
with anyone except with "authorized school personnel” (this include
coaches and contracted service providers), who need the information in
order to perform their duties, Thus, administrators must review each
circumstance to determine the information each staff member needs to
know in order to perform their responsibilities.

Documentation

6. Each school has a "Bully Binder.” This binder is used to store incident and
investigation forms, alphabetically by aggressor and their date of graduation.

a. Discipline information is part of each student’s temporary record. Bullying
records are kept for six years.

b. Temporary records must be destroyed no later than seven years after the
student graduates, (this includes electronic records)

€. Your personal memory aids or “notes” are not part of the student record
unless you use them to communicate with others individuals, including
staff members. You may maintain these indefinitely

7. The school's student information system is used to document the results of your
investigation, including:

a. Determination of bullying or other conduct that needs to be addressed
b. Disciplinary, remediation, target safety actions taken.
8.  File copies of the following forms are found the school's “Bully Binder”:

a. Bullying Investigation Form

b. Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form (if any),

c. Behavioral Remediation Agreement (if any), and

d. Individual Behavior Plan (if any, for repeat offenders only)

TARGET(S) AGRESSOR(S)
Bullying Investigation Form : v v
Suspicion of Bullying Reporting Form v v
(if any)
Behavioral Remediation Agreement (if v
any) -
individual Behavior Plan (repeat v
offenders) -
Notify Special Education (repea v
offenders)
Copy of reports to counselor/Special Ed v . v

staff)




21
APPENDIX H

PROCEDURAL GUIDELINES FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

1, At the time that a student is determined to be eligible for special education, and Individual Education Program
(IEP) will be developed at the Team mesting, which includes the parent(s) and all required members.

2. All elements of a completed IEP will utilize the most up to date format provided by the DESE,

3. The Team Chairperson will ensure that the IEP is not changed at a higher administrative fevel within the district.

4, If the IEP Team evaluation indicates that a student's disability affects social skills development, or when the
student's disability make him or her vulnerable to bullying, harassment, or teasing, the IEP must speak to the
determination of the appropriate modifications, accommodations and/or specialized instructing needed to avoid
and respond to bullying, harassment, or teasing. )

5. When a student is identified with a disability on the autism spectrum, the IEP Team must speak to
determination of the appropriate modifications, accommodations and/or specialized instruction needed to avoid
and respond to bullying, harassment, or teasing.




File: JIH

SEARCHES AND INTERROGATIONS

Searches by Staff

Students' school lockers remain the property of the school and are sub-
ject to inspection at any time by school officials.

In the event that school administration has reasonable suspicion to be-
lieve that a student has in their possession or otherwise in their vehicle,
locker or belongings evidence that a student committed a crime or viola-
tion of the disciplinary policy, the school administrator may conduct a
search. Students, their bags, backpacks, lockers, electronic devices and
vehicles on school property or at school-sponsored event (on or off
school property) as well as other items/areas may be the subject of such
a search.

The Canton School Department may periodically utilize police K9’s un-
der the direction of the Canton Police Department to search school prop-
erty and the surrounding campus for the presence of controlled sub-
stances, drugs, weapons, or explosives.

School officials are authorized to question students about information
that is relevant to the performance of their duties, including enforcement

of school rules.

Formal Interrogations by Police

When law enforcement officials seek to question students during the
school day or periods of extracurricular activities, the school Principal or
their designee will make an effort contact the student's parent or guardi-
an so that the responsible individual may be notified of the situation.



Entrance Age

File: JEB

AGES FOR SCHOOL ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE

In an effort to allow for consideration of each child’s chronological age as well as individual
readiness to enter kindergarten or first grade the School Committee establishes the following
policy on entrance age:

1.

Children who will be five years of age on or before September 1 of the school
year during which they wish to enroll will be eligible to enter kindergarten in
September.

The admission of children whose birthdays fall after September 1 will be solely at
the discretion of the Superintendent.

A child entering grade one must be six years of age or older on or before
September 1st of the year of entrance into grade one. Children who do not meet
Canton's grade one age requirement but have successfully completed kindergarten
in Canton or in another public school and then relocated to Canton for grade one
will generally be accepted for grade one placement.

If a child has successfully completed Kindergarten in a private school and there
are data indicating that the child is ready for first grade and is within three months
of our age cutoff for first grade, a parent or guardian may request that the
appropriate elementary Principal review the child's readiness. This would involve
an examination of a portfolio of a child's work as well as a review of the child's
social readiness. Upon completion of this review, the Principal will make a
recommendation to the Superintendent based the child's readiness. If the
Superintendent agrees that there is sufficient evidence that the child is ready for
first grade, enrollment can proceed. However, if the child is judged not to be
ready, the student will only be allowed to enroll in Kindergarten. The decision of
the Superintendent is final and cannot be appealed.

Maximum Age for School Enrollment/Attendance

The maximum age for enrollment and/or attendance in the Canton Public Schools is age 21.

Ages for Compulsory Attendance

State law requires that all children be enrolled in grade one beginning in September of the
calendar year in which they attain the age of six (6) and that they attend school regularly until
they reach the age of sixteen (16). Under law, each School Committee must enforce the school
attendance of all children of compulsory school age residing in the town.




LEGAL REFS.:

M.G.L. 15:1G
Board of Education Regulations for Entrance to First Grade and
Kindergarten,

adopted 7/20/71




File: JICFC

Canton Bullying Prevention and Intervention Policy

LEADERSHIP EXPECTATIONS

Canton Public Schools recognizes that Leadership at every level will play a critical role in developing and
implementing the Bullying Prevention and Intervéntion Plan and Policy (BPIP) in the context of whole school and
community efforts to promote positive school climate. Leaders have a primary role in teaching students to be civil
to one another while promoting the understanding of, and respect for, diversity and difference. The Canton
Community recognizes and embraces the notion that leadership can and will emanate from our School Committee,
administration, staff, student body, and community members. However, Canton’s educational leaders will be
responsible for setting priorities and for staying up-to-date with current research on strategies to prevent and
effectively respond to bullying.

Public involvement in developing the Plan

In compliance with M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, the Canton Bully Prevention Plan has been developed in consultation with
teachers, school staff, professional support personnel, school volunteers, administrators, community representatives,
local law enforcement agencies, students, parents, and guardians (2010) and Act of 2014,

Adopted:

BPIP POLICY Table of Contents




Interim Superintendent of Schools

CANTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Debra L. Bromfield

Director of Student Services

Jennifer A. Henderson

Jayne A. Moore
Interim Director of Curriculum
and Instruction

Barry S. Nectow

960 Washington Street, Canton, MA, 02021 School Business Administrator

Telephone: 781-821-5060 .
Fax: 781-575-6500
wWww,canfonma,org

To develop students who are competent and creative thinkers, curious and confident lgarners, and compassionate citizens.

TO: The Canton Teachers' Association
FROM: Barry S. Nectow, Business Administrat /
SUBJECT: Recommendation from the Stipend Sub—ommittee

DATE: November 28, 2016

A Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) between the Canton School Committee and the Canton
Teachers' Association was signed on September 18, 2015, setting forth the terms and conditions of a
new three (3) year contract beginning September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2018. The MOA
established a Joint Study Committee to review the stipends in Appendices C and D and make
recommendations for changes based on the following criteria:

JOINT STUDY. COMMITTEE- AP ENDICES C AND I): The parties agree to convene a
joint committee to study:ahd take recomimerdatiohs for stipends paid under Appendices C and
- Th‘e CTA and the 'C_g_'mmittee shill each appoint three (3) desigrni¢es to serve on such joint
committee. The goal of thig coinmitige is to establish internal-equity for all stipended activities.
The corrimiittee shall conduct a survey among the individuals (ddvisors and coaches) who
currently receive stip_é_:ﬁ;ls‘ for activities under Appendicés C and D and will consider the

following factors that Will serve as ribrics for determining stipend adjustments:

1. Time the advisor/coach spends actually engaged in the activity with students
2. The nm:ri'bejr; of stidents -parficipating' in such activity |
3.  The amount of time spent on travelling with students for sﬁch activity (i.e. away

games, events) '

For coml?a!lison purposes, the committee will determine benchmark stipend rates in the following
communities: Dedham, Foxboro, Milton, Needham, Norwood, Randolph, Sharon, Stoughton,
Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood.

The committee will make recomrmendations as 1o the ratio of advisors/coaches to students, taking -
into account safety and effectiveness factors. ‘ :

'I‘h.c co_m_r_hittée_ will also make récommeh@atibns regarding which activities that are not currently
being paid a stipend as to which activities should be stipended based on the rubrics above and
shall also make a recommendation for a process for funding activities in the future,

The committee Will comiplete its study and make its recommendations to the parties by no later
fha.n Decemt‘aer 31, 2015. The parties will then meet promptily to negotiate over the
implementation of the commitice’s recommendations,




Stipend Sub-Committee Proposal
Monday, November 28, 2016
Page 2

The committee was formed as follows:

Barry Nectow, Chair
Patty Willis

Danny Erickson

Lori Mooney
Kaitlyn Aspell

Ed McDonough

Ida Pappas

Jayne Moore

The committee had its first meeting on Qctober 30, 2015. During the first meeting, tasks were
assigned to committee members, primarily consisting of researching area towns for information about
stipend calculation methodology and comparable data.

In December 2015, the committee requested an extension to the end of the school year, in order to
complete their work.

The committee met several times throughout the winter and spring and completed its work in late
‘May. This memo includes a proposal to modify the stipends outlined in Appendix C & D to reflect
time on task. Additionally, stipends no longer applicable were eliminated or combined with other

~ stipends to more closely match the role or assignments.

The committee researched area towns and found a wide range of approaches in determining the
amount of extra-curricular and athletic stipends.

Extra-Curricular Including Performing Arts - Appendix C

Ida Pappas, the K-12 Director of Performing Arts, lead the effort to revise the performing arts
stipends. She compared several data elements including:

* Reviewing the stipends from area towns;

= Number of days and hours dedicated to the stipend task;

» Necessity for the stipend position. '

Ida’s research and analysis produced the proposal included herein. The stipend grid for performing
arts is organized based on the number of days/week and the amount of time the advisor or stipend
recipient spends earning the stipend. There are ten (10) categories with a stipend amount assigned
fo each.

Athletics — Appendix D

The committee reviewed material from area towns as well as a spreadsheet detailing the number of
hours each CHS coach works during the season. The proposal includes restructuring Appendix D as
follows:

1. The committee found the Canton athletic program needed a freshman and junior varsity head
coach position, which many area towns have in their contracts. The contract is currently silent
on the amount paid to freshman and junior varsity head coach position and the practice has

The Canton Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age or disability. @
Equal Opportunity Employer (EOE)




Stipend Sub-Committee Proposal
Monday, November 28, 2016
Page 3

been to pay each the same amount as an assistant coach. The committee found this to be-
unfair, based on the amount of work the freshman and junior varsity head coaches do
compared to an assistant coach. :

2. The proposal added a 5% step, which is step 4 added between step 3 and step 5, in order to
add an additional year before a coach reaches step 5, the highest step. Additionally, the
amount of pay on each step is based off of step 5 and is a percentage of step 5.

3. The last change to Appendix D is reduce the number of categories from six to five. The effect
of the reduction of categories is to more closely align sports with similar numbers of days and
hours from the coaching staff.

Existing assistant coaches hired for the 2016-17 school year will be paid the higher of the stipend in
the existing appendix or the proposed appendix.

The following information is attached to this memo:

Attachment 1 — The stipend grid for Performing Arts.

Attachment 2 - Teachers Extra Curricula Pay Schedule-Appendix C2, with changes proposed from
the Performing Arts stipend grid. Changes, additions and deletions are highlighted
in red.

Attachment 3 — The current Teachers Extra Curricula Pay Schedule-Appendix C2

Attachment 4 — Appendix D1-Coaches Salary Schedule — 2016-17, with the changes proposed by
the committee.

Attachment 5 ~ The current Appendix D2-Coaches Salary Schedule — 2016-17.

Attachment 6 — Appendices from Milton.-

Attachment 7 — Appendices from Walpole.

Attachment 8 — Appendices from Westwood.

Attachment 9 — Appendices from Stoughton.

Attachment 10 — Appendices from Sharon.

The committee recommends this proposal.

The Canton Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age or disability.
Equal Opportunity Employer (EOE)




9/1/16 — 8/31/17

. [TJEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE-APPEND

XC2

DISTRICT-WIDE
Civil Rights - Building Based (Han, JFK, Luce, GMS) $1,000
Accompanist (per show) $1,500
CANTON HIGH SCHOOL STEP 1 2 3
FOREIGN EXCHANGES
French $1,746 $2,030 $2,325
German $1,746 $2,030 $2,325
Spanish $1.746 $2,030 $2,.325
DRAMA
Drama Club $1,610
Musical — Director / Producer $4,003
Musical — Costume Advisor $1,608
Musical — Tech Set $1,608
Musical — Music Director $3,340
Musical — Stage Manager/Props $2,000
Musical - Pit Director $2,390
Musical - Tech Lights $800
Musical - Tech Sound $800
Drama-Director $4,003
Drama ~ Stage Manager/Props $2,000
Drama - Costume Advisor $1,608
Drama - Tech Set $1,608
Drama - Tech Lights $800
" |Cabaret - Director $2,000
Cabaret - Music Director $2,000
Cabaret - Pit Director $1,608
One Act Play Festival — Director/Producer $1,608
CLASS ADVISOR
Grade 9 $460
Grade 10 $460
Grade 11 $1,332
Grade 12 $1,653| $1,849 $2,202

W ew



9/1/16 — 8/31117

. [TEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE- APPENDIX C 2 (cont'd)

|STEP 1 2 3
MISCELLANEOUS
Band Director (Pep Band) $5,003
Jazz Band $3,000
A Cappella $1,500
Debating Team (Mock Trial) $2,006
Robotics $3,575
Literary Magazine Advisor (Prism) $2,544
Math Team Advisor $5,331
Math Team Assistant (2) $1,880
Student Newspaper Advisor (Spectrum) $3,466
National Honor Society $1,880
Student Council Advisor $2,544
Yearbook Advisor $5,062
Tri - M Club $1,610
Cable TV Coordinator $7,662
GALVIN MIDDLE SCHOOL
MISCELLANEQUS - ‘
Student Council Advisor (2) $1,742 $2,074 $2,544
Yearbook Advisor (2) $1,357 $1,750 $2,138
Literary Magazine Advisor (1) $1.742 $2,074 $2,544
GMS Jazz Club $3,000
GMS Wind Ensamble $1,500
GMSE Chamber Orchestra $1,500
GMS A Cappalla $1,500
Rebotics $2,000
Musical: .-
Director/Producer $3,340
Assistant Director $2,390
Costume Advisor $1,608
Tech Sound $800
Future Problem Solving Director (2) $665
Interscholastic Athletic Coordinator $2,000

New




-([ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

MISCELLANEOUS

Play Directors - each elementary $3,340
Assistant Play Directors- Support staff, each elementary $1,608
Tech Sound - Each elementary $800
Music Director - Each elementary $1,608
Robotics - each elementary $1,500
Music Mania - Each Elementary $1,500
Gardening - Each Elementary $1,500
Running/Athletic $1,500
Optional Elementary (Content Specified By Principal) $1,500
Elementary School Publication $423

*At the Elementary, Middle and High School, all extra-curricular or intramural

activities not listed in this Agreement will be paid as follows:

Enrollment: Minimum 15 Students
Duration: 2 days per week, 10 weeks
Stipend: $1,248

Enroliment: Minimum 8 Students
Duration: 1 days per week, 10 weeks
Stipend: $624

New




.{TEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE-APPEN DIXC3
9/1/17 - 8/31/18 :
DISTRICT-WIDE
Civil Rights - Building Based (Han, JFK, Luce, GMS) .$1,000
Accompanist (per show) ' - $1,500
CANTON HIGH SCHOOL - |STEP 1 2 3
FOREIGN EXCHANGES
French $1,781 $2,071 $2,372
German $1,781 $2,071 $2 372
Spanish $1,781 $2,071 $2,372
DRAMA ' '
Drama Club $1,642
Musical — Director / Producer ‘ $4,083
Musical — Costume Advisor $1,640
Musical — Tech Set _ $1.,640
Musical — Music Director $3,407
Musical — Stage Manager/Props - $2,040
Musical - Pit Director : $2,438
Musical - Tech Lights ‘ $816
Musical - Tech Sound $816
Drama-Director $4,083
Drama — Stage Manager/Props - $2,040
Drama - Costume Advisor 31,640
Drama - Tech Set $1,640
Drama - Tech Lights . $816
Cabaret - Director $2,040
Cabaret - Music Director ‘ _ $2,040
Cabaret - Pit Director -$1,640
One Act Play Festival — Director/Producer $1,640
CLASS ADVISOR
Grade 9 $469
Grade 10 , ) ~ $469
Grade 11 $1,359
Grade 12 $1,686 $1,886 $2,246

New




| TEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE- APPENDIX C 3 (cont'd
9/1/17 - 8/31/18
STEP 1 2 3
MISCELLANEQUS
Band Director (Pep Band) - $5,195
Jazz Band $3,060
A Cappella -$1,530
" |Debating Team (Mock Trial) $2,046
Robotics $3,647
Literary Magazine Advisor -$2,595
Math Team Advisor : $5,438
Math Team Assistant - $1,918
Spectrum Advisar $3,535
National Honor Society i $1,918
Student Council Advisor ' $2,685
|Yearbook Advisor $5,163
Tri - M Club ' _ -$1,642
Cable TV Coordinator '$7,815
GALVIN MIDDLE SCHOOL
MISCELLANEOUS ;
Student Council Advisor (2) . ' $1,777 $2,116 - $2,595
Yearbook Advisor (2) $1,384 $1,785 ~$2,181
Literary Magazine Advisor (1) $1.777 $2,116 “$2,595
GMS Jazz Club ' $3,060
GMS Wind Ensamble $1,530
GMS Chamber Orchestra $1,530
GMS A Cappalla “$1,530
Robotics '$2,040
Musical: :
Director/Producer $3,407
Assistant Director $2,438
Costume Advisor - $1,640
Tech Sound . $816
Future Problem Solving Director (2) , $678
Interscholastic Athletic Coordinator - $2,040

New




. |ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

MISCELLANEOUS

$3,407

Play Directors - each elementary

Assistant Play Directors- Support staff, each elementary $1,640
Tech Sound - Each elementary $816
Music Director - Each elementary 51,640
Robotics - each elementary $1,530
Music Mania - Each Elementary $1,530
Gardening - Each Elementary $1,530
Running/Athletic -$1,530
Optional Elementary (Content Specified By Principal) $1,530
Elementary School Publication : $432

*At the Elementary, Middle and High School, all extra-curricular or intramural

activities not listed in this Agreement will be paid as follows:

Enroliment; Minimum 15 Students
Duration: 2 days per week, 10 weeks
Stipend: $1,248

Enroliment: Minimum 8 Students
Duration: 1 days per week, 10 weeks
Stipend: $6241

[NEAY)




Appendix D2- Coaches' Salary Schedule - 2016-17
Category 1 Step 1 2 3 4 -
Football Head $6,449 $6,910 $7,370 $8,292 $9,213
JV/Frosh Head $3,553 $3,806 54,060 54,568 $5,075
Assistant $2,580 $2,764 $2,948 $3,317 $3,685
Galvin $2,396 52,567 $2,738 $3,081;  $3,423
Category 2 : T -
Basketball, Ice Hockey Head 54,939 $5,292|  $6,005 $6,350 $7,056
Wrestling V/Frosh Head 52,729 $2,924 $3,118 $3,508 $3,898
Assistant 51,976 $2,117 $2,402 $2,540 $2,822
Galvin $1,741 $1,865 $1,990 $2,238 §2,487
Category 3
|Baseball, Spring Track, - |Head ‘ 54,394 54,708 $5,022 55,649 $6,277
Gymnastics, Field Hockey, JV/Frosh Head $2,411 52,583 $2,755 $3,100 $3,444
Soccer, Softball, Lacrosse, Assistant $1,758 $1,883 $2,009 52,260 $2,511
~ [Volleyball, Swimming, Galvin $1,588 $1,701 51,814 $2,041 $2,268
Indoor Track -
Category 4 _
XC, Tennis, Head : $2,561 $2,744 $2,927 $3,293 $3,659
Golf, Cheer Assistant 51,024 $1,098 $1,171 $1,317 $1,464
Galvin 51,500 $1,607 $1,714 $1,929 §2,143
Category 5
Weight Room Supervisor Winter & Spring $700 $750 $800 $900 $1,000
Grandfather any assistant coach currently under employment under the old
contract until they leave. (For 2016-17 school year only) Move any
head or jv/frosh head scheduled to be on step 4 to step 5.

N ew I




Appendix D3- Coaches' Salary Schedule - 2017-18

Category 1 Step 1 2 3 4 5

Football Head $6,578 $7,048 $7,517 $8,458 $9,397
JV/Frosh Head 53,624 $3,882 $4,141 54,659 §5,177
Assistant 52,632 $2,819 $3,007 $3,383 $3,759
Galvin 52,444 $2,618 $2,793 $3,143 53,491

Category 2

Basketball, Ice Hockey Head $5,038 $5,398 56,125 $6,477 57,197

Wrestling JV/Frosh Head 52,784 $2,982 $3,180 $3,578 $3,976
Assistant $2,016 $2,159 $2,450 $2,591 52,878
Gaivin $1,776 $1,902 $2_,030 $2,283 $2,537

Category 3 :

Baseball, Spring Track, Head 54,482 54,802 55,122 $5,762 $6,403

Gymnastics, Field Hockey, JV/Frosh Head $2,459 52,635 52,810 $3,162 $3,513

Soccer, Softhall, Lacrosse, Assistant $1,793 $1,921 $2,049 $2,305 $2,561

Volleyball, Swimming, Galvin $1,620 $1,735 $1,850 $2,082 $2,313

Indoor Track '

Category 4

XC, Tennis, Head $2,612 52,799 $2,986 $3,359 53,732

Golf, Cheer Assistant $1,044 51,120 $1,194 $1,343 51,493
Galvin $1,530 $1,639 $1,749 $1,967 52,186

Category 5 .

Weight Room Supervisor Winter & Spring 5714 $765 $816 $918 $1,020

Grandfat_her.any assistant coach currently under employment under the old

contract until they leave. {For 2016-17 school year only) Move any

head or jv/frosh head scheduled to be on step 4 to step 5.

N eaw /O k




-[TEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE-APPENDIX C 2
9/1/16- 8/31/17
CANTON HIGH SCHOOL STEP 1 2 3
ACADEMIC DECATHLON
Coordinator $548
English $548
Mathematics $548
Social Studies $548
Science $548
Foreign Language $548
FOREIGN EXCHANGES
French - $1,746 $2,030 $2,328
German $1,746 $2,030 $2,328
Spanish $1,746 $2,030 $2,328
DRAMA
Drama Club $938 $1,223 $1,608
Musical — Choreographer $938 ~ $1,223 $1,608
Musical — Costume Advisor $938 $1,223 $1,608
Musical — Director / Producer $2,935 $3,443 $4,003
Musical - Set Light Designer $2,669 $3,054 $3,608
Musical — Director $2,402 $2,794 $3,340
Musical — Prop Advisor / Stage Manager $1,079 $1,208 $1,349

- |Play-Director/Producer $2,407
Play-Set Light Designer $1,605 $1,748 $1,879
One Act Play Festival — Director/Producer $943 $1,080 $1,216
One Act Play Festival — Set Light Designer $811 $944 $1,084
Gr. 9 One Act Play — Director/Producer $811 $044 $1,084
Gr. 10 One Act Play — Director/Producer $811 $944 $1,084
Gr. 11 One Act Play — Director/Producer $811 $944 $1,084
Gr. 12 Onie Act Play — Director/Producer $811 $944 . $1.084
CLASS ADVISOR
Grade 9 ' $460
Grade 10 $460
Grade 11 $1,332
Grade 12 $1,653 $1,777 $2,203

EE{ t§ fun &




. | TEACHERS EXTRA CURRICULA PAY SCHEDULE- APPENDIX C 2 (cont'd)
9/1/16 — 8/31/17
k| 2 3

MISCELLANEQOUS B -
Audio Visual Director $1,742 $2.,074| $2,406
Band Director $3,621 $4,332 $5,220
Band Drill Instructor $1,302 $1,629 $1,958
Chess Club Advisor $926
Computer Room Monitor $4,258
Debating Team $2,006
Drill Team $573 $801 $1,099
Green House Manager $1,952 - $2,282 $2,599|
Literary Magazine Advisor $1,742 $2,076 $2,544
Math Team Advisor $3,733 $4,529 $5,333
Math Team Assistant $1,209 $1.547 $1,879
Spectrum Advisor $2,004 $2,669 $3,466
National Honor Society $939 $1,343 $1,879
Student Council Advisor $1,742 $2,074 $2,544
Yearbook Advisor $3,869 $4,398 $5,083(
Cable TV Coordinator $7,663
Civil Rights Coordinator $2,544
GALVIN MIDDLE SCHOOL
MISCELLANEQOUS
Audio Visual Director $3,126 $3,665 . $4,191
Chess Club Advisor : $1,798
Cheerleader Coach $271 $434 _ $548
Computer Club . $2,715
Student Council Advisor $1,742 $2,074 $2,544
Yearbook Advisor $1,357 $1,750 $2,137
Literary Magazine Advisor $1,742 $2,074 $2 544
Newspaper Advisor $940 $1.213 $1,481
Mathcounts $1,817
Musical: '

Director/Producer $1,677 $1,994 $2,450

Director $1,677 $1,094 $2,450

.Prop Advisor/Stage Manager $1,677 $1,994 $2,450
PACE Teacher $746
Future Problem Solving Director $665
Interscholastic Athletic Coordinator $857
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

- |MISCELLANEQUS

Play Directors- each elementary $3.144
Play Directors- Support staff, each elementary $989
Early Childhood Coordinator $1,794
Luce School Elementary Publication $423

Bilyting




COACHES’ SALARY SCHEDULE-APPENDIX D 2

MISCELLANEOUS

9/1/16- 8/31117 COLA | 2.50%
Step i 2 3 4

CATEGORY |

FOOTBALL Head Coach , 6,617 7320| 8,148 9,442
Assts./Freshman 3,643 4,031 4,498 5,201
Galvin 2458 2,719; 3,040 3,507

CATEGORY II

BASKETBALL, ICE HOCKEY

WRESTLING Head Coach 5,072, 5616| 6,265 7,233
Assts./Freshman 2,797 3,089 3,456 3,987
Galvin 1,788| 1,979 2,207 2,549

CATEGORY Il

BASEBALL, SPRING TRACK

GYMNASTICS, FIELD HOCKEY, SOCCER

SOFTBALL, LACROSSE, VOLLEYBALL
Head Coach 4 507 4,995 5,572 6,434
Assts./Freshman 2,469 2,733 3,061 3,529
Galvin 1,625! 1,801 2,010 2,324

CATEGORY IV

INDOOR TRACK, SWIMMING
Head Coach 3,432, 3,794 4,241 4 901
Assts./Freshman 1,905| 2104| 2,351 2,716
Galvin 1,625 1,712 2,010 2,324

CATEGORY V :

CROSS COUNTRY, TENNIS, GOLF

, Head Coach 2,628, 2911 3,251 3,750

Assistant 1,458 1,613 1,801 2,081

CATEGORY VI

CHEERLEADING
Head Coach 2,143 2,331 2,603 3,003
Assistant 1,282 1,405 1,569 1,810
Athletic Trainer/EMT 26,106 27,193| 28,281 29,369

ByioTiag

pL B




COACHES’ SALARY SCHEDULE-APPENDIX D 2 (cont'd)
9/1/16- 8/31/17 '
INTRAMURAL SPORTS SCHOOL SEASON SALARY
Tennis (Boys' & Girls’) HIGH FALL 1,055
Basketball (Boys’ & Girls’) |HIGH FALL 1,253
Basketball (Boys’ & Girls’) {HIGH WINTER 840
Weight Training HIGH WINTER 2,080
Girls' Softball HIGH SPRING 1,253
Boys’ Tennis HIGH SPRING 429
Weight Training HIGH SPRING 2,090
Tennis (Boys’ & Girls’) MIDDLE FALL 1,253
Girls' Field Hockey MIDDLE FALL 1,253
Girls’ Gymnastics MIDDLE FALL 1,253
Cross Country MIDDLE FALL 1,401
Badminton MIDDLE FALL 634
Basketball Coordinator

(Boys’ & Girls") MIDDLE WINTER 2,717
Basketball Assistant (Per. AYMIDDLE WINTER 1,848
Girls' Gymnastics MIDDLE WINTER 1,675
Badminton MIDDLE WINTER 634
Softball (2} MIDDLE SPRNG 1,401
Tennis (Boys’ & Girls’) MIDDLE SPRING 1,253
Track MIDDLE SPRING 1,401
Flag Football MIDDLE 1,229
Kickball - MIDDLE 1,229
Wrestling MIDDLE 614
Soccer MIDDLE 1,229
All others {min.15 students, 2 days/week,10 weeks) MIDDLE 1,406
All others (min. 8 students,1 day/week,10 weeks) MIDDLE 703
Basketball (Boys’ & Girls') |HANSEN WINTER 1,970
Basketball (Boys' & Girls’) | KENNEDY WINTER 1,970
Basketball (Boys' & Girls’) . |LUCE WINTER 1,870

Byivting




For payroli purposes, salaries for the 2015-2016 School Year will be paid at the
following “blended rate” reflecting a 1.5% increase over the prior school year. Actual
salaries are determined by the prior charts.

Effective September 1, 2015

1.5 % Blended Rate for Payroll Purposes Only

STEP B B+15 M /B+30 M+30/B+60 M+45/B+75
1 46,026 47,519 49,826 52,821 54,312
2 47,479 49,018 51,402 54,491 56,030
3 50,713 52,260 54,616 57,717 59,273
4 53,200 54,745 57,093 60,190 61,763
5 56,070 57,698 60,171 63,434 65,093
6 59,995 61,625 64,097 67,409 69,018
7 63,743 65,325 67,649 70,755 72,303
8 66,854 68,401 70,755 73,853 75,402
9 70,458 72,089 74,486 717,574 79,132

10 74,293 75,860 78,204 81,309 82,859
11 76,111 77,703 81,601 84,657 86,256
12 79,228 85,951 89,047 90,601
13 87,477 90,573 92,127
15 77,287 80,402 88,652 91,746 93,304
20 79,776 82,855 90,726 93,883 95,470
30 81,252 84,461 92,308 95,496 97,099

APPENDIX A - COMMUNITY SERVICE PLACEMENT DIRECTOR

Community Service Placement Director

Salary Schedule
Step 9/1/13 9/1/14 9/1/15 92" day of 2015-16
2% 2% 1% 1%
59,759 60,954 61,563 62,179
60,954 62,173 62,795 63,423
62,172 63,416 64,050 64,490
47




APPENDIX B
ADDITIONAL REMUNERATION

9/1/2013 | 9/1/2014 | 9/1/2015
2% 2% 2%
Position
Extracurricular per br. 526.80 527.34 $27.89
Part-time inst. Per hr. $43.42 | $4429 | $45.18
Applied Lesson Program Director(self-funded) $5,944 56,063 56,184
Athletic Trainer $19,821 | $20,217 | $20,621
Driver Education (3) $3,675 $3,749 53,824
Elementary Assistant Principal $7,776 57,932 58,091
Elementary Club Advisor 5915 5933 5952
Elementary Computer Club 5915 $933 5952
Elementary Edline 5798 $814 $830
Elementary Future Problem Solving 5472 5481 $491
Elementary Grade Leve| Facilitator 5551 $562 $573
Elementary Math Club 5915 $933 $952
Elementary MCAS Club 5915 $933 5952
Elementary Science Club §915 5933 $952
Faculty Manager $6,598 $6,730 $6,865
Guidance Stipend - High School $3,348 $3,415 $3,483
Guidance Stipend - Middle School $2,207 52,251 $2,296
HS Grade Level Facilitators 5551 $562 $573
HS Academic Decathlon $1,219 $1,243 $1,268
HS Activity Fund Manager $4,008 $4,170 54,253
HS After School Singers 1,829 1,866 1,903
HS American Field Service 5915 $933 $952
HS Amnesty International $915 $933 $952
HS Art Club $915 $933 $952
HS Asian American Club $915 $933 $952
HS Assistant Dramatics 52,061 $2,102 52,144
HS Assistant Marching Band 51,780 $1,8186 51,852
HS Auditorium Technology Director $4,123 $4,205 $4,289
HS Band Director 54,563 54,654 54,747
HS Bridge Teacher 55,319 §5,425 $5,534
HS Cabaret Director §1,507 $1,537 $1,568
HS Chess Club $915 $933 $952
HS Choral Audition Director 5473 5482 $492
HS Cultural Diversity Club $915 5933 $952
HS Dance 51,447 $1,476 $1,506

48

)5




HS Debate(3) $4,000 | $4,080 | $4.162
HS Dramatics $4,123 54,205 $4,289
HS Drill Team Instructor 52,474 $2,523 $2,573
HS Drum Majorette - $1,776 $1,812 $1,848
HS Environmental Club 5915 5933 $952
HS Falt intramural $2,290 52,336 §2,383
HS FHA 5915 $933 $952
HS Film Club $915 $933 $952
HS French Club %915 5933 $952
HS Freshman Class Advisor 5915 $933 5952
HS Fufure Business Leaders $915 $933 $952
HS Future Teachers of America 52,676 $2,730 $2,785
HS Gay and Straight Alliance 5915 $933 $952
HS Gospel Choir 5915 $933 5952
HS Greek Club $915 $933 5952
HS Hispanic Cape Verdean Club $915 5933 $952
HS Human Rights Club $915 $933 $952
HS Irish American Club 5915 $933 5952
HS ltalian Club 5915 5933 5952
HS Jazz Ensemble $1,447 $1,476 $1,506
HS Junior Class Advisor $1,924 $1,962 52,001
HS Latin Club $915 $933 $952
HS Ledger Corspdn Student Advisor 5703 5717 $731
HS Math Club $915 5933 $952
HS Mock Trial 52,319 52,365 52,412
HS Mountain Biking Club 5915 $933 $952
HS Musical Director 52,061 $2,102 52,144
HS Musical Review Director 52,061 52,102 $2,144
HS Musicat Technology Director $2,061 $2,102 52,144
HS National Honar Society $1,924 51,962 $2,001
HS Newspaper $1,327 51,354 $1,381
HS Outdoor Club $915 $933 $952
HS P.E.P. (Peers Educating Peers) 51,776 $1,812 51,848
HS Peer Mediation Club $915 5933 $952
HS Pep Band 5915 5933 $952
HS Photography Club $915 $933 $952
HS Poetry $915 $933 $952
HS Recycling Club 5915 $933 $952
HS Robotics 5915 5933 $952
HS SAD.D $915 $933 $952
HS S.0.A.D. Advisor 5915 §933 5952

49

)b




HS Scholarship Chair $3,767 53,842 $3,919

HS Science Club 5915 5933 $952
HS Senior Class Advisor 52,822 $2,878 $2,936
HS Service League $2,235 $2,280 $2,326

HS Sewing Club $915 $933 $952

HS Sophomore Class Advisor $915 5933 . $952
HS Spanish Club $915 $933 $952

HS Spring Intramural $2,290 52,336 $2,383
HS Step Squad $1,231 $1,256 $1,281
HS String Ensemble Instructor $1,447 51,476 $1,506
HS Student Council $4,011 54,091 $4,173

HS Student Leader Advisar 5915 §933 $952
HS Tri-M Honor Socisty Advisor 5473 5482 5492
HS Echo 51,328 $1,355 $1,382
HS Volunteens/Key Club 51,447 §1,476 51,506
HS Winter intramural 52,290 $2,336 $2,383
HS Yearbook $5,146 55,249 $5,354
HS Yearbook Publicity & Finance 52,187 $2,231 $2,276
Mentor Stipend $550 5561 $572

MS After School Singers $915 $933 $952
M3 Assistant Dramatics $2,061 $2,102 $2,144
MS Band Director $2,523 $2,573 82,624

MS Basketball $915 $933 $952

MS Before School Singers $915 5933 $952
MS Choral Audition Director $473 5482 $492
MS Combo 5915 5933 5952
MS Core Club Advisor 51,231 51,256 51,281

MS Dance Club $915 5933 $952

MS Debate Team 51,231 51,256 $1,281

MS Drama Music Director/Pianist 5915 $933 5952
MS Drama Technology Director $915 $933 $952
MS Dramatics $4,123 $4,205 $4,289
MS Edline/Grade Quick Mentor '$1,595 $1,627 $1,660
MS Fall Intramural 52,290 $2,336 $2,383

MS Honors Band 5915 $933 5952

MS Intramural Soccer Club $915 $933 $952
M3 Mock Trial 51,231 51,256 51,281

‘MS Jazz Band $915 $933 5952

MS Latin Club $915 5933 $952

MS Library Club $915 $933 5952

MS Math Club 5915 $933 §952

50

[}




MS MCAS Club $915 $933 5952
MS Chess Club 5915 $933 $952
MS Art Club $915 $933 $852
MS French Club 5915 5933 $952
MS Science Club $915 5933 $952
MS Spring Intramural $2,290 $2,336 $2,383
MS Strings 5915 $933 5952
MS Student Council 51,374 51,401 51,429
MS Student Government 54,011 $4,091 84,173
MS Track $915 $933 $952
MS Winter Intramural 52,290 52,336 §2,383
MS Yearbook 51,649 51,682 $1,716
PASS Program 51,231 51,256 $1,281
Professional Development Strand Presenter 51,244 $1,269 $1,294
School News (Mx, 4) $2,935 $2,994 53,054
Schools Abroad Coordinator 5703 8717 $731
Webmaster $3,735 | $3,810 | 3,886
HS Homework Club Supervisor $7,253 $7,398 57,546
HS Online Course Supervisor 57,253 $7,398 57,546
HS Online Program Instructor $12,506 | $12,756 | 513,011
MS Homework Club Supervisor $5,441 $5,550 55,661
District Wide ELE Coordinator $6,000 $6,120 56,242

* Itis understood that the high school guidance stipend is in consideration for an additional
five (5) days of work. -

** It is understood that, in order to receive one of the high school debate stipends, an advisor
must attend at least 8 competitions as one of the two advisors present.

51




APPENDIX C

COACHING STIPENDS 2013 — 2014 — 2.0%

Step

Sten?

Step3

Step 4

Varsit
Football

8,697

9,373

10,039

10,709

Asst. 1

3,889

4,418

4.974

5,526

Asst 2

Asst 3, Asst 4

3,112

3,458

3,803

4,147

Frosh

Frosh Asst

2,769

3,040

3,283

3.595

{red circled: as the 2001-2002 incumbent leaves, this

position will be grouped with the Soccer

cluster)

Basketball {B)

6,155

6,689

7,223

7,759

Soccer (B,G)

5417

5,904

6,435

7,014

Basketball{G)

Ice Hockey (B,G)

Baseball

Rugby

Crew

Softhall

Wrestling

Gymnastics (B,G)

Track (B,G)

Lacresse

Field Hockey

Volleyball

Indoor Track

X Country {B,G)

Fall Cheer

Winter Cheer

Skiing

3,739

4,075

4,315

4,844

Golf

Tennis (B,G)

Junior Varsity

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Baseball

3,275

3,567

3,891

4,240

Basketball (B,G)

Track (B,G)/V Asst

Cross Country (B,G)/ V Asst

Indoor Track (B,G)/ V Asst

lce Hockey / V Asst

Wrestling / V Asst

Rugby / V Agst

Softbal

Track Frosh

Soccer (B,G)

Lacrosse {B,G)

Field Hockey

Volleyball

Tennis V Asst

Freshmen

Lacrosse (B,G)

2,814

3,068

3.341

3,644

Basketball (B,G)

Baseball

Soccer (B,G)

Field Hockey

Gym Asst (B,G)

Softball

Volleyball

Cheer Asst (Fall/Winter)

$1530

31668

$1818

$1082

Middle School

52




Basketball (B,G)

$2,533

$2,761

$3.280

Cross Country

$1,500

51,635

$1,942

Track and Field

$1,500

$1.635

$1,942

Cross Country Asst,

$1,000

$1,090

$1,295-

Track and Field Asst.

$1.000

$1,000

$1,295

COACHING STIPENDS 2014 — 2015 - 2,0%

Varsity

Step 1

Step?

Step 3

Step 4

Football

B,871

9,561

10,240

10,924

Asst. 1

3,946

4,507

5,074

5,637

Asst 2

Asst 3, Asst 4

3,174

3,528

3,879

4,230

Frosh

Frosh Asst

2,824

3,101

3,349

3,667

{red circled: as the 2001-2002 incumbent leaves, this

position will be grouped with the Soccer

cluster)

Basketball (B}

6,278

6,823

7,368

7.815

Soccer (B,G)

5,525

6,022

6,564

7,154

Basketball(G)

Ilce Hockey (B,G)

Baseball

Rugby

Crew

Softball

Wreastling

Gymnastics {B,G)

Track (B,G)

Lacrosse

Field Hockey

Volleyball

Indoor Track

X Country (B,G)

Fall Cheer

Winter Cheer

Skiing

3,614

4,157

Golf

Tennis (B,3)

Junior Varsity
——

Step 1

Step?

Baseball

3,341

3,638

Basketball (B,G}

Track (B,G)/ V Asst

Cross Country (B,G)/ V Asst

Indoor Track (B,G)/ V Asst

Ice Hockey / V Asst

Wrestling / V Asst

Rugby / V Asst

Softhall

Track Frosh

Soccer (B,G)

Lacrosse

Field Hockey

Volleyball

Tennis V Asst

Freshmen

Lacrosse (B,G)

2,870

3,129

3,408

3,718

Basketball (B,G})

53




Baseball

Soccer (B,G)

Field Hockey

Gym Asst {B.G)

Softball

Volleyball

Cheer Asst (Fall/Winter) $1561 $1701 $1854 $2022
Middle School

Basketball (B,G) $2,584 $2,816 $3,069 $3,346

Cross Country $1,530 $1,668 $1,818 $1,881

Track and Field $1,530 $1,668 $1,818 $1,981

Cross Country Asst. $1,020 $1,112 $1,212 $1,321

Track and Field Asst, $1,020 $1,112 $1,212 $1,321

COACHING STIPENDS 2015 -2016 — 2.0%

_Ersig Steg 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4
Foothall 9,048 8,752 10,445 11,142
Asst. 1 4,025 4,598 5175 5750
Asst 2
Asst 3, Asst 4 , 3,237 3,598 3,957 4,314
Frosh '

Frosh Asst 2,881 3,163 3,416 3,740
{red circled: as the 2001-2002 incumbent leaves, this position will be grouped with the Soceer cluster)
Basketball (B} 6,404 6,959 7,515 8,073
Soccer {B,G}) 5,636 6,143 6,695 7,297
Basketball(G)
Ice Huckey (B,G)
Baseball
Rugby
Crew
Softball
Wrestling
Gymnastics (8,G)
Track (B,G)
Lacrosse
Field Hockey
Volleybali
Indoor Track
X Country (B,G)
Fall Cheer
Winter Cheer
Skiing 3,880 4,240 4,489 5,039
Golf
Tennis (B,G) .
Junior Varsity SteE 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4
Baseball 3,408 3,711 4 049 4412

Basketball (B,G}

Track (B,G) / V Asst

Cross Country (B,G) / V Asst

indoor Track {B,G}/ V Asst

Ice Hockey / V Asst

“Wrestling / V Asst

Rugby / V Asst

Softball

54




COACHES

LTV N

2014-2015 2015-2016

Group #1 Misc:

Head Football

Trainer

Fall

Winter

Football

1* Ass’t

Group #2

Basketball G/B

Hockey G/B

Group #3

Soccer G/B

Field Hockey

Spring Track G/B

Baseball/Sofiball

Wrestling

Lacrosse G/B

Group #4

Gymnastics

Winter Track

Tennis G/B

Volleyball

Hockey Ass’t G/B

Basketball Ass’t

Cross Count

Group #5

Baseball/Softball Ass’t

Soccer Ass’t G/B

Yield Hockey Ass’t

iE

Track Ass’t

Football 2™ Ass’t

Football Frosh Head

Swimming G/B

Lacrosse Ass’t G/B

Volleybali Ass’t

o

COACHES
Group #6

T 2013

Basketball Frosh

Cheerleading — Fall/Winter

Baseball/Softball ~ Frosh

Soccer Frosh G/B

Field Hockey Frosh

Football Frosh Ass’t

Lacrosse Frosh G/B

Golf

3604

2014

I

4

20142015

T

2 L




TITLE:

2012-2013

Dept. Technology Coordinator (H.8.) X 8

Faculty Council to NHS (H.8.) X 5

*Overnight

International Trip

Book Club

Chess Club

Commencement Coordinator

Costume Director (musical)

Diversity Club

Frishee Social Club

Humane Society

Ping Pong Chub

SADD

Student Advisory Committee (School Committee)

Art Director (musical)

Film Festival Assistant Director #1

Film Festival Assistant Dircctor #2

fFrench Club*

German Club*

fLatin Club*

Literary Magazine (Cricket)

Mock Trial Team #1

Maock Trial Team #2

QOutdoor Adventure Ciub*

Photog}'aphy Club

Spanish Club*

Art Club

Auditoriuin Assets Advisor*

Best Buddies Club

Choreographer (musical)

Community Service Club #1

Community Service Club #2

Entreprencur Club

Freshman Class Advisor

Junior Achievement

Peer Mediators

PM Club

Project Close Up*

School Store -

Sophomore Class Advisor

Student Council #1




Student Council #2

WHS Moming News

Video Club

Academic Decathlon #1

Academic Decathlon #2

Choral Director {(musical)

Intramuzrals

Jazz Band Ensemble

Jazz Choir

Junior Class Advisor

Math Team Club

National Honer Society #1

National Honor Society #2

Orchestra

Orchestra Director (musical)

Prom Coordinator

Senior Class Advisor #1

Senior Class Advisor #2

Band Director

Darice Ensemble -

School Newspaper (Rebellion)

‘| Web Page Coordinator

Yearbook Advisor #1

Yearbook Advisor #2

Drama Director

Film Festival Director

Musical Director

Robotics Team Coordinator*

Student Funds Coordinator

Middle Schools

School-wide Technology Liaison (M.8) X 2

WNews 2x

8ki Club 2x

Environinental Education 8x

Curriculum Liaison 10x

Jazz Ensemble 2x

Select Chorus 2x

Team Leaders 12x

|Student Council Advisor 2x

Yearbook Advisor 2x

>




Theatre Director 2x

1,408

Elementary Schools

School-wide Tech. Liaison (Elem) X 4

110}

Student Coungil Advisor (Ope per school) X 4

166

Team Leaders (one per gr. X-5) X 24

221

Other

Systemwide Academic Enrichment

28.00 ¥

25




Westwood

*Performi'ng Arts Activities

High School Musical Middle
Director 7,500 Director 4,500
Vocal Director 4,000 Vocal Director 2,400
Orchestra Conductor 1,300 Orchestra ;800
Qutside Musicians 1,800 Outside |~ 77
Scenic Designer 1,500 Scenic 900
Light Designer 750 Light Designer 450
Sound Designer 750 Sound 450
Technical Support 1,300 Technical 800
Costume Designer 1,500 Costume 900
Choreogr'apﬁer 2,300 Choreoic;rrapher 1,400
High School Play Middle Schoolf
Director 4,000 Director 2,000
Scenic Designer 1,000 Scenic 600
Costume Designer 500 Costume 500
Light Designer 1,000 Light Designer 600
Sound Des?aner . 500 Sound 500
High School! Music Costume 1,000
‘Before School Jazz Band 4,600 Light, Sound, 1,200
Passing Notes (High Sch) 3,000 Middle School
Talent Show
Music Honors (High Sch) 1,200 Director 500
Elementary Activities
Grade 5 Orchestra 4,600
Elementary Jazz Band 4,600
Play/Musical 2,000
*Clubs and Activities
i Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
Hours/year 20-25 25-40 >40
Preparation none some weekly
Adult Role monitor/support interaction & instructor
Competition none 1or2 >2

WMASE P ead AN

26




{Qlﬁ‘%{gz;%
e

APPENDIX B
EXTRA-CURRICULAR COMPENSATION

2013-2017

9/1/2013 9/1/2014 9/1/2015 8/31/2016 9/1/20i6 8/31/2017

LEVEL I 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
LEVELII

High School Newspaper 2129 2150 2172 2194 2216 2238
Literary Advisor to

Yearbook 2129 2150 2172 2194 2216 2238
Senior Class Advisor 2129 2150 2172 2194 2216 2238
Student Council Advisor 2129 2150 2172 2194 2216 2238
LEVEL ITIA

Peer Leader Advisor _
(federally funded) 1563 1579 1595 1611 1627 1643
LEVEL IIIB

SHS Math Competition

Advisor 1338 1352 1365 1379 1393 1407
Yearbook Advisar

Middle School 1338 1352 1365 1379 1393 1407
Science Olympiad 1338 1352 1365 1379 1393 1407
LEVEL IV

Financial Advisor to

Year Book 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Junior Class Advisor 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Sophmore Class Advisor 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Freshman Class Advisor 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
National Honor Society

Advisor 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Middle School Student

Council 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Middle School Math '

Team 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
OMS After School MCAS 1142 1154 . 1165 1177 1189 1201
OMS Science Club 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
OMS Saturday MCAS 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201

Elementary MCAS
(Subject to Grant

Funding) 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
DECA 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201
Gay Straight Alliance 1142 1154 1165 1177 1189 1201

00- J7




Intramural OMS (2
positions)

LEVEL V
5.A.D.D. Advisor
(federally funded

LEVEL VI
Curriculum Work Team

Extended Day {Per
Hour)

Elementary Assistant
Principals
Dawe School

Gibbons
Hansen
South
Woest

Head Teachers
Middle School English
Middie School Math

Middle School Science

Middle School Social
Studies

Secondary Reading

Middle School Foreign
Language
ELE

Liaisons
Math Liaison
Technology Liaison

Student Attendance &
Discipline

Lead Teachers
Art

1142

944

137
277
414
551
6951

37.50

2428
2428
2428
2428
2428

2428
2428
2428

2428
2428

2428
2428

2117
2117

2207

1485

1154

954

139
280
418
557
698

37.50

2452
2452
2452
2452
2452

2452
2452
2452

2452
2452

2452
2452

2138
2138

2229

1500

61-

1165

963

140
282
422
563
705

37.88

2477
2477
2477
2477
2477

2477
2477
2477

2477
2477

2477
2477

2160
2160

2251

1515

1177

973

142
285
427
568
712

38.25

2502
2502
2502
2502
2502

2502
2502
2502

2502
2502

2502
2502

2181
2181

2274

1530

1189

983

143
288
431
574
719

38.64

2527
2527
2527
2527
2527

2527
2527
2527

2527
4527

2527
2527

2203
2203

2296

1545

1201

993

144
291
-435
580
726

39.02

2552
2552
2552
2552

2552

2552
2552
2552

2552
2552

2552
2552

2225
2225

2319

1560




Directors:

Guidance & Testing
plus per capita

Fine Arts
plus per capita

Math
English
Social Studies

Applied and Natural
Science and Physical

Education and Health
World Language

Special Education - SHS
plus per capita

Special Education -
Middle School

plus per capita

Business/Technology
plus per capita

SHS Advisory
Coordinator

6558
192

4459
192

5050

5050

5050

5050

5050

4459
192

4459
192

4459
192

5000

6624
194

4504
154

5101

5101

5101

5101

5101

4504
194

4504
194

4504
194

5050

62—

6690
196

4549
196

5152
5152

5152

5152

5152

4549
196

4549
196

4549
196

5101

6757
198

4584
158

5203

5203

5203

5203

5203

4594
198

4594
198

4534
158

5152

6824
200

4640
200

5255

5255

5255

5255

5255

4640
200

4640
200

4640
200

5203

6892
202

4687
202

5308
5308

5308

5308

5308

4687
202

4687
202

4687
202

5255




|mwl
190  €2LT €£78C 0TI'T IO 969°T R6¥T  660°T IR6°C  699°T EL¥T  6L0°T 112%0)) pesy
ONTIAS/TIVA
-I109 4
- O/ ONIAJIS Al
SINNAL V
CLY'T  TLTT TL0°T 8981 SHFT 6TT  0S0°T  6¥8°1  ¥TPT  LTTT  OE0T 181 HERIYSAL]
FLOT LT TLTT  TLO'T LVOT SHPC 6¥ZT  080°CT  129°T Yo't LTTT  0E0T Ajsaep -ap
06'S  889°F SOT¥ 188°E  £b8'C  I¥9F  €91F  EVSE  $8L°C  965F  TZIP  SOSC 4re0)) peay
TIVILAOS "9
TIVAASVL 'V r
0£L°C  6TE'E  STET  £TST  £69°C 96T°C  068C . |6FT  959°C  €9TE  L98°T €L¥T Aisaep ar
0ET'L 060 669 L6009  650°L  9£8°0 SEF9  LED'O  686'0  89L°0 1LED LIS Joro)) pead
XTMDO0H 301
6TEC  ST6'T  €TST  0TI'T  96T°C  96R'T 8HFT  660°T  €9T°C  LOR'T  ELFT  6LOT uzwygsaly
0EL't  6ZE'E STE'T  €TS'T  €69°€  96T'C  968°T 96¥T  959°FE  €97C  L9%T  ELV'T Asrep ap
0E1°L  PO6'9  66F'9 L6090  650°L  O£8'0  SEFU  LE0°0 6869 89L0 [LLG  LLES [oe0)) pedfy
o/ TIVHLTASVE Fid
985y 99€F TL'C 6LE°C ISP €TEY VRLE SPE'C 96T 08T LOL'S TICC uewtysar g
985y 99¢'y TVLC GLE'C  IHSY  ETEV PYL'E SYEC 96bt 08TF LOL'C TIES (g) s1ssy
IP6°8 $10°8 016°L 9¥9°L €S8°S  SE6'L TESL OLSL S9L'® 9SRL $SLL S6FL youo)) pedy
TIVIL004 I
NOILISOd AXJO9IIVD
¥ £ (4 I v € 4 1 ¥ £ 4 I
_ 9IAd
%1 %1 %%l SHHDOVOD SI3A
ST0C/1/6 PIOZ/T/6 £10T/1/6 DOILHTHILY PI XA

S10T/1/6-€10T/1/6
J XIANAddV

S0



vLY'T
962°S

we'T
ZVET

VLT
96T°S

¥L9°T
706°S

ELF'T
$L9T
962°S

prr'e

TLTT
L91°S

ELY'T
186°¢

$9.L°]
$9L°1

ELY'T
186°¢

ELV'T
330y

(Akard
ELFT
186°¢C

€78

1L0C
18L°¢

UTT
18¢°¢

995°1
995°1

LT
185°¢

TULTET
417

1L0°C
TLTT
185°¢

071

898°1
8LE°E

1.0
L TANY

99¢€°T
99¢°1

1L0°C
9LI'E

1L0°T
188°¢

898°1
1L0T
9L1%¢

S1L1

899°1
9L6'C

LY9°T
evT's

61€Z
61€C

L¥9°C
1374l

L¥9T
3289

3T
L'z
EvT'S

0Iv's

6¥Z°T
911°S

HP'T
h6'E

L¥L
LPL'T

e
6'E

T
1#9%

6¥T'T
SPP'Z
Tr6'E

86V°C

050°C
PrLE

6¥T°T
os'E

18¢°1
1881

6¥T°C
9ts'e

6¥CT
€91y

0507
6¥2°C
9pse

GGOT

678°1
Sre'e

|.¢®l

0S0°C
SPI‘E

£5£°1
£5E°T

050°C
SPT'e

050°C
£¥3°¢

6¥8°1
0507
SPI‘e

269°1

7691
96°T

129°C
161°6

967°C
96Z°T

129°C
16I's

129°T
¢8L'S

FTH'T
129°C
161°¢

9LE"EC

LTTT
590°s

(LA
€06°c

0Ll
0Ll

¥Zr'z
£06°E

(A
0965y

LTTT
A A
£06°¢

€LVT

0£0°C
LOLE

LTT'T
115°¢

SES°1
SES°1

LTTE
118°¢

LTTT
raAN

0E0°C
L22C
T16°€E

6L0°C

1£8°1
TIe'e

0£0°C
FII'E

6£€°1
6£E°1

0£0°T
PIIE

0£0°
S8

1€8°1
0E0°C
PII°¢

789°1

GE9'1
L16°C

AsICA “Ap
YIR0D) PedY]

TIVAATTIOA

A
nex

DNITIHAHD

JUEBISISS Y
oo peay

WVIL WIMS "8
DI FIOD0S YV

JUEISISSY
§ae0)) pedf

DONITLSHIM 9
SOLISVYNIAD 'V

B YSIA]
JUB)SISSY

YoBO)) pPEIY
ATAD0H aTHIA
Yoro)) peayg

/4
AYINNOD SSOHD

Yoro)) peayy

O IONIAAS
“HOVHL 9
D/TITILNIMA
“MOVAL Y

1A

HA

g/



|m©l
675t 009°T  S8IT  L9LTT  FIS'E  PLS'T £91°T  0SL1 6L¥'E  8bSTT THITT g££L°1 o)) pesH
. o/q u
XAINNOD §S0AD
WET  FEI'T ST61 GILT  LIET  EII'T SO6'1  TOLT  S6TT  T6OT  L3ZT  689°1
PZE'S 968 ISF'E  900°C  TLTS  LSSE ob¥'E  SE0't 6ITS  6ISE  ZTIFE  S00'E qaeo)y pedy
O/4 ONIIAS
~MOVIL 4
OTIHINIM P
-MOVIL 'V
SSI' 908°CT  009°T  SRIT  evl'v  8LLT  wLST  £91°T  TOIY  QSL'T 8psT wIC 50D pesH
ONTIAS/TIVA
-1109 4
o/d Al
DNTHJS :SINNHL V
ST IPET  PEIT STOT TTST  LIET  EIIT SO6°T L6KT S6ZT TE0T  L8ST uBnIYsaLy
SSL°T  8PST  TPET PEI'T LTLT  TTS'T  LIET  €ITT 00L'T  LeY'T  seT't Tel'T ANSARA AL
0800 0£8% TECY  666'C  0T09  TRLF  68TF  6S6'E  196°S  SELYY VTR 0T6'E [aeo) pedH
TIVAIA0S 'd
TIVEASVL "V m
TP8'C  OEF'C  FIO'E 0097  S08'E  96£°€  P86'T  PLST  L9L'E  TOLE  ¥S6'T  8¥ST Apsaep map
OFEL  EIT°L  969°0 78TO £LTL £WOL 0899 0TT9  10T°L L6 b9Ss 8519 yaeo) pedH
ATMDO0H A1
0cr'e  PI0'E  009'T  SBI‘T  96£°€  ¥RET  PLST  €9IT  TIEE 56T SKST  THIT L tUEERE |
€F8°E  0EF'E  PIOE 0097 S08'C  96£°C  ¥86T  PLST  LOBL°E  T9EE  ¥S6'T  B¥ST ANSIRA I
oFe’s  EIT°L  969°9  T8TO  €LTL  EVO'L  0£9°9  0ZE9  10TL  £L6°9 #9599  8SI0 Yaeo) peaH
o/ TIVELTISVA 74
STLY  e6YY  968°€  ISY'E 8i9%  PSEP LE8°C  9vbE  TEOY  OIFF  6IS'E  ZIFE | uemysaay
SILY  66FF 968t ISFE RISV BSHP LSS'E 9vFE ZEOY  O1FF  6ISE TIE (©) sssv
TIT6  LST'®  8L8°L  6FI'®  ITI'6  SLI'S  008'L 690°% 006  +60°8 TTLL  636°L garo)) pray
TIVILOOA I
, NOILISOd JXY¥ODAIVD
L4 € 4 T 14 € 4 1 14 € < T
%1 %%l %1 SILA
LI0T/1E/8 910Z/1/6 : 9107/1£/8 SHHOVOD LIAA
IILATHLY

LIOT/TE/8-910T/1¢/8
D XIANAIdV

5L



§SLT
951's

g R
o fard

$6LT
95'S

SSE°T
080

85T
$SLT
95¥°S

8S'T
01y

218°1
2181

8PS
01y

8¥5°C
0€8°y

1¥€C
8FST
Z0T°F

TPET
069°¢

$I9°T
¥19°1

1$2°C
069°¢

1PE'T
TEEY

PET'T
I¥EC
069°¢

PEI'T

€LT'E

20+°1
20+°1

12344
£LT'E

PEIT
666°C

ST6'1
129 s
€LT'E

LTLT
w0r's

63€°C
68EC

LZLT
Z0¥'S

LTL'T
0709

75T
LTLT
Zor's

(A4
190

008°1
008°1

TTST
190%

7z8°T
8Ly

LI€T
7T5°T
190

L€
£59°¢

865°1
865°1

LIET
£59°€

L1ET
637'F

£11°T
JARN4
£59°¢

£I1°T
0rT'e

¥6£°T
¥6€°T

1
0vZ’c

130 4
656°€

506°1
€11
0veE

llwwi

00L°T
6vE'S

S9E°T
£9£°Z

00LT
6vE'S

00L°T
196°S

L6¥'T
00L°C
6vE’S

L6V'T
120y

£8L°1
€8L°1

L&Y'

120°%

L6V'T
SELY

$6T°C
LEV'T
120°%

S6T°T
L19°€

Z85°T
85°1

$6T°T
L19°¢

$62°T
LYTY

T60°C
$67°T
LI9E

T60°T
80T°¢

08¢€°1
08€°1

60T
80T'¢

z60°T
0Z6°¢

L88°1
60T
30T°¢

Ayisxep -ap
yoro)) pedH
TIVAATTIOA
JRNUEAL

ned
DONIITAHD
JUBISISSY

Y280;) PEIYL
WVEL NIMS "4
A AAIDO0S V
JUEISISSY

yaro)) peaH
ONITLSHTIM o

SOILSVNINAD 'V
uewrysaxg

JuBISISSY
2e0)) peagy
ADIDOH aTHA

IHA

4

33



LEVEL 1
Marching Band Director

LEVELII

Senior High School Jazz
Band

Senior High School Choir
Director .

Drama Production Director

(1 Dramatic; 1 Musical
Production)

LEVEL III ,
Middle School Jazz Band
Assistant Marching Band
Director

Percussion Coach

LEVEL IV

Color Guard/Drili Team
Middle School Drama
Production

Middle School Band
Elementary Band

LEVELY

Senior High Spring Color
Guard Advisor

Senior High Guitar
Ensemble Advisor
Senior Jazz Band II Dir
Middle School Drum
Club Dir

Middle School Glee Club
Dir

Middle School
Woodwind Ensemble

APPENDIX D

PERFORMING STUDENT ADVISORS SALARY SCHEDULE

9/1/2013
1.00%

7,064

3,004

3,004
3,004

2,337
2,337
2,337

1,929
1,929

1,929
1,929

1212

1212
1212
1212

1212

1212

2013-2017
9/1/2014 9/1/2015 8/31/2016 9/1/2016
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
7,135 7,206 7,278 7.351
3,034 3,064 3,095 3,126
3,034 3,064 3,005 3,126
3,034 3,064 3,095 3,126
2,361 2,384 2,408 2,432
© 2,361 2,384 2,408 2,432
2,361 2,384 2,408 2,432
1,948 1,968 1,988 2,007
1,948 1,968 1,988 2,007
1,948 1,968 1,088 2,007
1,948 1,968 1,988 2,007
1224 1236 1249 1261
1224 1236 1249 1261
1224 1236 1249 1261
1224 1236 1249 1261
1224 1236 1249 1261
1224 1236 1249 1261
-67-

8/31/2017
1.00%

7,424

3,157

3,157
3,157

2,456
2,456
2,456

2,028
2,028

2,028
2,028

1274

1274
1274

1274
1274

1274




ATTACHMENT (A)(2)
1. ACTIVITIES

The following extracurricular activities are included under the ratio formula

incumbent leader/coach/advisor is a member of the Association:

for determining compensation when the

Academic Decathlon Gymnastics Ultimate Frisbee Boys
ADL Advisor (MS) (3) IGEM Ultimate Frisbee Girls
ADL Advisor (1) (2) Intramurals, (MS) (2) (3 seasons) Ultimate Frishee Asst.
Art Club Advisor Jazz Band (MS) Vocal Director (HS)
Band, SEMSBA District (MS) Lacrosse, Junior Varsity Boys Volleyball Coach

Band, (HS)

Lacrosse, Junior Varsity Girls

Volleybail, Junior Varsity

Baseball, Varsity

Lacrosse, Varsity Girls

Volleyball, Freshman

Baseball, Junior Varsity Lacrosse, Varsity Boys Wrestling Coach
Baseball, Freshman Marsengold Advisor Wrestling Junior Varsity
Baseball, Asst, Marimba (Heights)

Basketball, Varsity Boys Marimba (M5)

Basketball, Varsity Girls Math Advisor (MS)

Basketball, Junior Varsity Boys

Math League {(MathCounts) (MS)

Basketball, Junior Varsity Girls

Math League, (HS)

Basketball, Freshman, Boys Middle School Yearbook
Basketball, Freshman Girls Mock Trial
Cheerleading (2 seasons) Model UN Advisor

Cheerleading Asst (2 scasons)

Morning Announcement Advisor (HS)

Chess

Musical Director, (MS)

Chorus {Cottage)

Musical Director, (HS)

Chorus, SEMSBA District (MS)

National Honor Society

Chorus, (HS) Orchestra Director
Class Advisor, 9th Grade Pianist/Vocal (MS)
Class Advisor, 10th Grade Pianist, (HS)
Class Advisor, 11th Grade P.OWE.R.

Class Advisor, 12th Grade Quiz Bow!l Team
Conductor (MS) S.AD.D.

Debate Team Advisor

Sailing Coach (2 seasons)

Drama, Musical Director (MS)

Sailing Asst. Coach (2 seasons)

Drama Asst., Mugical (MS)

Set Design {Dec-Mar) {MS)

Drama Asst. Technical, Musical (MS)

SHS Radio

Drama Director (MS)

Sharon High Talon (newspaper)

Drama Director — Fall (HS)

Soccer, Freshman Boys

Drama Asst. - Fall (HS)

Soccer, Freshman Girls

Drama Asst. Technical - Fall (HS)

Soccet ; Junior Varsity Boys

Drama Director - Winter (HS)

Soccer , Junior Varsity Girls

Drama Asst. -- Winter (HS)

Soccer, Varsity Boys

Drama Asst, Technical — Winter (HS)

Soccer, Varsity Girls

Drama Director - Spring (HS)

Softball, Varsity

Drama Asst. - Spring (HS)

Softball, Junior Varsity

Drama Asst. Technical — Spring (HS)

Softball Asst.

DUG

Student Council Advisor (MS)

Bast Newspaper Student Council Advisor (HS)
Elementary Music (3) Swimming Coach

Euphony Swimming Asst.

Field Hockey, Freshman Tennis, Varsity Boys (HS)
Field Hockey, Varsity Tennis, Varsity Girls (HS)

Field Hockey, Junior Varsity

Track, Cross Country Boys

Football Coach, Varsity

Track, Cross Country Girls

Football Assistants {4)

Track, Head Coach, Winter

Football, Freshman

Track Asst, Winter

Foreign Language/Honor Society

Track & Field, Spring, Varsity Boys

Gay/Straight Alliance

Track & Field, Spring, Varsity Girls

Golf

Track & Field, Spring, Asst. (3)




II. THE FORMULA FOR COMPUTING THE EXTRA-PAY SCHEDULE

A, Computations for implementation of the formula are subject to agreement by both parties. In computing salaries the
following factors have been considered:

1. Time Factor;
At least these hours outside
the workday in a school year
(schedule will be submitted annually),

Factor

25

50

100

125

150

175

200

250

275

300

Jogit-N-CTON I T R ST X

2. Responsibility/Enrollment Factor
Assistants are not eligible for Responsibility Factors
# of students regularly involved in the event. This
assumes assistants for 40+ students,

Factor At Least Upto
0 1 9
1 10 34
2 35 ' 300
3 301 360

3.  Athletic Coaches ONLY (MIAA)

0 This is an assistant coach Position
1 This is a JV or Freshman Head Coach Position
2 This is a Varsity Head Coach Pesition

4. Location of Activity (A schedule will be submitted annually)

Factor
0 A majority of meetings/events occur in the school or on the grounds
1 Approximately equal number of events/activities/games ate in Sharon and in nearby Towns
2 Over 70% of event activities are out of State or Out of the Country

5. Time Commitment in terms of the work day

Factor
0 Over 60% of time spent on this activity is during the school day
1 Over 50% of time spent on this activity is afternoons and evenings
2 Over 50% of time spent on this activity requires regular weekend work

6, Experience ' ,
Experience in a given activity is recognized up through a maximum of five (5) years. ach year of experience is equivalent to

a stated percentage as indicated in the following table and applied as outlined in II-B;

Years of Experience: 1 2 3 4 5

Percentage FACTOR: 5 10 15 20 25

£




B. The Formula .
1. The NUMERICAL FACTORS for time, responsibility/enrolimeant, athletic coaches, location of activity and time
commitment, will be added together and multiplied by the Bachelor's Salary Step 1 Schedule as of September 1 of each school
year and then divided by 100,

2. EXPERIENCE PAYMENT: The result set forth in 1 (THE FACTOR PAYMENT) above will be multiplied by the
appropriate experience PERCENTAGE FACTOR as derived from the table under "Experience” and divided by 100.

3. TOTAL COMPENSATION: The total of the sum obtained in 1 and 2 above will, in each case, represent the total
compensation assigned to the activity.

4. During any school year if as the result of participation in a tournament, festival, or similar activity the schedule for an
activity extends beyond the normal schedule, compensation for such participation will be paid at the rate of thirty dollars (330)
per event through the State level of competition. This compensation will be paid prior to the close of the fiscal year.

Factors for any club or sport listed, not listed, or not funded in the budget or the contract, may be determined by completing the
application form and returning it to the administration. A joint meeting with the STA will be held to discuss funding ’
possibilities.

)

SN




ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART - Clubs & Intramurals

Time Coaches &  Coaches Location Commitment Sum ACTIVITIES
Clubs Resp

2 1 0 0 0 3 Cottage Chorus

2 1 o 0 0 3 East Newspaper

2 1 0 0 1 4 Heights Marimba

0 2 0 0 1 3 Elementary Music

0 2 1] ] 1 3 Elementary Music

0 2 0 0 1 3 Elementary Music

MIDDLE SCHOOL - Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART - Clubs & Intramurals

Time Coaches & Coaches Location Commitment Sum ACTIVITIES
Clubs Resp
1 2 0 0 0 3 ADL Advisor
1 2 ¢ 0 0 3 ADL Advisor
1 2 0 0 0 3 ADL Advisor
2 1 0 1 2 8 Band (SEMSBA DISTRICT)
2 2 0 0 2 6 Chorus (SEMSBA DISTRICT)
2 2 ¢ 0 1 5 Conductor
9 2 0 0 1 12 Drama {Musical Director)
5 0 0 0 1 6 Drama Asst. (Musical)
5 0 4 0 1 6 Drama Asst. Tech (Musical)
9 2 0 0 1 12 Drama Director
1 2 0 0 1 4 Intramurals — Fall After School Sports
1 2 0 0 1 4 Intramurals — Fall After School Sports
1 2 0 0 1 4 Intramurals — Winter After School
1 2 0 0 1 4 Intramurals - Winter After School
1 pJ 0 0 1 4 Intramurals — Spring After School
1 2 0 0 1 4 Intramurals — Spring After Schoal
1 1 0 0 0 2 Jazz Band
2 2 0 1 1 6 Math Advisor
2 i 0 1 1 5 Math League (MATHCOUNTS}
2 1 0 0 1 4 Middle Marimba
1 1 0 0 1 3 Middle School Yearbook
3 (] 0 0 1 5 Pianist/Vocal
2 1 0 0 1 4 Set Design {Dec-March)
6 1 0 0 1 ] Student Council Advisor




Time

HIGH SCHOOL - Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART - Clubs & Intramurals

Coaches &
Clubs Resp

Coaches

Location

Commitment

Sum

ACTIVITIES

bnad B+ T 2 T &) B (o B o T o B Y B I VY L & ) S - G N o B 0% S 5 SR P e ¢

MR R W WD N MNNDRDWW=2 DO~ 0w NN

1

o O O O N 2 2 a4 A a a2 N e e s e e o s B

- = O O N O N O O RN S RN NN RN AR

O 0O 0 0 0 O O O 0O 0 0 0 000000 aO000

O o O 0 0O o O O 0 00 o o0 a0 oo0odd8

=)

O O O QO O =2 «a & QO 00 QO 2 0 0 0 0 0 - =000

O Q0O =2 =2 0 0 0 0O = 00 0 0 0 24 a a0 o o0

- O N RN NN NN NN @A A A A e e e ek o o

N N O O U N - T N i W (O GO GO (R G G

D~ W W W W

(o2 0+ - BN IR R N

—_
-—

14
12
12

W oW o~

—
o B

W W WU NE AR SO NWO® S o O

Academic Decathlon

ADL Advisor

ADL Advisor

Art Club Advisor

Band

Chess

Chorus

Class Advisor 9th

Class Advisor 10th

Class Advisor 11th

Class Adviseor 12th

Debate Team Advisor
Drama Director - Fall
Drama Asst. - Fall

Drama Asst. Technical - Fall
Drama Director = Winter
Drama Asst. - Winter

Drama Asst. Technical - Winter
Drama Director - Spring
Drama Asst. - Spring
Drama Asst, Technical - Spring
DuUo

Euphony

ExchangefAdventure Planner *factors TBD — varles
w/each out of country trip (self-funding)
Foreign Language/Honor Sccisty

Gay/Straight Alliance
IGEM

Marsengold

Math League

Mock Trial

Model UN

Morning Announcement Advisor
National Honor Society
Orchestra Director
Pianlst

POWER

Quiz Bowl Team

SADD

SHS Radio

Sharon High Taion (newspaper)
Student Council
Ultimate Frisbee Boys
Ultimate Frisbee Asst.
Ultimate Frishea Asst. B
Ultimate Frisbee Asst. C
Uitimate Frisbee Girls'

U




Vocal Director

‘Y0




ATHLETICS - FALL - Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART

COmmiimém

Time Coaches & Coaches Location Sum ACTIVITIES
Clubs Resp
2 1 4 1 1 9 Cheerleading (2 seasons)
2 o 0 1 1 4 Cheerleading Asst. (2 seasons)
3 1 1 1 1 7 Fiefd Hockey, Freshman
4 1 1 1 1 8 Field Hockey, JV
5 1 4 1 1 12 Field Hockey, V
8 0 0 1 1 10 Football Asst,
8 0 0 1 1 10 Football Asst.
8 0 0 1 1 10 Football Asst,
8 ¢ 0 1 1 10 Football Asst,
& 1 1 1 1 10 Football, Freshman
8 2 4 1 1 16 Foothall, V
3 ] 4 1 1 10 Golf
6 1 4 1 1 13 Sailing Coach (2 seasons)
6 0 0 1 1 8 Sailing Asst. Coach (2 seasons)
3 1 1 1 1 7 Socecer, Freshman (boys})
3 1 1 1 1 7 Soccer, Freshman (girls)
4 1 1 1 1 8 Scccer, JV (boys)
4 1 1 1 1 8 Soccer, JV (girls)
6 1 4 1 1 13 Soccer, V (boys)
6 1 4 1 1 13 Soccer, V {girls)
3 2 4 1 1 11 Track, Cross County (boys)
3 2 4 1 1 11 Track, Cross County (girls)
4 1 4 1 1 1 Volleyball
4 1 1 1 1 8 Volleyball, JV
3 1 1 1 1 7 Voileyball, Freshman

|




ATHLETICS - WINTER - Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART

Time Coaches & Coaches L.ocation Commitment Sum ACTIVITIES
Clubs Resp

3 1 1 1 1 7 Basketball, Freshman {boys}

3 1 1 1 1 7 Basketball, Freshman (girls)

7 1 1 1 1 11 Basketball, JV (boys)

7 1 1 1 1 11 Basketball, JV (girls)

7 1 4 1 1 14 Basketball, V {boys)

7 1 4 1 1 14 Basketball, V {girls)

4 1 4 1 1 11 Gymnastics

6 1 4 1 1 13 Swimming

6 0 0 1 1 8 Swimming Asst,

4 2 4 1 1 12 Track Head Coach - Winter

4 0 0 1 1 6 Track Asst. - Winter

7 1 4 1 1 14 Wrestling

7 1 1 1 1 11 Wrestling, JV
ATHLETICS - SPRING - Co-Curricular Pay Rates CHART

Time Coaches &  Coaches Location Commitment Sum ACTIVITIES
Clubs Resp

6 0 0 1 1 8 Baseball Asst, Coach

4 1 1 1 1 8 Baseball, Freshman

5 1 1 1 1 9 Baseball, JV

6 1 4 1 1 13 Baseball, V

4 1 1 1 1 8 Lacrosse Coach, JV {boys)

4 1 1 1 1 8 Lacrosse Coach, JV {girls)

6 1 4 1 1 13 Lacrosse Coach, V (boys)

6 1 4 1 1 13 Lacrosse Coach, V (girls)

6 0 0] 1 1 8 Scitball Asst.

5 1 1 1 1 9 Softball, JV

6 1 4 1 1 13 Softball, vV

4 1 4 1 1 11 Tennis, HS V {boys)

4 1 4 1 1 11 Tennis, HS V (girls)

4 0 0 1 1 € Track & Field Asst. (bays)

4 0 0 1 1 6 Track & Field Asst. (girls)

4 0 0 1 1 6 Track & Field Asst. {girls)

4 2 4 1 1 12 Track & Field, V (boys)

4 2 4 1 1 12 Track & Field, V (girls)

o




Weekends none none travel &
Proposed Stipends $700.00 $1,200.00 $2000.00

SALARY SCHEDULE PLAN FOR

DEPARTMENT HEADS AND DIRECTORS

The salary schedule for Department Heads and Directors is organized
around three variables:

1. The category and number of classes assigned.
2. The number of full-time personnel or their equivalent in the
3. The length of the work year.

Category | Category | ‘ Category {l!
Department Heads Directors Department Directors
Heads o
184 Days 209 Days 224 Days

A.There shall be two types of content-specific curriculum roles: Department Heads and K-12
Directors. Department Heads shall be assigned to the following areas at the High School:
English, Sacial Studies, Science, Math, Foreign Language (7-12), Guidance and Special
Education. At the Middle School, there shall be assigned a 6-8 Student Services Department
Head. K-12 Directors shall have responsibilities in the following areas: Art, Perfarming Arts,
Physical Education & Health, Library/Media Center, and Athletics. The Athletic Director shall
work a 224-day work year and receive 12 percent of his/her base salary for the extra time. The
6-8 Student Services Department Head shall work a 209-day work year and receive forty {40)
vacation days, and also shall receive 7% of salary for the extra time.

B. Each full time staff member or equivalent supervised by a Department Head or Director shall be
considered for the purpose of salary computation.

C. Subject to the stipulations found in Section B above, ali Department Heads and Directors shall
receive stipends as per the increment scale and according to the actual number of personnel
- assigned to each department as of September 1st of each year.

D. In order to fulfill certain administrative responsibilities and consistent with the provisions
contained in Article XV {TEACHERS’ DAY AND YEAR), Section E of this Agreement, the

work year and compensation of individual Department Heads and Directors serving under 184-
day contracts shall be increased up to a limit of ten (10} days per contract year subject to the

1. A maximum of one (1) day during the summer shall be granted to pi'ovide orientation for
2. Areasonable number of days shall be granted, subject to the prior approval of the




Superintendent, to conduct interviews and check the credentials of applicants when
departmental vacancies occur after June 1st.
3. A reasonable number of days, as determined and approved in advance by the
Superintendent, may be granted to coordinate departmental curriculum projects and/or
participate in staff development programs. -
4. Any Department Head or Director seeking compensation for additional workdays shall
submit a signed statement on a form created by the Superintendent and co-signed by
his/her principal detailing the date{s) and times claimed for additional compensation. For
the purposes of this provision, a "workday" shall be defined as seven {7} hours, inclusive
of a 30-minute iunch, or its equivalent. Compensation for any such work shall be made
in a lump sum on the Jast pay period in August.
any newly-hired departmental staff person or long-term substitute hired after June 1st.

el




CATEGORY | CATEGORY Ii CATEGORY Il
Department Heads, Directors Department Heads Directors
184 days 209 days 224 days
Per School Year
B Min. (base
pay) of base of
Level Dept. base 184 days 209 days 224 days
. ' ' ' 5280 + 7% of | $5280 + 129
1 2t05 0.125 $5,280 ? %of| 55280 +12%
base of base
6336+ 7% of 6 +12%
2 6109 0.15 $6,336 > éof| 5633 °
base of base
7391 + 79 7391 +129
3 10to 13 0.175 57,391 5 % |573 %
of base of hase
4 14+ 0.2 $8.447 S8447 + 7% of $8447 + 12%
’ ! base of base




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Qverview - Canton High (00500505)

s 2016 Massachusetts School Report Card Overview
CANTON HIGH (00500505)

Canton Public School District (00500000} 900 Washington Street, Canton, MA 02021
~ Derek F Folan, Principal Phone: 781.821,5050
Grades Served: 09,10,11,12 Website: http://cantonma.ora/chs

Report cards help parents/guardians and the general public see where schools and districts are succeeding and where there is still work
to do. This report card overview answers impartant questions about our school's performance. For the full report card containing
additional data contact the schoal's principal or visit the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's wehsite at
hitp:/brofiles.doe mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

How is our school doing overall?

Accountability and assistance levels School percentile

School percentiles (1-99) Indicate how a school is performing
overall compared to other schools that serve the same or similar

Our school | Not meeting gap narrowing goals| grades. Our school's percentile is below.
25 50 58
.‘:'.'1".‘ LWL ol i e i A e L i B AT L -
. Lowest performing Highest performing
Our district One or more schools in the

district classified info Level 2 : :
Overall progress Ih narrowing gaps

Most schools are assigned a level from 1-5, with those mesting Massachusetts aims fo reduce proficiency gaps by half between

their proficiency gap-narrowing goals in Level 1 and the lowest 2011 and 2017.
performing in Levels 4 and 5. A district is typically assigned a
level based on the level of its lowest performing school. Placing All students Met Target

schools and disiricts into levels helps districts know which schools Hllg:ameoer:isc:md:ig?dvanta ged Pld Not Meet Target
need more support, and helps the state know which districts need Students with disabilities .
the most assistance. More information is available here:

English language learners & -

hitpJiwww.mass goviese/accouniability, former ELLs

How does our school's achievement over time compare to the district and the state?

The transitional Composite Performance Index (CPI) is a number from 1-100 that represents the extent to which all students are
progressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/for PARCC tests, the CPIlwill
be 100. Our school's transitional CPls for 2013-2016 are below.

English language arts Mathematics Science
2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2018

% 993 980 988 996 937 948 940 953 959 956 947 964

High Schools in
our district

% 993 980 986 996 938 048 935 954 950 954 947 964

High Schools in
MA

% 970 962 969 963 905 902 901 900 ‘883 881 885 894
How does our school's growth compare to the district and the state?

Transitional Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs between 40 and 80
represent moderate growth. Qur school's median SGPs for 2016 are below. (Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English language arts Mathematics
Lower growth Higher growth Lower growth Higher growth
1 99 1 50 99

hitp:/iprofiles doa.mass.edwreportcard/SchoolReportCardOverview.as px Ainkid=105&orgcade=005005058dycode=201880rgtypecade=6

Our school

High Schools in our
district

High Schools in MA

12




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Overview - Canton High (00500505)

How does our school's enrolilment compare to the district and the state?

Total enroliment Our school Our district Our state
a41 3,308 953,429
Our High Scheolsin - High Schoolsin
school our district MA
By high needs population it Y # % # %
Economically disadvantaged students 98 10.4 98 104 59,120 22.9
Students with disabilities 97 103 97 103 41,910 16.2
English language learners G 1.0 9 1.0 15,262 5.9

How do our school's teachers and classrooms compare to the district and the state?

Our High Schoolsin  High Schoolsin
General information schood our district MA
Teachers (#) 70.8 70.8 20,3948
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%) 100.0 100.0 96.4
Average class size (#) 17 1741 15.9
Student : teacher ratio 133101 133101 12701
How is our school doing on other important measures?
Qur High Scheolsin  High Schoolsin
Attendance schoof our district MA
2016 Attendance rate (%) a5.0 95.0 843.5
2016 Average days absent per student (#) 8.4 89 11.1
2016 Chronic absenteeism rate (%} .Y 1.8 17.7
Discipline
2016 In-school suspension rate (%) 5.4 5.4 36
2016 Qut-of-school suspension rate (%) 4.0 40 45
High school completion Our schood Our district Our state
2014 5-year graduation rate (%) 2.8 95.7 88.5
2015 4-year graduation rate (%) 9465 94.8 87.3
2016 annual dropout rate (%) Gz 0.2 1.9
2014 graduates attending institutions of higher education* (%) 829 81.8 762
2016 12th graders laking 1+ Advanced Placement courses {%) 588 58.6 406
2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%) 67.3 67.3 66.5
2016 SAT average score - Reading 520 520 . 509
2016 SAT average score - Writing 507 507 497
2016 SAT average score - Math 537 536 522
2015 MassCore** - Completing a rigorous course of study (%) 805 895 72.3

*Postsecondary enroliment data includes any student enrolling in an institution of higher education within 16 months of earning a high school diploma
*MassCore: 4 years of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-bassd science, 2 years of a foraign language, 1 year of arts & 5 additional "eore” courses

What else should you know about our school?

To view our school's full report card, visit hitp:J/orofiles.doe mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.
Published by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

http://profiles.doe.mass.edufreportcard/SchociReportCardOverview.aspx ?linkid=105&orgcode=005005058&fycode=201680ar gtypecode=6




11/28/20186 2016 Report Card Overview - Canton (00500000)

2016 Massachusetts District Report Card Overview
CANTON PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT (00500000)

Jennifer Fischer-Mueller, Suparintendent Phone: 781.821.5060
960 Washington Street, Canton, MA 02021 Website: hitp:/lwww.cantonma.org

Reportcards help parents/guardians and the general public see where schoois and districts are succeeding and where there is still work
to do. This report card overview answers impentant questions about our district's performance. Far the full report card containing
additional data contact the disfrict or visit the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s website at
hitp:iprofiles doe . mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit hitp:/proflles.doe mass.edu/help/data aspx.

How is our district doing overall?

Overall progress in narrowing gaps

Massachusetts aims to reduce proficiency gaps by half
between 2011 and 2017.

Accountability & assistance levels

One or more schools in the district

classified into Level 2 All students Did Not Meet Target

Did Not Meet Target

Mostschools are a33|gned a level fram 1-5, with those meeting
their proficiency gap-narrowing geals in Level 1 and the lowest
performing in Levels 4 and 5. A district is typically assigned a

High needs students
Economically disadvantaged
Students with disabilities
English language learners &

Did Not Meet Target
Met Target

level based on the level of its lowest performing scheol. Placing former ELLs

schools and districts into levels helps districts know which schools
need more support, and helps the state know which districts need
the most assistance. More information is available here:

hitp://www.mass goviesel/accountability,

District determination of need for special education technical assistance or intervention

Districts, including single school districts, are assigned a determination of need for special education technical assistance or
intervention. These determinations, which are typically based on the district's accountability and assistance level, range from Meets
Requirements - Provisional (districts with insufficient data) to Neseds Substantial Intervention {Level 5 districts). The determination,
which also incorporates compliance measures, helps to identify whether the Depariment will require districts to take additional
actions to supportimproved outcomes for all children, especially students with disabilities,

How does our district's achievement over time compare to the state?

'f'he transitional Composite Performance Index {CPl}is a number from 1-100 that represents the extent to which all students are
progressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/or PARCC tests, the CPl will
be 100. Our district's transitional CPls for 2013-2016 are below.

English language arts Mathematics Science
2013 2014 2015 2018 2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2016
llll Illl 1]
% 935 924 924 933 871 876 864 888 89t 881 864 865
Massachusetts

% 868 867 868 872 808 803 807 815 790 796 794 788

How does our district's growth compare to the state?

Transitional Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs betwéen 40 and 80
represent moderate growth. Our district's median SGPs for 2016 are below. (Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English language arts Mathematics
Lower grawth Higher growth Lower growth

1 50 99 1 50

our district e D S,

Higher growth
99

Massachusetts

hitp:/fprafiles.doe.mass.edu/reportcardDistrictReportCardOverview.aspx ?linkid= 106&orgcode=00500000&fycode=201680rgtypecode=5 1/3




1/28/2016 2016 Report Card Overview - Canton {00500000)

How does our district's enrollment compare to the state?

Total enroliment Cur district
3,308
. Qur digtrict
By high needs population # Y
Economically disadvantaged students 384 118
Students with disabilities 448 133
English language learmers G0 1.8

How do our district's teachers and classrooms compare to the state?

General information Our district
Teachers (#) 23487
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%) ag.4
Average class size (#) 1688
Student : teacher ratio 13811

How is our district doing on other important measures?

Attendance Gur distriat
2016 Attendance rate (%) 858
20186 Average days absent per student (#) ‘ 74
2016 Chronic absenteeism rate (%) 7.7

Discipline
2018 In-school suspension rate (%) 24
2016 Out-of-school suspension rate (%) 15

High school completion Our district
2014 5-year graduation rate (%) 457
2015 4-year graduation rate (%) 948
2015 annual dropout rate {%) 02
2014 graduates attending institutions of higher education* (%} a1.8
2016 12th graders taking 1+ Advanced Placement courses (%) 586
2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%) 87.3
2016 SAT average score - Reading 5720
2016 SAT average score - Writing &507
2018 SAT average score - Math 536
2015 MassCore** - Completing a rigorous course of study (%) 885

Massachusetts

953,429

Massachusetis
# %

260,998 274
165,560 172
85,762 9.0

Massachusetts

72,3841
96.3
18.0

132101

Massachusetts

949
8.8
12.3

723

*Pastsacondary enroliment data inchides any student enrolling In an institution of higher education within 16 manths of earning a high school diploma

*MassCare: 4 years of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-based science, 2 years of a foreign fanguage, 1 year of arts & 5§ additional "core” courses

What else should you know about our district?

What are our schools' accountability and assistance levels?

http:/fprofiles.doe.mass.edu/reporteard/DistrictRepartCardOverview.aspx?linkid=1068orgcode=00500000&fycode=2016&orglypecode=5

23




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Ovarviaw - Canton (00500000)

School School type Student enroliment Accountability &
assistance level

Radman Eatrly Childhood Center Early Elementary School 78 Insufficient data

Lt Peter M Hansen Elementary School 477 Level 1

John F Kennedy Elementary School 491 Level 2

Dean 8 Luce ’ Elementary School 511 Level 2

Wm H Galvin Middle Middle School 810 Levet 2

Canton High High School 941 Level 2

To view our district's full report card, visit hittp/profiles.doe.mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

Published by the Massachusetts Dapartment of Elementary and Secondary Educatien

hitp://profiles.doe.mass .edu/reportcardDistrictReportCardOverview.aspx?linkid=106&orgcode=005000008fycode=20168orgtypecode=5

313




11/28/2016

LT PETER M HANSEN (00500012)

Canton Public School District (00500000}
David Simmons Brauninger, Principal
Grades Served: K,01,02,03,04,05

2016 Report Card Overview - Lt Peter M Hansen (00500012}
2016 Massachusetts School Report Card Overview

25 Pscunit Street, Canton, MA 02021
Phone: 781.821,5085

Website: http:/fwww.cantonma.orathansenlfindex.htm

Report cards help parents/guardians and the general public see where schools and districts are succeeding and where there is still work
to do. This report card overview answers important questions about our school's performance. For the full report card containing
additional data contact the school's principal or visit the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s website at
hitp:/iprofiles.doe mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

How is our school doing overall?

Accountability and assistance levels

Meeting gap narrowing goals -
Commended for narrowing
proficiency gaps -

Our school

One or more schools in the
district classified into Level 2

Our distrlct
% .

Most schools are assigned a levei from 1-5, with those meeting
their proficiency gap-narrowing goals in Level 1 and the lowest
performing in Levels 4 and 5. A distrlct is fypically assigned a
level based on the level of its lowest performing school. Placing
schools and dislricts into levels helps districts know which schools
need more support, and helps the state know which districts need

School percentile

School percentiles (1-89} indicate how a school is perferming
overall compared to other schools that serve the same or similar
grades. Our school's percentile is below.

75 a8

Highest perfarming

1 O SO

Lowest performing

Overall progress in narrowing gaps

Massachusetts aims to reduce proficiency gaps by half between
2011 and 2017.

All students Met Target
High needs students Met Target
Economically disadvantaged -

Studsnts with disabilities -
English language learners & -
former ELLs

the most assistance. More information is available here:

hitp:/iwww.mass govieselaccountability,

How does our school's achievement over time compare to the district and the state?

The transitional Composite Performance Index (CPl) is a number from 1-100 that represents the extent to which all students are
progressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/or PARCC tests, the CPI will
be 100. Our school’s fransitional CPls for 2013-2016 are below,

English language arts Mathematics Science
2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2018
% 911 909 916 939 884 907 894 915 834 9186 876 842
Elementary ) TR 3 o : L e o el s e e,
Schools in our
% 2918 807 901 913 904 894 875 907 891 898 865 829
Elementary . e - e e S L

Schools InMA

% 834 837 842 828 830 826 841 800 808 798 786

How does our school's growth compare to the district and the state?

Transitional Student Growth Percentiles {SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs betwsen 40 and 60
represent moderate growth. Our school's median SGPs for 2016 are below. (Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English language arts Mathematics
Lower growth Higher growth L ower growth

1 50 99 1 50

Qur school e TS T e m L P e s S G L A e S m S S L B
E'ementary schools LRI R T T e s el R 54 e b AT F P e AT L ey VL R AT S R o A '-f’r.:- s R A R

Higher growth
99

in our district

Elementary Schools TP PSRRI L. | R i et
s >

hitp://profiles.doe.mass.edureportcard/SchoolReportCardOverview.aspx linkid= 1058orgeode=005000128fycode=2016&orgtypecode=6 112




11/28/2016 2016 Repart Card Overview - Lt Peter M Hansen (00500012)
How does our school's enrollment compare to the district and the state?

Total enroliment Cur school

477

Our

sohno

By high needs population # Yo
Economically disadvantaged students 61 12.8
Students with disabilities 47 9.9
English language learners i3 34

Cur district
3,308

Elementary
Schools in our
district
# %

184 124
162 110
48 31

Our state
953,429
Elementary

Schools in MA
# %

105,033 29.7

54,668 154
41,225 116

How do our school's teachers and classrooms compare to the district and the state?

[ H
General information school
Teachers (#)} 385
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%) 1000
Average class size (#) 20.1
Student : tgacher ratio 13,101
How is our school doing on other important measures?
Our
Attendance achoul
2016 Attendance rate (%) 46,1
2016 Average days absent per student (#) 6.¥
2016 Chronic absenteeism rate (%) 8.0
Discipline
2016 In-school suspension rate (%) 0.8
2016 Qut-of-school suspension rate (%) 1.0
High sc¢hool completion Qur school

2014 S5-year graduation rate (%) -
2015 4-year graduation rate (%) oo
2015 annual dropout rate (%)

2014 graduates attending insfitutions of higher education* (%)

2016 12th graders taking 1+ Advanced Placement courses (%)

2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%)

2016 SAT average score - Reading

2018 SAT average score - Writing

2016 3AT average score - Math

2015 MassCore™ - Completing a rigorous course of study (%)

Elementary
Schools in our
disfrict

107.0
99.3
19.5

138101

Elementary
Schools in our
district

96.5
6.0
4.5

07
05

Qur district

95.7
24.8
0.2
818
58.6
67.3
520
507
538
89.5

Elementary
Schools in MA

25,6309
96.5
196

13.91t01

Elementary
Schools in MA

0.5
0.9

Qur sfate

88.5
87.3
1.9
76.2
40.6
66.5
509
497
522
723

*Postsecondary enroliment data inchides any student enroliing in an institution of higher education within 16 months of earning a high school diploma
**MassCore: 4 yoars of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-based science, 2 yoars of a foreign language, T year of arts & 5 additional "core” courses

What else should you know about our school?

To view our school's full report card, visit http:#profiles doe. mass.edy, For more infarmation about report card data, visit our Profiles Help pags.

Published by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

hitp://profiles.doe.mass.edureportcard/SchoolReportCardOverview.aspx?linkid= 105&crgcade= 005000128&fycode=20168crgtypecode=6

212




11/28/2016 : 2016 Report Card Overview - John F Kennedy (00500017)

JOHN F KENNEDY (00500017)

Canton Public Schoaol District (00500000)
Christine Mcmahon, Principal
Grades Served: K,01,02,03,04,05

2016 Massachusetts School Report Card Overview

100 Dedham Street, Canion, MA 02021
Phone: 781.821.5080

Wabsite: hitp:/feantonma.orglkennedy

Report cards help parents/guardians and the general public see where schools and districts are succeeding and where there is still work
to do. This report card averview answers important questions about our schoal's performance. For the full report card containing
additional data contact the school's principal or visit the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s website at
hitp//prefiles.doe.mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

How is our school doing overall?

School percentile

School percentiles (1-99) indicate how a school is performing
overall compared to other schools that serve the same or similar

Accountability and assistance levels

Our school Not meeting gap narrowing goals grades. Our school's percentile is below.
L 25 50 75 - %9
Bl E Tl U e IR B ¢ R e, T B T e T T AL T 34 ERNE A
Our district One or more schocls in the Lowest performing Highest performing

district classified into Leve] 2
Overall progress in narrowing gaps
Massachusetts aims to reduce proficiency gaps by half between

2011 and 2017,

Most schools are assigned a level from 1-5, with those meeting
their proficisncy gap-narrowing goals in Level 1 and the lowest
performing in Levels 4 and 5. A distriet is typically assigned a .
level based on the level of its lowest performing school. Placing Allstudents Did Not Meet Target
schools and districts into levels helps districts know which schools | High needs students Did Not Mest Target
need more support, and helps the state know which districts need Economically disadvantaged -

the most assistance. More information is available here: Students with disabilities Did Not Mest Target
hitp:fiwww.mass. goviese/acgountability. English language learners & -

former ELLs

How does our school's achievement over time compare to the district and the state?

The transitional Composite Performance Index (CP} is a number from 1-100 that represents the extent to which all students are
progressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/or PARCC tests, the CP| will
be 100. Our school's fransitional CPls for 2013-2016 are below.

English language arts Mathematics Sclence
2013 2014 2015 2016 2043 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2018

% 943 942 947 912 938 931 911 928 962 944 918 877
Elementary T T A g ‘ S e
Schools in our
district L B R N S I SRR R B SRR S

% 919 807 9041 913 904 884 875 907 891 898 865 829
Elementary e e e e e e

Schools in MA

% 835 834 837 842 828 830 826 841 800 808 79.8 786

How does our school's growth compare to the district and the state?

Transitional Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs between 40 and 60
represent moderate growth. Our school's median SGPs for 2018 are helow. {Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English [anguage arts
Lower growth Higher growth Lower growth
1 50 98 1 &0

our school o L A S y
Elementary Schools R s e i s . e

in our district

Elementary Schools LT e At e e Al
in MA -

-Mathematics
Higher growth
99

http.//profiles.dos.mass .eduw/reportcard/SchoolReportCardOverview.aspx?linkid=10580rgeode=0050001 7 &fycode=2016&0r gtypecode=6

112




12802016 2016 Repart Card Overview - John F Kennedy (00500017}
How does our school's enroliment compare to the district and the state?

Total enroliment Our schoot Cur district Qur state
481 3,308 953,429
Elementary
Qur Schools in our Elementary
sehool district Schaols in MA

By high needs population # % # % # %
Economically disadvantaged students 34 6.9 184 124 105,033 297
Students with disabilities 57 1.6 162 11.0 54,668 15.4
English language learners 12 24 46 341 41,225 116

How do our school's teachers and classrooms compare to the district and the state?

Elementary
Ty Schools in our Elementary
General information school district Schools in MA
Teachers (#) 34.9 107.0 25,8309
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%} 1000 99.3 96.5
Average class size (#) 204 195 196
Student : teacher ratio 141101 1381t01 139101
How is our school doing on other important measures?
Elementary
Ouwr Schools in our Elementary
Attendance school district Schools in MA
20186 Attendance rate (%) 6.8 96.5 95.7
2016 Average days absent per student (#) 5.6 6.0 74
2016 Chronic absenteeism rate (%) 36 45 87
Disclpline
2016 In-school suspension rate (%} - 0.7 05
2016 Out-of-school suspension rate (%) - 0.5 0.9
High school completion Cur school Qur district Qur state
2014 5-year graduation rate (%) - 957 88.5
2015 4-year graduation rate (%) - 848 87.3
2015 annual dropout rate (%) - . 0.2 1.9
2014 graduates attending institufions of higher education* (%) - 818 76.2
2016 12th graders taking 1+ Advanced Placement courses (%) - 586 40.6
2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%) - 67.3 66.5
2016 SAT average score - Reading - 520 509
2016 SAT average score - Writing - 507 497
2016 SAT average score - Math - 536 522
2015 MassCore** - Completing a rigorous course of study (%} - 89.5 723

*Postsecondary enroliment data includes any student enroling in an institution of higher education within 16 months of earning @ high school diploma
*\assCore: 4 years of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-based science, 2 years of a forelgn language, 1 year of aris & 5 additional "core” courses

What else should you know about our school?

To view our school's full report card, visit hitp:/profiles.doe mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.
Published by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

hitp:/fprofites.doe.mass.edufreporteard/SchoolReportCardOverview.aspx ?linkicd= 105&orgcode=00500017&fycode=20168ar gtypecode=6

-,




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Cverview - Dean S Luce (00500020}

2016 Massachusetts School Report Card Overview
DEAN S LUCE {00500020)

Canton Pubiic Schocl District (00500000} 45 Independence St, Canton, MA 02021
Robie Peter, Principal Phone: 781.821.5075
Grades Served: K,01,02,03,04,05 Website: http:/icantonma.orgfluce

Report cards heip parents/guardians and the general public see where schools and districts are succeeding and where there is still work
to do. This report card overview answers important questions about our school's perfermance. For the full report card containing
additional data contact the school's principal or visit the Massachusetts Depariment of Elementary and Secondary Education’s website at
hitp:fiprofiles.doe.mass,.edu, For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Helb page.

How is our school doing overall?

Accountability and assistance levels School percentile

School percentiles {1-99) indicate how a school is perferming

overall compared to other schools that serve the same or similar
Our school Not meeting gap narrowing goals grades. Our school's percentile is below.

5 = 75 o
. One of more schoals in the Lowest performing Highest performing
Our district | district classified into Level 2
R Overall progress in narrowing gaps
Most schools are assigned a leve| from 1-5, with those meeting Massachusetts aims to reduce proficiency gaps by half between
their proficiency gap-narrowing goals in Level 1 and the lowest 2011 and 2017.
performing in Levels 4 and 5. A district is typically assigned a .
level based on the level of its lowest performing scheol. Placing All students Did Not Meet Target
schoals and districts into levels helps districts know which schools | High needs students Did Not Meet Target
need maore support, and helps the state know which districts need Economically disadvantaged -
the most assistance. More information is available here: Students with disabilities Did Not Meet Target
hitp//www.mass .qoviesefaccountability. English language learners & -
former ELLs

How does our school's achievement over time compare to the district and the state?

The transitional Composite Performance Index (CPI)is a number from 1-100 that represents the extent to which all students are
progressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/or PARCC tests, the CPl will
be 100. Our school's transitional CPls for 2013-2018 are below.

English language arts Mathematics Science
2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2018 2013 2014 2015 2018
% 910 874 857 4900 901 851 836 8838 89.3 838 816 792
Elementary PR B e SEECD g e i e e
Schools in our
% 918 907 801 813 904 894 875 907 891 898 865 829
Elementary : e I AR P

Schools in MA

% 835 B34 837 842 ‘828 830 826 841 800 808 798 786

How does our school's growth compare to the district and the state?

Transitional Student Growth Perceniiles (SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs between 40 and 60
represent moderate growth. Our schoal's median SGPs for 2016 are below. (Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English language arts Mathematics

Lower growth Higher growth Lower growth Higher growth
1 50 99 1 99

50
Our schoot e e Ll '> e I T A Ea i A E*
Elementary Schools SR VY T T i T 54 B e EERR R 51 X \ e A L A 2 R
in our district m - :

Elementary Schools e e 51 BEE
Elem, 51 8

http:/fprofiles.doe. mass.edu/reporicard/SchoolReportCardOverview.aspx7linkid=1058crgeode= 005000208 fycode=2016&orgtypecode=6

12




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Overview - Dean S Luce {00500020)
How does our school's enrollment compare to the district and the state?

Total enroliment Gur school

511

Our

school

By high needs population # %
Economically disadvantaged studenis 89 174
Students with disabilities 58 1.4
English language learners 18 3.5

Our district
3,308

Elementary
Schools in our
district
# %
184 124

162 1.0
46 341

Qur state
953,429

Elementary
Schools in MA
# %

105,033 20.7
54 668 154
41,225 116

How do our school's teachers and classrooms compare to the district and the state?

Our
General information schoal
Teachers (#) 357
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%) a8 .1
Average class size (#) 182
Student : teacher ratio 43001
How is our school doing on other important measures?
Our
Attendance school
2016 Attendance rate (%) 8.8
2016 Average days absent per student (#) 5.8
2018 Chrenic absenteeism rate (%} 4.0
Discipline
2016 In-school suspension rate (%) 1.3
2016 Qut-of-school suspension rate (%) (3.4
High school completion Cur schonl

2014 5-year graduation rate {%)

2015 4-year graduation rate {%)

2015 annual dropout rate (%)

2014 graduates attending institutions of higher education® (%)

2016 12th graders taking 1+ Advanced Placement courses (%)

2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%) -
2016 SAT average score - Reading -
2016 SAT average score - Writing -
2016 SAT average score - Math -
2015 MassCore** - Completing a rigorous course of study (%) -

Elementary
Schools in our
district

107.0
98.3
195

138101

Elementary
Schools in our
district

96.5
6.0
4.5

0.7
0.5

Qur district

95.7
948
0.2
818
58.6
67.3
520
507
536
89.5

Elementary
Schools in MA

25,6309
96.5
19.6

139101

Elemeantary
Schools in MA

95.7
74
8.7

0.5
0.9

Qur state

88.5
87.3
1.9
76.2
40.6
66.5
509
497
522
72.3

*Postsecondary enroliment data inciudes any sfudent enroling in an institution of higher education within 16 months of earning a high school diploma

*MassCore: 4 years of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-based science, 2 years of a foreign language, 1 year of arfs & 5 additional “core” courses

What else should you know about our school?

To view our school's full report card, visit hitp://profiles.doe mass edu. For more information about repart card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

Published by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

hitp:fprofiles.doe.mass gdureporicard/Schoal ReportCardOverview.aspx ?linkid=105&orgoode=00500020&fycode=20188orgtypecode=6

22




11/28/2016 2016 Report Card Overview - Wm H Galvin Middle (00500305)

Canton Public School District {00530000)
William Conard, Principal
Grades Served: 06,07,08

2016 Massachusetts School Report Card Overview
WM H GALVIN MIDDLE (00500305)

55 Pecunit Street, Canton, MA 02021
Phone: 781.821.5070

Website: http://cantonma.ora/galvin

Report cards help parents/guardians and the generai public see where schools and districts are succeeding and where there is siill work
fo do. This report card overview answers important questions about our school's perfermance. For the full report card containing
additional data contact the school's principal or visit the Massachusetts Depariment of Elementary and Secondary Education's website at
hitp:i/profiles.doe.mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.

How is our school doing overall?

School percentile

School percentiles (1-99) indicate how a school is performing
overall compared to other schools that serve the same or similar
Not meeling gap narrowing goals grades. Qur school's percentile is below.

&

Highest performing

Accountabillty and assistance levels

Our school

L 25

One or more schools in the Lowest parforming

Our district district classified into Level 2

Overall progress in narrowing gaps

Massachusetts aims to reduce proficiency gaps by half between
2011 and 2017.

Most schools are assigned a |evel from 1-5, with those meeting
their proficiency gap-narrowing goals in Level 1 and the lowest
parforming in Levels 4 and 5. A district is fypically assigned a
level based on the level of its lowest performing school. Placing All students Did Not Meet Target
schools and districts into levels helps districts know which schools | High needs students Did Not Meet Target
need more support, and helps the state know which districts need Economically disadvantaged -

the most assistance. More information is available here: Students with disabilities Did Not Meet Target
hito:/www.mass gov/ese/accountability, English language learners & -

former ELLs

How does our school's achievement over time compare to the district and the state?

The transitional Composite Performance Index (CPI} is a number from 1-100 that reprasents the extent to which all students are
pragressing toward proficiency in a given subject. When all students demaonstrate proficiency on MCAS and/or PARCC tests, the CP| will
be 100. Our school's transitional CPls for 2013-2016 are below.

English language arts - ) Mathematics Science
2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2016 2013 2014 2015 2016

% 944 944 938 942 830 856 846 864 85.0 827 813 8358

Qur school

Middle Schools in

our district g e AR ; : S L
% 944 040 937 941 830 850 644 862 848 826 808 834

Middle Schools in Lo

MA SRS O I ey SRR
% 884 565 882 889 778 767 780 785 734 747 748 734

How does our school's growth compare to the district and the state?

Transitional Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) measure gains in student achievement from year to year. SGPs between 40 and 60
represent moderate growth. Our school's median SGPs for 2016 are below. (Note: Growth values are truncated.)

English language arts Mathematics

Lower growth Higher growth Lower growth
1 98 1 50

50
Our school m s o T e, e et Fr e e

Middle Schools in MA I S B A ‘m e T i B R T LT e bl T S T LR T S e L R S e

Higher growth
99

Middle Schocols in our
district

httb:l!proﬁ les.doemass edwreportcard/SchoalRepartCardOverview.aspx Plinkid=105&orgcode=00500305&fycode=201680rglypecode=6 112




/2812016 2016 Report Card Gverview - Wm H Galvin Middle (00500305)
How does our school's enroliment compare to the district and the state?

Total enrollment Our school Qur district Qur state
810 3,308 953,429
Our Middle Schoolsin Middle Schools in
sahao] our district MA
By high needs population # % # Yo # %
Economically disadvantaged students a2 114 92 M4 42,711 246
Students with disabilities 116 14.3 116 143 30,100 17.3
English language learners ) 0.6 5 06 9,867 5.7

How do our school's teachers and classrooms compare to the district and the state?

Our Middle Schools in Middle Schools in
General information sehool our district MA
Teachers (#) 5688 56.8 "13,823.9
Core academic classes taught by highly qualified teachers (%) 853 95.3 96.8
Average class size (#) 19.7 19,7 19.0
Student : teacher raiio 143w 143101 126to1
How is our school doing on other important measures?
) Cur Middle Schools in Middle Schools in
Attendance school our district MA
2316 Attendance rate (%) 95.7 95.7 95.6
2016 Average days absent per student (#) 78 78 7.7
2016 Chronic absenteeism rate (%) 8.2 8.2 96
Discipline
2018 In-school suspension rate (%) 22 22 25
2016 Out-of-school suspension rate (%) 07 0.7 4.2
High school completion Qur school Our district Qur state
2014 5-year graduation rate (%) - 95.7 88.5
2015 4-year graduation rate (%) - 948 87.3
2015 annual dropout rate (%) - 0.2 1.9
2014 graduates attending institutions of higher education* (%) - 81.8 76.2
2016 12th graders taking 1+ Advanced Placement courses (%) - 58.6 406
2016 Advanced Placement tests with scores of 3 or higher (%) - 67.3 66.5
2016 SAT average score - Reading - 520 509
2016 SAT average score - Writing - 507 497
2016 SAT average score - Math - 536 522
2015 MassCore™* - Completing a rigorous course of study (%) - 895 723

*Postsecondary enroliment data includes any student enrolling in an institution of higher education within 16 months of earning a high schoof diploma
“MassCore: 4 years of English & math, 3 years of history & lab-based sclence, 2 years of a forelgn language, 1 year of arls & 5 additfornal "core” courses

What else should you know about our school?

To view our school's full report card, visit hitp:/profiles doe . mass.edu. For more information about report card data, visit our Profiles Help page.
Published by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

http:/fprofiles.doe.mass.edufreporteard/SchaolReportCardOverview.aspx ?linkid= 105&orgcode=00500305&fycode=2016&crgtypecode=6

212




Entrance Age

File: JEB

AGES FOR SCHOOL ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE

In an effort to allow for consideration of each child’s chronological age as well as individual
readiness to enter kindergarten or first grade the School Committee establishes the following
policy on entrance age:

1.

Children who will be five years of age on or before September 1 of the school
year during which they wish to enroll will be eligible to enter kindergarten in
September. '

The admission of children whose birthdays fall after September 1 will be solely at
the discretion of the Superintendent. \

A child entering grade one must be six years of age or older on or before
September 1st of the year of entrance into grade one. Children who do not meet
Canton's grade one age requirement but have successfully completed kindergarten
in Canton or in another public school and then relocated to Canton for grade one
will generally be accepted for grade one placement.

If a child has successfully completed Kindergarten in a private school and there
are data indicating that the child is ready for first grade and is within three months
of our age cutoff for first grade, a parent or guardian may request that the
appropriate elementary Principal review the child's readiness. This would involve
an examination of a portfolio of a child's work as well as a review of the child's
social readiness. Upon completion of this review, the Principal will make a
recommendation to the Superintendent based the child's readiness. If the
Superintendent agrees that there is sufficient evidence that the child is ready for
first grade, enrollment can proceed. However, if the child is judged not to be
ready, the student will only be allowed to enroll in Kindergarten. The decision of
the Superintendent is final and cannot be appealed.

Maximum Age for School Enrollment/Attendance

The maximum age for enrollment and/or attendance in the Canton Public Schools is age 21,

Ages for Compulsory Attendance

State law requires that all children be enrolled in grade one beginning in September of the
calendar year in which they attain the age of six (6) and that they attend school regularly until
they reach the age of sixteen (16). Under law, each School Committee must enforce the school
attendance of all children of compulsory school age residing in the town.




LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 15:1G
Board of Education Regulations for Entrance to First Grade and
Kindergarten,
adopted 7/20/71




File: JIH

SEARCHES AND INTERROGATIONS

Searches by Staff

Students' school lockers remain the property of the school and are sub-
ject to inspection at any time by school officials.

In the event that school administration has reasonable suspicion to be-
lieve that a student has in their possession or otherwise in their vehicle,
locker or belongings evidence that a student committed a crime or viola-
tion of the disciplinary policy, the school administrator may conduct a
search. Students, their bags, backpacks, lockers, electronic devices and
vehicles on school property or at school-sponsored event (on or off
school property) as well as other items/areas may be the subject of such
a search.

The Canton School Department may periodically utilize police K9’s un-

der the direction of the Canton Police Department to search school prop-

erty and the surrounding campus for the presence of controlled sub-
stances, drugs, weapons, or explosives.

School officials are authorized to question students about information
that is relevant to the performance of their duties, including enforcement

of school rules.

Formal Interrogations by Police

When law enforcement officials seek to question students during the
school day or periods of extracurricular activities, the school Principal or
their designee will make an effort contact the student's parent or guardi-
an so that the responsible individual may be notified of the situation.




Adopted:




File: JICFC

Canton Bullying Prevention and Intervention Policy

LEADERSHIP EXPECTATIONS

Canton Public Schools recognizes that Leadership at every level will play a critical role in developing and
implementing the Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan and Policy (BPIP) in the context of whole school and
community efforts to promote positive school climate. Leaders have a primary role in teaching students to be civil
to one another while promoting the understanding of, and respect for, diversity and difference. The Canton
Community recognizes and embraces the notion that leadership can and will emanate from our School Committee,
administration, staff, student body, and community members. However, Canton’s educational leaders will be
responsible for setting priorities and for staying up-to-date with current research on strategies to prevent and
effectively respond to bullying.

Public involvement in developing the Plan

In compliance with M.G.L. ¢. 71, § 370, the Canton Bully Prevention Plan has been developed in consultation with
teachers, school staff, professional support personnel, school volunteers, administrators, community representatives,
local law enforcement agencies, students, parents, and guardians (2010) and Act of 2014,

Adopted:

BPIP POLICY ' Table of Contents




